NINTH AMENDMENT TO OFFERING PLAN

A Plan for Condominium Ownership of the
Premises at
100-110 Theodore Fremd Avenue
Rye, New York 10580

SPONSOR : J & M Associates
2500 Westchester Avenue
Purchase, New York 10577

SELLING AGENT: Ridgewood Management Corp.
2500 Westchester Avenue
Purchase, New York 10577

DATED: June 23, 1993

This Amendment Modifies and Supplements the terms of
the original Offering Plan dated November 27, 1987 as amended by
the First Amendment dated May 10, 1988, the Second Amendment
dated June 29, 1988, the Third Amendment dated November 21, 1988,
the Fourth Amendment dated May 22, 1990, the Fifth Amendment
dated May 29, 1990, the Sixth Amendment dated July 9, 1990, the
Seventh Amendment dated May 12, 1992, the Eighth Amendment dated
April 9, 1993 and this Ninth Amendment.
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NINTH AMENDMENT TO OFFERING PLAN

RYEVIEW CONDOMINIUM

100-110 Theodore Fremd Avenue
Rye, New York 10580

. This Amendment modifies and supplements the terms
of the Offering Plan dated November 27, 1987 as amended by the
First Amendment dated May 10, 1988, the Second Amendment dated
June 29, 1988, the Third Amendment dated November 21, 1988, the
Fourth Amendment dated May 22, 1990, the Fifth Amendment dated
May 29, 1990, the Sixth Amendment dated July 9, 1990, the Seventh
Amendment dated May 12, 1992 and the Eighth Amendment dated April
9, 1993 and should be read in conjunction with said Offering
Plan.

1. Offer to Bona Fide Tenants in Occupancy

(a) The Purchase Price for bona fide tenants in
occupancy as of the presentation of this Amendment shall be as
set forth in Schedule A attached hereto for a period of ninety
(90) days from the presentation of this Amendment.

(b) The Sponsor expressly reserves the right at all
times to negotiate the Purchase Price and so long as it does not
constitute a discriminatory inducement, the Sponsor may enter
into an agreement with an individual purchaser to sell such
individual a Unit or Units at a price lower than as set forth in
Schedule A without prior notice and without amendment to the
Plan.

(c) A bona fide tenant in occupancy who wishes to
purchase their Unit at the amended Purchase Price should execute
two copies of the Purchase Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit B
and deliver the signed Agreement together with the downpayment of
$1,000. payable to "Cassin Cassin & Joseph Escrow Account" to the
Sponsor's attorneys, Cassin Cassin & Joseph, 300 East 42nd Street
New York, New York 10017 prior to the expiration of 90 days.

2. No Material Changes

Except as set forth in the First Amendment, the
Second Amendment, the Third Amendment, the Fourth Amendment, the
Fifth Amendment, the Sixth Amendment, the Seventh Amendment, the
Eighth Amendment and this Ninth Amendement to the Plan, there
have been no material changes in the Plan.



3. Incorporation of Plan

The Plan, as modified and supplemented hereby, and
in the First, Second, Third, Fourcth, Fifth, Sixth, Seventh and

Eighth Amendments to the Plan, 1is incorporated herein by
reference with the same effect as if set forth at length. All
provisions in this Ninth Amendment shall have the same meaning as

ascribed thereto in the Plan.

Dated: June 23, 1993
Purchase, New York

SPONSOR

J & M ASSOCIATES



SCHEDULE A

Building "a"

Unit 7 Purchase Price
1D 55,000.00
1H 110,000.00
2D . 55,000700
2E 55,000.00
2F 100,000.00
2G 110,000.00
Building "B"

1B . 95,000.00
1C 98,000.00
2C 95,000.00
Garage 2,500.00

14161.02



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK






L

EIGHTH AMENDMENT TO OFFERING PLAN

A Plan for Condominium Ownership of the
Premises at
100-110 Theodore Fremd Avenue
Rye, New York 10580

SPONSOR: J & M Associates
2500 Westchester Avenue
Purchase, New York 10577

SELLING AGENT: Ridgewood Management Corp.
2500 Westchester Avenue
Purchase, New York 10577

DATED: April 9, 1993

This Amendment Modifies and Supplements the terms of
the original Offering Plan dated November 27, 1987 as amended by
the First Amendment dated May 10, 1988, the Second Amendment
dated June 29, 1988, the Third Amendment dated November 21, 1988,
the Fourth Amendment dated May 22, 1990, the Fifth Amendment
dated May 29, 1990, the Sixth Amendment dated July 9, 1990, the
Seventh Amendment dated May 12, 1992 and this Eighth Amendment.
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EIGHTH AMENDMENT TO OFFERING PLAN

RYEVIEW CONDOMINIUM

100-110 Theodore Fremd Avenue
Rye, New York 10580

This Amendment modifies and supplements the terms
of the Offering Plan dated November 27, 1987 as amended by the
First Amendment dated May 10, 1988, the Second Amendment dated
June 29, 1988, the Third Amendment dated November 21, 1988, the
Fourth Amendment dated May 22, 1990, the Fifth Amendment dated
May 29, 1990, the Sixth Amendment dated July 9, 1990 and the
Seventh Amendment dated May 12, 1992 and should be read in
conjunction with said Offering Plan.

1. Financial Disclosure

a) Attached hereto as Exhibit 1 is a Schedule of
the unsold apartments held by the Sponsor which schedule sets
forth the maintenance charges paid by the Sponsor monthly as well
as the rental received by the Sponsor from tenants in the unsold
apartments. The total maintenance payable by the Sponsor is
$1,509.45 and the total rental income received is $5,995.00 and
thus there is a monthly surplus of $4,485.55.

b) The Sponsor has no financial obligations under
the offering plan, other than the payment of maintenance charges,
which will come due within twelve (12) months from the date of
this Amendment.

c) The Unsold Units held by the Sponsor are not
subject to any financing or mortgage commitment.

d) The monthly payments of maintenance set forth
in subparagraph (a) above is funded by rental income and
projected sales of Unsold Units and if such sales are not made,
the Sponsor utilizes the equity in the partnership or calls upon
its principals to make capital contributions to the Sponsor in
order to meet its financial obligations.

e) The Sponsor is current on all financial
obligations under the Plan including, but not limited to,
maintenance charges, Reserve Fund and any other obligations under
the Plan.

' f) Attached hereto as Exhibit 2 is a list of all
other buildings in which a principal of the Sponsor, either
individually or as a partner of a principal of a Sponsor, owns
more than ten (10%) percent of the unsold shares or units in such
building. The Sponsor of the other cooperatives or condominiums



is not delinquent on any of its financial obligations with
respect to its projects except as set forth in Exhibit 2.
Offering plans are on file with the Department of Law with

respect to the other projects and are available for public
inspection.

g) The Sponsor relinguished control of the Board
of Managers of the Condominium in 1988 and at the annual election
of Managers, one Sponsor designee is elected to the Board.

3. Financial Statements

Attached hereto as Exhibit 3 is the certified
Financial Statements for the fiscal year commencing January 1,
1992 and ending December 31, 1992.

3. No Material Changes

Except as set forth in the First Amendment, the
Second Amendment, the Third Amendment, the Fourth Amendment, the
Fifth Amendment, the Sixth Amendment, the Seventh Amendment and
this Eighth Amendment to the Plan, there have been no material
changes in the Plan.

4. Incorporation of Plan

The Plan, as modified and supplemented hereby, and
in the First, Second, Third, Fourth, Fifth, Sixth and Seventh
Amendments to the Plan, is incorporated herein by reference with
the same effect as if set forth at length. All provisions in
this Eighth Amendment shall have the same meaning as ascribed
thereto in the Plan.

Dated: April 9, 1993
Purchase, New York

SPONSOR

J & M ASSOCIATES
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Exhibit 2

Joseph M. Cassin:

Tappan Manour Condominium
320-330 S. Broadway
Tarrytown, New York

Michael Grean:

* Carolyn Court
* Melissa Court

* The Sponsor is not current on its financial obligations in
connection with these two projects. The Sponsor is engaged in
ongoing discussions with the cooperative corporations.

* In accordance with the Twelfth Amendment to the Offering
Plan, the Sponsor of this project filed for reorganization
pursuant to Title 11 U.S.C., Chapter 11 of the Federal Bankruptcy
Code. The Sponsor is not current on its financial obligations
with respect to its financing.

14161



Mel Savitz
Certified Public Accountant
280 North Central Avenue-Suite 140
Hartsdale, New York 10530
(914) 948-8183

To the Board of Managers and Members
Ryeview Condominium

I have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Ryeview Condominium
as of December 31, 1992 and 1991, and the related statements of
revenues, expenses and members' equity, and cash flows for the years
then ended.

These financial statements are the responsibility of the association's
management. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these
statements based on my audit.

I conducted my audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards. Those standards require that I plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. I believe
that my audit provides a reasonable basis for my opinion.

As discussed in Note 4, the association has not estimated the remaining
lives of the components of the common property and current estimates of
costs of major repairs and replacements that may be required in the future.

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Ryeview
Condominium as of December 31, 1992 and 1991, and the results of its
operations and cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles.

Dated: February 2, 1993

Mel Savitz
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RYEVIEW CONDOMINIUM
BALANCE SHEETS
AS OF DECEMBER 31,

ASSETS
1992
Assets
Cash-operating $ 906
Cash-short term investments 31,621
Accounts receivable 3,564
Prepaid expenses 2,000
TOTAL ASSETS $ 38,091
LIABILITIEé AND MEMBERS' EQUITY
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 3,124

Security deposits -

Total Liabilities 3,124
Members' Equity 34,967

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS' EQUITY $ 38,091

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the
financial statements
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RYEVIEW CONDOMINIUM
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND MEMBERS'

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,

REVENUES

Common charges
Interest
Other

Total Revenues

EXPENSES

Repairs and maintenance
Major repairs and replacements
Fuel .
Management fees
Professional

Insurance

Water

Gas and Electric

Office and sundry
Telephone

Taxes (note 2)

Total ,Expenses

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENSES

Members' Equity-beginning of year

Members' contributions

MEMBERS' EQUITY-END OF YEAR

63,837
1,172

1,668

66,677

16,919
13,389
10,587
8,025
6,750
5,360
5,281
4,888
1,616
798
429

74,042

(7,365)

41,464

868

34,967

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the

financial statements

EQUITY

$ 63,837
1,912

1,029

66,778

18,673

12,174
8,025
5,718
5,197
5,938
4,822
1,842

833
709

63,931

2,847

38,617

S 41,464



RYEVIEW CONDOMINIUM
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,

: 1992
Cash flows from operating activities:

Cash received from common charges $ 61,622

Other cash receipts 1,668

Interest income 1,172

Cash paid to suppliers (61,738)

Cash paid for major improvements (13,389)
Net cash provided by operating activities (10,665)
Net cash provided by financing activities:

Members' contributions ‘ 868

Net (decrease) increase in cash (9,797)
Cash at beginning of year 42,324

Cash at end of year $ 32,527

P

S 62,925
1,029
1,912

(64,041)

1,825

1,825
40,499

S 42,324

Reconciliation of excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenses

to net cash provided by operating activities

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over expenses $ (7,365)

Adjustments to reconcile excess (deficiency)

to net cash provided by operating activities:
(Increase) in receivables (2,215)
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses (1,300)
Increase (decrease) in liabilities 215

Net cash provided by operating activities $ (10,665)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the
financial statements

$ 2,847

(912)
2,000

(2,110)

$ 1,825



NOTE 1~

NOTE 2-

NOTE 3r

RYEVIEW CONDOMINIUM
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 1992 AND 1993

ORGANIZATION

Ryeview condominium is an unincorporated association
formed August 1, 1988 to maintain the common elements
of the property.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Property and Equipment

Real property and common areas, and related improvements
to such property are not recorded in the Association's
financial statements because those properties are owned by
the individual unit owners in common and not by the
association.

Income Taxes

The condominium can elect to be taxed as a corporation or
as a homeowners association. The election is made each
year. For the current year the association has elected
the former. The State taxes are based on federal taxable
income.

CASH-SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS

The transactions in the money market accounts were as
follows:

Balance - January 1, 1991 S 35,704
Plus: Interest income - 1991 _1,877
Balance December 31, 1991 37,581
Plus: Interest income - 1992 1,172

Members' contributions 868
Less: To operating account (8,000)
Balance December 31, 1992 S 31,621

Continued.....



NOTE 4-

RYEVIEW CONDOMINIUM
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, .1992 AND 1991

FUTURE MAJOR REPAIRS AND REPLACEMENTS

The association's governing documents do not require the
accumulation of funds to finance estimated future major
repairs and replacements. The roofs were recently upgraded
and the board feels that the current reserve fund will
cover any near ternm requirements. If additional funds are
needed the association can borrow or increase assessments.






VENTH AMENDMENT TO OFF
TO CONVERT TC CONDOMI
PREMISES AT
100-110 THEODOCRE FREMD AVENUE
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ERING PLAN
NIUM OWNERSHIP

SPONSOR: Jd & M ASSOCIATES
2900 Westchester Avenue
Purchase, New York 10577

SELLING AGENT: RIDGEWOOD MANAGEMENT CORP.
2900 Westchester Avenue
Purchase, New York 10577

- DATE: May /2, 1992

This Amendment modifies and supplements the Offering Plan
to convert to Condominium Ownership the premises at 100-110
Theodore Fremd Avenue, Rye, New York 10580 dated November 27, 1987
(the "Plan"), as modified by the First Amendment dated May 10,
1988, the Second Amendment dated June 29, 1988, the Third Amendment
dated November 21, 1988, the Fourth Amendment dated May 22, 1990,
the Fifth Amendment dated May 29, 1990, the Sixth Amendment dated
July 9, 1990, and this Seventh Amendment.
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RYEVIEW CONDOMINIUM

100-110 Theodore Fremd Avenue
Rye, New York 10580

This Amendment modifies and supplements the Offering Plan
to convert to Condominium Ownership the premises at 100-110
Theodore Fremd Avenue, Rye, New York 10580 dated November 27, 1987
(the "Plan"), as modified by the First Amendment dated May 10,
1988, the Second Amendment dated June 29, 1988, the Third Amendment
dated November 21, 1988, the Fourth Amendment dated May 22, 1990,
the Fifth Amendment dated May 29, 1990, the Sixth Amendment dated
July 9, 1990, and this Seventh Amendment.

1. New Escrow and Trust Fund Regulations

The disclosure contained in this Amendment replaces and
supercedes the former section of the Plan dealing with the ‘placing
of downpayments in escrow. As of April 27, 1992, all new
downpayments taken will be held in escrow in an account in
conformity with the disclosure contained in this Amendment.

L, The Sponsor will comply with the escrow and trust fund
requirements of General Business Law Sections 352-e (2-b) and 352-h
and the Attorney General's regulations promulgated pursuant
thereto. :

- Any provisions of any contract or agreement, whether oral
or in writing, by which a purchaser or subscriber purports to waive
.or indemnify any obligation of the Escrow Agent holding trust funds
is absolutely void. The provisions of the Attorney General's
- regulations concerning escrow/trust funds shall prevail over any
conflicting or inconsistent provisions in the offering plan or in
a purchase or subscription agreement. A purchaser must also
submit a completed executed "Request for Taxpayer Identification
Number and Certification Form" known as the "W-9 Form" along with
the downpayment check. A copy of the W-9 Form is annexed as
Exhibit 1. If the W-9 Form is not submitted with the Purchase
Agreement, the Sponsor or Escrow Agent may return the downpayment
check. Purchasers shall not be obligated to pay any legal or other
expense of the Sponsor in connection with the establishment,
maintenance or defense of obligations arising from the handling or
disposition of trust funds.

All deposits, downpayments, or advances made by
purchasers prior to closing of each individual transaction, whether
received before or after the date of consummation of the Plan, will
be placed, within five business days after the agreement is signed

2



by all necessary parties, in a segregated special escrow account of
Carol M. Joseph, Esg., the Escrow Agent, whose address 1s 300 East
4z2nd Street, New York, New York 10017 and whose telephone number is
(212) 972-6161. The signatories on this account authorized to
withdraw funds are the partners of this firm, to wit:

Carol M. Joseph, 300 East 42nd Street, New York, NY 10017

The name of the account is Carol M. Joseph Attorney Trust Account
F/B/O (Name of Purchaser) at Republic National Bank of New York,
452 Fifth Avenue, New York, New York 10016. This bank is covered
by Federal Bank Deposit Insurance to a maximum of $100,000 per
individual deposit. IF AN INDIVIDUAL MAKES A DOWNPAYMENT ON EXCESS
OF $100,000 FOR THE PURCHASE OF A UNIT, IT IS A SPECIAL RISK OF
THIS OFFER THAT SUCH DEPOSIT WILL NOT BE FEDERALLY INSURED 1IN
EXCESS OF $100,000.

The account will be interest-bearing and, unless the
purchaser defaults, interest will be credited to the purchaser at
- closing. The interest rate to be earned will be the prevailing
rate for these accounts which currently is approximately four (4%)
percent. Interest will begin to accrue within five business days
of tender of the downpayment.

All instruments shall be made payable to or endorsed to
the order of Carol M. Joseph as escrow agent f/b/o (name of
purchaser).

v Within ten business days after tender of the deposit
submitted with the purchase or subscription agreement, the Escrow
Agent will notify the purchaser or subscriber that such funds have
been deppsited into the escrow account and will provide the account
number' and the initial interest rate. If the purchaser or
subscriber does not receive notice of such deposit within fifteen
business days after tender of the deposit, the purchaser or.
subscriber may cancel. the purchase and rescind so long as the right
to rescind is exercised within ninety days after tender of the
deposit. Rescission may not be afforded where proof satisfactory
to the Attorney General is submitted establishing that the escrowed
funds were timely deposited and requisite notice was timely mailed
to the purchaser or subscriber in conformity with the Attorney
General's regulations. The deposit of the downpayment check does
not constitute an acceptance of the purchase or subscription
agreement by the Sponsor or Escrow Agent and the check will so
state.

Since all contracts are contingent upon the Plan's
becoming effective, under no circumstances shall Sponsor apply for
release of the escrowed funds of a defaulting purchaser until after
consummation of the Plan.



The Escrow Agent will hold funds in escrow until
otherwise directed 1in:

(1) a writing signed by both Sponscr and purchaser or
subscriber; or

(ii) a determination of the Attorney General pursuant to
the dispute resolution procedures contained in the
Attorney General's regulations; or

(iii) a Jjudgment or order of a court of competent
jurisdiction.

(iv) If there are no written agreement between the
parties to release the escrowed funds, the Escrow
Agent will not pay the funds to the Sponsor until
the Escrow Agent has given the purchaser written
notice of not fewer than ten business days.
Thereafter, the funds may be paid to the Sponsor
unless the purchaser or subscriber has already made
application to the Department of Law pursuant to
the dispute resolution provisions of the Attorney
General regulations and has so notified the Escrow
Agent in accordance with such provisions.

The Sponsor will not object to the release of the
escrowed funds to:

(i) a purchaser who timely rescinds in accordance with
an offer of rescission contained in the Plan or an
amendment to the Plan; or

'(ii) all purchasers after an amendment abandoning the
. Plan is accepted for filing by the Department of
Law. :

Purchasers, subscribers, and the Escrow Agent may apply
to the Attorney General in the event of a dispute for a
determination on the disposition, of the downpayment and any
interest thereon. The Sponsor must avail itself of this procedure
if there is a dispute which needs to be resolved. A form for this
purpose is attached hereto as Exhibit 2. The party applying for a
determination must send all other parties a copy of the
application.

Pending the determination of the Attorney General to
grant or deny the application, the Sponsor, the purchaser or
subscriber, and the escrow agent shall abide by any interim
directive issued by the Attorney General.

Attached to this Amendment as Exhibit 3 is a copy of the
escrow agreement which incorporates the terms of the Attorney

4



General's regulations.

The Escrow Agent will maintain all records concerning the
escrow account for seven years after the release of funds.

2. Financial Statement

Attached hereto as Exhibit 4 are the audited financial
statements for the year ending December 31, 1991.

3. Financial Disclosure

a) Attached hereto as Exhibit 5 is a Schedule of the
unsold apartments held by the Sponsor which schedule sets forth the
maintenance charges paid by the Sponsor monthly as well as the
rental received by the Sponsor from tenants in the unsold
apartments. The total maintenance payable by the Sponsor is
$1,726.45 and the total rental income received is $5,875.00 and
thus there is a monthly surplus of $4,148.55. However, the Sponsor
also pays real estate taxes on the unsold apartments which on a
monthly basis equals $1,653.91.

b) The Sponsor has no financial obligations under the
offering plan, other than the payment of maintenance charges, which
will come due within twelve (12) months from the date of this
Amendment. :

c) The Unsold Units held by the Sponsor are not subject
to any financing or mortgage commitment.

d) The monthly payments of maintenance set forth in
subparagraph (a) above 1s funded by rental income and projected
sales of Unsold Units and if such sales are not made, the Sponsor
utilizes the equity in the partnership or calls upon its principals
to make capital contributions to the Sponsor in order to meet its
financial obligations.

e) The Sponsor is current on all financial obligations
under the Plan including, but not limited to, maintenance charges,
Reserve Fund and any other obligations under the Plan.

y f) Attached hereto as Exhibit 6 is a list of all other
buildings in which a principal of the Sponsor, either individually
or as a partner of a principal of a Sponsor, owns more than ten
(10%) percent of the unsold shares or units in such building. The
Sponsor of the other cooperatives or condominiums is not delinquent
on any of its financial obligations with respect to its projects
except as set forth in Exhibit 6. Offering plans are on file with
the Department of Law with respect to the other projects and are
available for public inspection.



g) The Sponsor relinquished control of the Board of
Managers of the Condominium in 1988 and at the annual election of
Managers, one Sponsor designee is elected to the Board.

4. Disclosure of New Law

General Business Law ("GBL") Section 352-e(2-d), a copy
of which is attached to this amendment as Exhibit 7, became law on
July 23, 1991. It applies to all cooperative and condominium
conversion plans except those where all shares or units have been
sold. The law is intended to provide financial protection for a
cooperative corporation or condominium association if a sponsor or
investor fails to make monthly payments for its units.

In compliance with this new statute, the sponsor and/or
holders of unsold shares on behalf of all offerors represent that:

a) In the event payment of maintenance, common
charges, assessments or late fees by a Sponsor or other investor
who does not occupy the unit is more than thirty days late, rental
payments from the tenant shall become directly payable to the
condominium association. When the non-occupying owner resumes
payment. of maintenance and common charges on a current basis, non-
purchasing tenants will be notified within three business days of
such payments becoming current and their rental payments will once
again be payable to the non-occupying owner.

o b) The offeror will provide each non-purchasing
tenant with irrevocable notice of the provisions contained in GBL
Section 352-e(2-d). -

c) Any rights‘existing under any laws are not
limited by this statutory requirement.

' d) Payment by the non-purchasing tenant to the
condominium association done pursuant to GBL Section 352-e(2-d)
‘relieves the non-purchasing tenant from the obligation to pay that
rent to the non-occupying owner.

e) These requirements apply to the Sponsor, @ts
successors or assigns and all purchasers who are owners of occupied
units or shares allocated to occupied units.

5. Incorporation of the Plan

The Plan, as modified and supplemented hereby, is
incorporated herein by reference with the same effect as if set
forth at length. All provisions of the Plan which are inconsistent
with the Amendment shall remain in effect.



6. No Other Material Changes

Except as stated above, there are no material changes in
the Plan.

Dated: New York, New York
May /2, 1992

SPONSOR
J & M ASSOCIATES

Doc. 14163
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. Sign‘l KU BE .).'., ~.: .l.a ' "o TR VL e e
. }‘{e(e Slén.'ure >' Coe N . l. [T ..- ,: v\l“n'n- ‘} L:‘.';!‘:I i wyd mDate® . .-
Instructions . ' ¢ r"r.".v'li ‘.Jé b (1) You do nat-furnish your TIN lo the payer, or . 1f yau do not have a TiN, write “Applied For®

(Seclion references are to the Internal Revenue (2) IRS nalifies' Ine iiﬁff' thal you turnished ", "

Code.) , ety s anincorrect TIN, or,  ° AR .
" A (3).You are natilied by IRS that you'are ™" *~
{ w o ) i . v C o)
Purpose of Form .. pltesstiguin subject 10 backup withholding because you failed* ¥

Complefe this farm and give it 16 (ne"payed of 1
interest, dividends, and certain other paymenls,
(including broker and barter exchangesyif .t ¢
transactions) so that you will not be subject to the o

(R3]

to report all your interest and dividends on your °
tax return (for interest and dividend accounts; § 1
only), Ofivsid s Shbinr i sitedn.t el o
tran: p ! A (4¥vou'fail to'certify ta'the payer that you are...”
20% backup wuhholdmg that became ellective : not subject to backup withholding under (A)es v b

© January 1, 1984, <o v g idiabaiger”  abave (lor interest'and-dividend accounts opened !
Use this form 10 report and eertify yoGe Mt oY, - “after 1983 0nly);-of o 'lviey ke b L - eibis awit -
13xpayer.identification number (TIN) to.\he,payer,! 1. .  (S)You'fail 1o’ certify your:TIN: This applies .1
to cerily that you are not subject to backup,.1f:- - only lo intérest; dividend, broker: or barterv 1«3l
withhoiding because of undesreporting inlerest - exchange accounts opened alter:] 981, 0r hroker ,
and dividends on your tax return, and 10 claim - . " accounls consicered nactive in 1983:.1c nme o1

':"r::p:m: ';:m backup mlm_ml‘d‘la L‘ l'l‘y‘;w' f',',‘," . For.other payments, you are subject o backup
exempt payee. . 1 L NI 1i1e. . withholding only if.(1) or (2) above applies, ., .,
‘It you da not complete this lou%‘pc yand . : -h

Certain payees and paymenls are exempt ..., .
Irom backup withholding and information |
reporting, See Payees and Payments Exempt’! 3¢
from Backup Withholdiig.'on this page, and * "
. Exempt Payees and Paymants under Spec:!ic‘ i
L A Instructions, on page 2,1l you are an exempt,, .,  ,,

: N AYERIMNIL | Gl A 5 ARG D S (M aE

What Is Backup w"hh°|dlng"n*' ;';'" ")«' ‘p Y A lﬂ.ll!i' u'"):h:t:': :.f- l‘:-‘('];,"ll‘:q t \:,f‘- :’-“ ':' :
. A T T TR R ST n LN M y . i 3 PRCURI AU IXNTRY

The Interest and Dividend Tax CD;# Hance A‘ﬂ)n( . Hlow to Obtain 3 TIN l_.}'fyll“hhtl et

1981 requires payers to withhold and pay 10 IRS " It y3 o'ridt liave's'TIN, youi'Shoild agigly for one” !

20% of payments of ‘ﬂlﬁ'::ll' dlvldonds‘.);gd‘ ‘\q1.0, - ImmMediately. To apply fos the aumber oblain®

T B e g 1 you g T Normeas Cord s ididubit); o Form S3.4; ™
iled . "', -, . Number Card (lor individuais), or Form o

the payer your correct TIN, certity your TIN when' * . application for Employer identification Number ! -

required, and report all your laxable interest and ' (lof businesses and all other enlities), al your - "
dividends on your tax return.'your payments will >4 *jocal olfice of the Social Secunty Administration:

nol be subject to backup withholding.*#- * .-+ 1V or tite Internal Revenue Service. Complete and

Payments you receive will be subject 1o’ file the appropriate lonm according to s
hackup withholding i instructions,

return it to the payer, the payer may be required

10 withhold 20% of payments made‘to you.: i +;,

Notae: If 2 payer pives you a form other'thari'a 't

W-9 to reques! your TIN, you must use'the b+

payer's lorm, . sunihiuey rw’-‘ﬁ!ﬁ}?% :
’ iR {CTIR] T

in the space tar the TIN in Part |, sign and date
the forin, and give il 1o the payer. You will ihen
have 60 days to oblain a TIN and lurnish it to the
payes. Duning the GO-day period, the payments
you receive will not be subject ta the 20'% backup
withholding, However, il ihe payer does not
receive your TIN Irom you witlun 60 days, backup

“ withholding will begin and'conlinue unlil you

turnish your TIN to the payer, o
Note: Writing “Applied For~ on the lorm means
thal you have already apphed for 3 TIN, OR that
you ntend 1o apply for one in the near future. .

As soon as you feceive your TIN, compiele-
another Form W-9, include your new TIN, sign
and date the form, and give il Lo the payer.

Payees and Payments Exempt trom
Backup Withholdlng* -+

The lollowing lists payees that are exempt from
backup withholding and information reporting.
For ilerest and dividends, all-hsted payees are
exempl, For broker transactions, payees bistedin
(1) through {13), and a person registered under
the Investment Adwisers Act ol 1940 who .
regularly acts as a.brokes are.exempt. Payments
subject ta reparting under sections 6041 and
604 1A are generally exempt lrom hackup
wilhholding only il paid to payees described in
items (1) through (6), except that 2 corporation
that gravides medical and health'care services of
bills and coltects payments for such services s -
not exempt {from backup withhalding or ‘
information reporting. Only payees descnbed in”
items (2) through (6) are exempt from backup
withholding lor barler exchange transactions,
patronage dividends andl pay 15 by certan
hishung Loat operators.

Form W-9 (ltev 2 84y

0



Exhiibic 2
APPLICATION TO THE ATTORNEY GENERAL
FOR A DETERMINATION ON TIE
DISPOSITION OF DOWNPAYMENTS

[Send this application to the reviewing attorney assigned to the
subject plan.]

Sections 352-e(2-b) and 352-h.

Re:

Address of Building or
Name of Project

File Number:

Application is made to the Attorney General to consider
and determine the disposition of down payments held pursuant to GBL

submitted in support of this application:

1.

. Addregs

Name -

The following information is

of Applicant

of Applicant

3

Name, Address, and Telephone:' Number

of App{icant's'Attonhey'(if any)-

P
lvl‘ Ty

RTINS LIS

%3 0 ot
[N

. b K .
This is.aﬁ%applicatibn for

}

bt o " downp
LR return of downpayment.

l" ' H

. 01

iﬁ'ﬁ!f['] forfeiture of downpayment,

rotr '] other:

Beon !

Gl :

a»'q‘ ‘:' [ B o

The'proieé%*ks‘[{] a conversion of occupied premises.

(% - [.] newly constructed or rehabilitated.:
' v [ 1 vacant (as is).

R

EE
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The project i3 structured as
{ 1 a cooperative,
[ ] a condominium,
[ ] a homeowners association,
[ ] a timeshare.

{ ]'other:

Name and Address
of Sponsor:

Name and Address
of Escrow Agent:

A

If downpayments are maintained in an escrow account:

(a). Name of account

(b) Name and address
of bank

(e) ‘Account number‘(if known)

(d) Initial interest rate (if kﬁown)

If downpayments have been secured by bonds:
T e N
(a) Name :andiaddress of
bond !issuer or surety:
HINERT v L
Wt

(b) Cob&{gdkgibond inclided in this application. (DO NOT
SEND 'ORIGINAL BOND.). If not included, explain:

LT ot
. ,

P
e A
£ U

R

_._~_
innmwt I

o y—————
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Pt
pat

12,

13.

[f dowrpayments have been secured by a letter of credit:

(a) Name iand address of bank which {ssued the letter of
credit: .

(b) Date of expiration of the letter of credit, if known:

]

Plan information:

(a) Date of filing of plan:

(b) Plan

[ ] has been declared effective. Approximate
date: ' :

[ ] has nof beeﬁ declared effective.
(c) If effective, the plan

{ 1 has closed ,or the first unit has closed.
Approximate date:.

[ 1 has not closed.
[ 1 don't know. |

(d) denp#yments are secured by
1 ]‘esérow'acéount.v

[ ] bonds.,
RN ib;!f vt

S ]'letter of credit.
&, AL i PRI
5?*#:é%if‘

Contract inf&rmatidn-

(a) Copy . of 'contract and of all riders or modification
letters}are attached (DO NOT SEND ORIGINALS.) .
‘u n R

(b) Date on which subscription or
purchase agreement was’ signed

fg ‘; {H ' . \
al { ' ¢

g\» o
[

2/6/92



(e) Date(s) of downpayment (s):

(d) “otal amount of downpayment(s):

(e) Names;zand addresses of subscribers or purchasers
affected by this application:

14. State the basis for your claim. Please be as specific as.

possible. You may .add  additional sheets. Attach copies
of any relevant documents.,

!

15. I am contemporaneously sending a copy of this application to
the following persons:

2/6/92



B
Note: You are required to mail a copy of this Application to =&:!
other affected parties.
‘tx
In filing" this - application, . I understand that the
Attorney General: '13 ‘not .my private attorney, but represents the
public in- enforcing, laws designed to protect the public from
unlawful business’practices. 1 also understand that if I have any
questions concerning my legal rights or responsibilities I may
contact a private.:attorney. The .above application is true and
accurate to the,best of my knowledge., False statements made herein

are punishable as:a Class A Misdemeanor under Section 175.30 and/or
Section 210.45 ‘of: 'the Penal Law.

10 Gy

Signature: s Date:

M

Néme (Printed):: =~

Telephone: (Ho&e) ’ ' (Busineés)

Mailing Address:

2/6/92



Exhibit 3

ESCROW AGREEMENT

AGREEMENT'made this - déy of , 19 )

bty L
.'H-l,‘ Yy 1 :

etWeen J &M Associates

("SPONSOR") as sponsor of the
. ("ESCROW-

afferlng plan and _‘Carol M. Joseph

«

e
GENT") as escrow‘agent.
:' ’;)l‘ b
R

WHEREAS , . ] & M-Associates is the sponsor of an

offerlng plan tb;'éonverf- to cooperativelcondominium ownership the

Y

premises are

preml ses located at' mo-uo “Theodore Frémd Avenue Rye, New Yorkwhich

known as 'R}’-evi‘ew'\condominium S aet o e . and

vt

WHEREAS, ' Carol M. Joseph is authorized. to

act as an escrow agent hereunder 1n accordance with General Bus1ness.Law{

,("GBL") Section 352-e(2—b) and the' Attorney Ceneral's regulat1ons'

promulgated thereunder; and

WHEREAS, SPONSOR desires that ESCROW AGENT act as escrow ngént

for deposits and payments by purchasers and subscribers, pursuant to the .

terms of this agreement.

NOW, THERETORE, in . consideration of the covenants und'l
on,

conditions contained herein and other good and valuable consideratic

the parties hereby agree as follows:

246192
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1.3

ESTABLISHMENT OF THE LESCROW ACCOUNT,

. o

SPONSOR ‘and ESCROW AGENT hereby establish an escrow account

;Yl

with ESCROW AGENT for the purpose of holding deposits or

payments made by purchasers or subscribers. The escrow account

at its

has been opened with Republic National Bank of New York

depository bank

i

'H ) o : , L
branch . located at 452 Fifth Avenue New York, New York

address

The &cc;ﬁﬁtznumber {g to be designated by bank for each purchaser

The name of the account is,. Carol M. Joseph Escrow

Account._FﬁB/O (name of purchaser)(a separate 1nterest bearing.
acbount)

A .
rhe

ESCROW AGENT is the sole signatory on the account.

ot
‘ v .
—
“pou

The escrow account 'shall' ‘be an interest-bearing account as

disclosed in the offering plan.,

\ .

The escrow account ‘fs not an IOLA established pursuant to

Judiciary Law Section 497.

. i
i

DEPOSITS INTO THE ESCROW"ACCOUNT.

All funds received from prospective purchasers OT subscribers,’
prior to closing, whether in the form of checks, drafts, money

orders, wire transfefs, or other instruments which identiPY_tﬁé

payor, shall be deposited in the escrow account. Axf

Aatnrina



2.2

instruments to be deposited into the escrow account shall ta
made payable to, or endorsed by the purchaser or subscriber t»

the order of <Carcl M. Joseph as escrow agent tor

. Ryeview Condominium offering plan. Any instrument payable

oT endorsed other than as required hereby, and which cannot be

deposited into such escrow account, shall be returned to the
_L :” RT

prospective ‘purchaser or subscriber promptly, but in no event
, L

more than five business days following receipt of such

1nstrument by ESCROW AGENT. In the event of such return of

funds, the ~instrument shall be deemed not to have been

deliveredflto ESCROW AGENT pursuant .to the terms of this

u

Agreement.

:» N
IR T
7l

within :ten (10) business days after tender of the deposit
submitted with the subscrlption or purchase agreement ESCROW
AGENT shall notify the purchaser of the deposit of such funds
1n_the bank;indicated in the offering plan, provide the account
number, . and discloseo the initial interest rate. If the
purchaser does not receive notification of such dcposit within
fifteen (15) business days after tender of the deposit, the
purchaser may cancel ‘the purchase and reecind within ‘ninety

(90) days after.tenderan the deposit, or may apply to the)
Attorney General‘for relief.' Rescission may not be afforded
where proof setisfsctory‘to the Attorney General |is submitted

establishing that the escrowed funds were timely deposited in

accordance with these ‘regulations and requisite notice was

timely‘maiied to tbeﬁsubscriber or purchaser.

i
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j ‘ '

f' :
3. RELEASE OF F‘UNDS.

l:,;

3.1 ESCROW AGENT shall not release the escrowed funds of a

defaultlng purchaser until after consummation of the

{r‘.-;

planfas defined in.the Attorney General’s regulations.
sl

Consummation of the plan shall not relieve SPONSOR of
lts flducxary obligations pursuant to GBL Section 352-h.
11;“ It}
f
3.2 ESCROW 'AGENT shall continue to hold the funds in escrow
untxl otherwise dlrected in (a) a writing signed by both
. sponsor and purchaser or (b) a determination of the

' Attorney General or (c) a judgment or order of a court

of competent jurisdictlon or (d) until released pursuant :

to the regulatlons of the Attorney General pertalnlng to
release of escrowed funds. Escrow Agent shall be

entitled to rely upon any judgment, certificate, demand
or other writing delivered to it .hereunder without being

required to determine the authenticity or the




correctness of any facts stated therein. the propriety
or'yalidity thereof, or the jurisdiction of the Court
issuing any‘such judgment. ESCROW AGENT may act in
rellance upon any instrument or signature believed to be
genuine or duly authorized, and advice of counsel in

reference to matter or matters connected therewith.

If there i{s no written agreement petween the parties to

release the escrowed funds, ESCROW AGENT shall not pay

i
.)" ‘

the funds to SPONSOR until ESCROW AGENT has given the

purchaser written notice of not fewer than ten (10)

business days.: Thereafter, the funds may be paid to

' SPONSOR unless the purchaser,has made appllcatxon to the

Department of Law pursuant to the dispute resolution
proviSLOns contained in the Attorney General’s regula-

tlons and has so notlfled ESCROW AGENT in accordance

with such proVLSions.

' SPONSOR shall not object to the release of the escrowed

'funds to (a) a purchaser who timely rescinds in accor-

dance with an offer of rescission contained in the plan

or an amendment to the plan or (b) all purchasers after

-




it

an amendment abandoning the plan is accepted for fi

.
jo 121Nng
] . Caal . N

by the Department of Law.

RECORDKEEPING.
Co
I

i

ESCROW AGENT shall maintain all records concerning the

escrow account for seven years after release of the

funds.

Upen thepdissolutien of a law firm which was ESCROW
AGENT, the former partners or members of the firm shall

make appropriate arrangements for the maintenance of
these records by one of the partners or members of the

£irm or by the successor firm and shall notify the

. pepartment of Law of such transfer.

ESCROW AGENT shall make avallable to the Attorney

General, upon hls request, all books and records of
ESCROW AGENT relating to the funds deposited and

disbursed hereunder.

GENERAL OBﬁIGATIONS.OF‘EéCROW AGENT.

t

[

»

ESCROw AGENT shall malntain the accounts called for in

this Agreement under the direct supervision and control

of ESCROW AGENT.
uv-'.'-«
;l

.,f.;x

. Y
|‘«-"“ wl
N



5.2

A flduciary relat*onshxp shall exist between ESCROW

,AGENT and purchasers, and ESCROW AGENT acknowledges its

flduciary obligations.' | '

G
D '

T
Al !. Fy
Wl

RESPONSIBILITIES OF SPONSOR.

SPONSOR agrees that SPONSOR and its agents, including
an§ selling agents, shall immediately deliver all de-
poeits and peyments received by them prior to closing of

an individual. transaction to ESCROW AGENT.

SPONSOR agrees that it shall not interfere with ESCROW

»}lAéENT's perfo:mance of its fiduciary duties and compli-

ance with the Attorney General’s regulations.

The ESCROW AGENT shall not be liable for any error in

judqment or for any act done or step taken or omitted in

good faith, or for any mistake of fact or law, except

lfor ESCROW AGENT’S own gross negligence or willful

misconduct. Upon release of the funds pursuant to thel

terms of the regulations of the Department of Law, the
ESCROW AGENT shall be fully released from all liability

and obligatxons with respect to the funds.

i



sponser acknowledges that the ESCROW AGENT is acting

soleiQVas a stakeholder at the Sponsor’s request and for

' ,Y“l, TR
SOR

tnexr convenxence, that Escrow Agent shall not be deemed

to be the agent of ‘either of the parties, and that

ey 14‘
[T IR

~ESCROW AGENT shall not be liable to the Sponsor for any

act or omission on its part unless taken or suffered in
bad faith, in willful dlsreqard of this Agreement or

1nvolving gross negllqence. Sponsor shall lndemnlfy and

1

' nold ESCROW 'AGENT harmless from and against all costs,

blaims and expenses, including reasonable attorney’

fees, incurred in connectlon with the performance of
escrow agent's dutles hereunder, except with respect to

actions or om1551ons taken or suffered by ESCROW AGENT

1

in bad faith, in willful disregard of this Agreement or

involving gross'negligence on the part of ESCROW AGENT.

This indemnity shall survive Closing.

1
i

. PERMINATION OF AGREEMENT.

This Agreement shall remaln in effect unless and until

it is cancelled by elther'

(a) Written notlce given by SPONSOR to ESCROW AGENT of
- cancellation of deslqnatlon of ESCROW AGENT to act
in said capaclty, which cancellation shall take

;}Aeffect only upon the filing of an amendment with



the Department of Law provxdlng for a successor

i P

E
]

e
.

A

SCROW AGENT, or

(b): The resxgnatlon of,ESCROW AGENT upon giving notice
N ;\k

to SPONSOR of its desire to so resign, which resig-

‘ation shall take effect only upon the filing of an

(c ) All shares or units offered pursuant to the plan

have been sold and all sales transactlons have been

:u‘r';
consummated

Yo
s b
.on A
FRIRELN .

7.2 'Upon termlnatlon of the duties of ESCROW AGENT as

!

'described 1n paragraph 7.1 above, ESCROW AGENT shall
deliver any and all funds held by it in escrow and any

: and all contracts or documents maintained by ESCROW

AGENT to the new escrow agent.

8. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS.

8.1 This Agreement shall 5é binding upon SPONSOR AND ESCROW -

AGENT and'thei: successors and assigns.



10.

10.1

11.

11.1

biea!

Agreement shall be construed in accordance with and

1,‘fh}

governed by the laws of the State of New York.

.1;:‘
e

Th léfl

P £

&
t
R
i
R

4
0

ESCROW AGENT’S COMPENSATION.
RN
ihngu7,f

. ,!“. i

SPONSOR agrees that ESCROW AGENT’s compensation shall

§|f“' ‘i.‘ .

no€ be;paxd from escrowed prlncipal nor from any 1nter-
s.

eséﬁlccruing thereon and that compensatlon to ESCROW
ﬁ yrn

AGENT,;if any, shall not be deducted from escrowed

“(,,

funds by any financ1a1 1nst1tut10n under any circum-
“mhi

v'stance. SPONSOR shall reimburse the ESCROW AGENT for

all disbursements and.compensation shall be paid to the

ESCROW AGENT at its'standard hourly rates for the

' maintenance and operation of the required escrow

account by the}spoNSQR.ﬂ

) o '
' iy

SEVERABILITY.

If any proVisioﬁdof this Aéreement or the applicatiod.

' thereof to any person’or' circumstance is determined to
be invalid or unenforceable, the remaining provisions

of this Agreement or the application of such provision

to' other persons or to other circumstances shall not be

-10-
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e ———

affected thereby and shall pe valid and enforceable to

s ».,,,t~

“é(“gim "

ng%x S :

pope DA 4
A ) :

bl i :
[M@AFJ o ;j K '
AGREEMENT. BRI

sk co ‘ s

JAéreement ‘read together with GBL Section

‘.5 _h"n)‘h 14"{' LR }

Tf(z—b) and the Attorney General's regulations,

"a’ i) g4 u ll Iﬁ,« ot " - . E .
M 12 LT "a] T : it f‘ By g .
constitutes the entlre agreement between the parties

ng‘ S‘I‘ ‘ e ‘i" " “;i‘.

with{respect to the subject matter hereof.
5%?%&$h: s ‘ .“»l il
B ":&{"l}:\?"_‘ et RPN

f?“ﬁ:f'~" ‘vv”i’i - '
ersxgned consents to the 1nc1usmon of a copy of

: ‘1'
it

"l‘he'é
: .u ,”}.a, o

= the executed Escrow Agreement ln a duly filed amendment to

r.‘ l‘if’ " i," ' .'f '::“ '{ l

‘7the offeringlpl - RS T .g5‘¢}

.'b.' {13“. o

:”,.i "E':'
N
R . - ESCROW AGENT
‘ Carol M. Joseph
, SPONSOR
Y 3 :
. J &M ASSOCIATES
i b - Byg -
! ' . - Print Name and Title
e | |
| L. ,
AR | '
, g:h ] ‘T IE%I ‘ 5‘ :' ' .
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Exhibiz 4

Mel Savitz
Certified Public Accountant
280 North Central Avenue-Suite 140
Harrsdale, New York 10530
(914) 948-8183

To the Board of Managers
Ryeview Condominium’

Sl [:.‘} i

P ‘ ’.'.!’_c,ff.'-‘r f;

I have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Ryeview Condominium
as of December 31, 1991 and 1990, and the related statements of revenues
expenses and members' equity, and cash flows for the years then ended.
These financial:statements are the responsibility of the
Association's management. My responsibility is to express an opinion
on these statements’based.on my audit.

(IR ¢

!

: : SN - '
I conducted my audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards. Those;standards.require that I plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements °
are free of material misstatement. An 'audit includes examining, on a
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used:and{significant estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the'overall financial statement presentation. I believe
that my audit provides a reasonable basis for my opinion.
33;“5";‘:!" i

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Ryeview
Condominium as of::December 31, 1991 and 1990 and the results of its
operations.and cash 'flows for the years then ended in conformity
with generally accepted accounting principles.

Ty te i . :

Dated: February 1, 1992

Mel Savitz



RYEVIEW CONDOMINIUM
BALANCE SHEETS
AS OF DECEMBER 31,

ASSETS
: 1991
Assets
Cash in bank ‘ S 4,743
Cash-short term investments 37,581
Accounts receivable 1,349
Prepaid expenses | : 700
TOTAL ASSETS o $ 44,373
”f LfABILITIEs AND MEMBERS' EQUITY
Liabilities SHTZ.?
' : Janae
Acéounts'payagié ? L $ 2,659
Security depdéf%sﬁ ' 250
‘Total Liabilitiegik i . . 2,909
Mémbers! Equity L o | . 41,464

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS' EQUITY ' $ 44,373

L4
AP

. f
o

]
Lo
P

The accompanying;notés are an ihtegral part of the

financial statements:’

2,700

$ 43,636

$ 5,019

5,019

38:617

43,636



RYEVIEW CONDOMINIUM
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND MEMBERS' EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 21,

v 1991 1990
REVENUES
Common charges $ 63,837 $ 63,837
Interest 1,912 5,607
Other 1,029 556
Total Revenues 66,778 70,000
EXPENSES
Repairs and maintenance ‘ 18,673 21,046
Fuel ’ 12,174 13,667
Management fees : 8,025 7,675
Water 5,938 6,233
Professional ' » 5,718 1,730
Insurance . 5,197 6,193
Gas and Electrlc, o 4,822 4,392
Office and sundry ‘ 1,842 2,744
Telephone s 833 1,075
Taxes (note 2) A ' 709 625
Total Expenses - f 63,931 65,380
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENSES | 2,847 4,620
Members' Eqﬁity%ﬁéginnihg of year 38,617 147,936
Prior period adjustments (note 5) - 113,939
MEMBERS' EQUITY~END OF YEAR $ 41,464 $ 38,617

The accompanyingfnbtes are an integral paft of the
financial statements



RYEVIEW CONDOMINIUM
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,

» 1991 1990
Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from common charges $ 62,925 $ 66,191
Other cash receipts : ‘ 1,029 556
Interest income ‘ 1,912 5,607
Cash paid to suppliers . (64,041) (68,124)
- Cash paid for major improvements - (90,418)
Net cash provided by operating activities 1,825 (86,188)
Net increase (decrease) in cash 1,825 (86,188)
Cash at beginning of year ' 40,499 126,687
Cash at end of year - $ 42,324 $ 40,499

Reconciliation. of excess of revenues over expenses

to net cash provided by operating activities

Excess of revenues over expenses . o $ 2,847 S 4,620

Adjustments'to reconcile net income to
net cash prov1ded by operatlng act1v1t1es'

i

(Increase) decrease in recelvables ‘ (912) 2,354
Decrease in prepaid expenses 2,000 1,393
Decrease in liabilities: (2,110) (4,137)
Major capltal lmprovements (note 5) ' - (90,418)

Net cash provxded by operating activities $ 1,825 $ (86,188)

The accompanylng notes are- an integral part of the
'flnanc1al statements

o



NOTE 1-

NOTE 2~

NOTE 3~

RYEVIEW CONDOMINIUM
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 1991 AND 1990

ar!

ORGANIZATION

Ryeview condominium is an unlncorporated association
formed August 1, 1988 to maintain the common elements
of the property. ‘

SUMMARY ‘OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Progertg“énd Equipment

Real property and common areas, and related improvements
to such property are not recorded in the Association's
financial statements because those properties are owned by
the individual unit owners in common and not by the
assoc1atlon. ' 1
Income Taxes '

The condominium can elect to be taxed as a corporation or
as a homeowners association. The election is made each
Year. For the current year the association has elected
the former. The State taxes are based on federal taxable
income. ‘

CASH~SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS

The: transactions in the money market accounts were as
follows:

‘Balance - January 1, 1990 . $ 119,975
Less: Expenditufes  |
. Landscaping $ 54,012
o Retaining wall . ‘ 6,950
Alarm system ' 6,535
Other improvements 14,262 ;
Transfer to operating _8,119 (89,878)
Plus: Interest income : __ 5,607
Balance - December 31, 1990 35,704
Plus: Interest income - 1991 1,877

B

$ 37,581

wtid ‘ Continued...



NOTE 4-

NOTE 5-

RYEVIEW CONDOMINIUM
OTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 1991 AND 1990

P
FUTURE MAJOR REPAIRS AND REPLACEMENTS
ST o
The association's governing documents do not require the
accumulation of funds to finance estimated future major
repairs: “and ¢ replacements. The roofs were recently upgraded
and the, board feels that the current reserve fund will
cover any near term requirements. If additional funds are
needed the assocxatlon can borrow or increase assessments.

||‘ \.,

PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS

Effectlve January 1, 1990, 'the association adopted the
accountlng principles prescrlbed by the most recent AICPA
quldellnes. As a result of this change, the association
no .longer capitalizes major repairs and replacements. The
adjustient results from writing off these expenses, along
with the related depreciation expense.



EXHIBIT 5

UNSCLD UNITS

APT. RENT MAINT. TAXES
AlD _ $550.00 $155.31 $149.69
AlD - 217.00 208.39
A2D //, 800.00 155.31 149.69
A2E 700.00 155.31 149.69
A2F 700.00 210.09 201.05
A2G 775.00 217.00 208.39
B1B 750.00 208.49 195.18
B1C 750.00 205.83 196.65
B2C 850.00 202.11 195.18
$5,875,00 1,726.45 1,653.91

Doc. 14356



Exhibit 5

Joseph M. Cassin:

Tappan Manour Condominium
320-330 S. Broadway
Tarrytown, New York

Michael Grean:

The Estates at Rye Woods
Carolyn Court
Melissa Court

* The Gables at Rye

* In accordance with the Twelfth Amendment to the Ooffering
Plan, the Sponsor of this project filed for reorganization
pursuant to Title 11 U.S.C., Chapter 11 of the Federal Bankruptcy
Code. The Sponsor is not current on its financial obligations
with respect to its financing.
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SIXTH AMENDMENT TO OFFERING PLAN

A Plan for Condominium Ownership of the
Premises at
100-110 Theodore Fremd Avenue

Rye,

SPONSOR:
11 Elm Place
Rye,

SELLING AGENT:
11 Elm Place
Rye,

DATED: July 9, 1990

New York 10580

J & M Associates

New York 10580

Ridgewood Management Corp.

New York 10580

This Amendment Modifies and Supplements the terms of
the original Offering Plan dated November 27, 1987 as amended by
the First Amendment dated May 10, 1988, the Second Amendment
dated June 29, 1988, the Third Amendment dated November 21, 1988,

the Fourth Amendment dated May 22,
May 29,

1990 the Fifth Amendment dated

1990 and this Sixth Amendment.
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SIXTH AMENDMENT TO OFFERING PLAN

RYEVIEW CONDOMINIUM

100-110 Theodore Fremd Avenue
Rye, New York 10580

This Amendment modifies and supplements the terms
of the Offering Plan dated November 27, 1987 as amended by the
First Amendment dated May 10, 1988, the Second Amendment dated
June 29, 1988, the Third Amendment dated November 21, 1988, the
Fourth Amendment dated May 22, 1990 and the Fifth Amendment dated
May 29, 1990 and should be read in conjunction with said Offering
Plan.

1. Financial Statements

‘ Attached hereto are the certified financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 1989.

2. No MaterialVChanges

Except as set forth in the First Amendment, the
Second Amendment, the Third Amendment, the Fourth Amendment, the
Fifth Amendment and this Sixth Amendment to the Plan, there have
been no material changes in the Plan.

3. Incorporation of Plan

The Plan, as modified and supplemented hereby, and
in the First, Second, Third, Fourth and Fifth Amendments to the
Plan, is incorporated herein by reference with the same effect as
if set forth at length. All provisions in this Sixth Amendment
shall have the same meaning as ascribed thereto in the Plan.

Dated: July 9 , 1990
Rye, New York

SPONSOR

J & M ASSOCIATES



TauB & BARBER. p. C.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
1890 PALMER AVENUE

LARCHMONT, NEW YORK 10538 MEMBERS
AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

MILTON M. TAUB, CPA Q14 834-0743
ROBERT J. BARBER. CPA

NEW YORK STATE SOCIETY OF
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

To the Owners of
Ryeview Condominium Association
Rye, New York

We have examined the accompanying balance sheet of Ryeview
Condominium Association as at December 31, 1989 and the related
revenue and expenses of the association for the year ended
December 31, 1989. Our examination was made in accordance with
generally accepted auditing standards and, accordingly, included
such tests of the accounting records and such other auditing
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

In our opinion, the aforementioned financial statements
present fairly the financial position of Ryeview Condominium
Association as at December 31, 1989 and the results of operations
for the year ended December 31, 1989, in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles.

Very truly yours,

—

. : 22
} c?/../\.»é/ ¥ /7"”4&% ) b ¢
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Larchmont, New York
May 25, 1990



RYEVIEW CONDOMINIUM ASSOCIATION
BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 1989

ASSETS
RESERVE FOR
OPERATING REPLACEMENT TOTAL ALL
FUND FUND FUNDS
CURRENT ASSETS .
Cash $ 24,766 $101,921 $126,687
Maintenance Fees
Receivable 2,791 2,791
Prepaid Expenses 352 352
Unexpired Insurance 3,741 3,741
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 31,650 101,921 133,571
FIXED ASSETS ‘
Capital Improvements 25,833 25,833
Less: Accumulated
Depreciation ( 2,312) (2,312)
NET FIXED ASSETS 0 23,521 23,521
OTHER ASSETS
Deposits 455 455
TOTAL ASSETS $ 32,105 $125,442 $157,547

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable $ 3,605 $ $ 3,605
Accrued Expenses 6,006 6,006

TOTAL CURRENT

LIABILITIES 9,611 0 9,611
FUND BAIANCES 22,494 125,442 147,936

TOTAL LIABILITIES

AND FUND BALANCES $ 32,105 $125,442 $157,547

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an
integral part of these statements.

TauB & BARBER., P. C
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS



RYEVIEW CONDOMINIUM ASSOCIATION
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES & CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1989

RESERVE FOR

OPERATING REPLACEMENT TOTAL
FUND FUND ALL FUNDS
REVENUES
Maintenance Fees $ 66,396 $ 66,396
Interest Income $ 5,978 __ 5,978
TOTAL REVENUES . 66,396 5,978 _ 72,374
OPERATING EXPENSES
Repairs & Maint. 12,672 3,858 16,530
Insurance 6,093 6,093
Professional Fees 8,251 © 8,251
Bank Charges 175 175
Janitorial Services 7,475 7,475
Exterminating 502 502
Management Fees 9,167 9,167
Misc. Expenses 630 630
Office Expense 472 472
Supplies 937 937
Heat, Light & Power 15,174 15,174
Water 4,093 4,093
License & Permits 150 150
Interest . 235 235
Income Taxes 1,815 1,815
Depreciation 2,312 2,312
TOTAL OPERATING
EXPENSES 67,841 6,170 74,011
Excess of Revenue ’
over Expenses (Deficit) ( 1,445) ( 192) (1,637)
Add: Capital
Contribibutions 404 50,000 50,404

Fund Balance - Beginning
of Year 23,535 75,634 99,169

Fund Balance - End

of Year S 22,494 $125,442 : $147,936

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an
integral part of these statements.

TauB & BARBER. P.C

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS



RYEVIEW CONDOMINIUM ASSOCIATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT

ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

ORGANIZATION
Ryeview Condominjum Association (Association) is a non-
profit New York Corporation organized August 1, 1988. The
Association was formed to provide maintenance, preservation
and control of common areas and to promote health, safety
and welfare for all residents. The value of common areas is
not reflected in the financial statements, as title to these

is vested in the individual homeowners on an undivided
basis.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES FUND ACCOUNTING )
The assets, liabilities and fund balances of the Association
are reported in two fund groups as follows:

Operating Fund, designated by the Board to reflect all
activities required for on-going maintenance of common
areas.

Reserve for Replacement, a Board designated account which
includes amounts for anticipated future capital
expenditures.

Since the Association was not in operation for the entire
year of 1988, comparative financial statements were not
prepared.

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING
The association uses the accrual basis of accounting. All
association maintenance fees are recognized as earned when
assessed and expenditures are recognized when incurred.

MAINTENANCE FEES RECEIVABLE
Since any past due or delinquent fees may be secured by a
lien on the homeowner's ¢ondominium unit with the power of
foreclosure, no allowance for uncollectible fees is
considered necessary.

INCOME TAXES
Under Section 528 of the Internal Revenue Code, the
Association has the choice of being taxed as a "C"
Corporation or as a homeowners' association. The electign
is made on a year by year basis. For 1989, the Association
has elected to be taxed as a homeowners' association.

Continued......... ceee e

Tau & BARBER. 1. C

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS



. RYEVIEW CONDOMINIUM ASSOCIATION
Page 2

INCOME TAXES (Cont'd)
During 1989, New York State revised its tax laws to be in
conformity with the Internal Revenue Service; therefore, the
Association will be taxed as if it were a corporation.

ASSOCIATION RESERVES
At the beginning of 1989, the Fund had a $75,634 Cash
Balance; whereas at the end of the year it had a $104,203
Cash Balance. A summary of the transactions are as follows:

Balance - January 1, 1989 $ 75,634
Add: Contributions

: B2A 5,000

Sponsor 45,000

Interest Income 8,260

133,894

Less: Expenditures
A&D Roofing - New Roof $ 15,700

Freddy's Paint World 8,758

R.J. Smith - Architects 2,088

J. Silvester - Repairs. 1,375 ;

A. Bournazos - Survey 1,770 29,691
Balance - December 31, 1989 $104,203

TauB & BARBER, P. C

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS






FIFTH AMENDMENT TO OFFERING PLAN

A Plan for Condominium Ownership of the
Premises at
100-110 Theodore Fremd Avenhue
Rye, New York 10580

SPONSOR: J & M Associates
11 Elm Place
Rye, New York 10580

SELLING AGENT: Ridgewood Management Corp.
11 Elm Place
Rye, New York 10580

DATED: May 29, 1990

This Amendment Modifies and Supplements the terms of
the original Offering Plan dated November 27, 1987 as amended by
the First Amendment dated May 10, 1988, the Second Amendment
dated June 29, 1988, the Third Amendment dated November 21, 1988,
the Fourth Amendment dated May 22, 1990 and this Fifth Amendment.
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FIFTH AMENDMENT TO OFFERING PLAN

RYEVIEW CONDOMINIUM

100-110 Theodore Fremd Avenue
Rye, New York 10580

This Amendment modifies and supplements the terms
of the Offering Plan dated November 27, 1987 as amended by the
First Amendment dated May 10, 1988, the Second Amendment dated
June 29, 1988, the Third Amendment dated November 21, 1988 and
the Fourth Amendment dated May 22, 1990 and should be read in
conjunction with said Offering Plan.

1. Financial Disclosure

a) Attached hereto as Exhibit 1 is a Schedule of
the unsold apartments held by the Sponsor which schedule sets
forth the maintenance charges paid by the Sponsor monthly as well
as the rental received by the Sponsor from tenants in the unsold
apartments. The total maintenance payable by the Sponsor is
$1,943.45 and the total rental income received is $7,465.00 and
thus there is a monthly surplus of $5,521,55.

b) The Sponsor has no financial obligations under
the offering plan, other than the payment of maintenance charges,
which will come due within twelve (12) months from the date of
this Amendment.

c) The Unsold Units held by the Sponsor are not
subject to any financing or mortgage commitment.

d) The monthly payments of maintenance set forth
in subparagraph (a) above is funded by rental income and
projected sales of Unsold Units and if such sales are not made,
the Sponsor utilizes the equity in the partnership or calls upon
its principals to make capital contributions to the Sponsor 1n
order to meet its financial obligations.

e) The Sponsor is current on all financial
obligations under the Plan including, but not limited to,
maintenance charges, Reserve Fund and any other obligations under
the Plan.



f) Attached hereto as Exhibit 2 is a list of all
other buildings in which a principal of the Sponsor, either
individually or as a partner of a principal of a Sponsor, owns
more than ten (10%) percent of the unsold shares or units in such
building. The Sponsor of the other cooperatives or condominiums
is not delinquent on any of its financial obligations with
respect to its projects except as set forth in Exhibit 2.
Offering plans are on file with the Department of Law with
respect to the other projects and are available for public
inspection.

g) The Sponsor relinguished control of the Board
of Managers of the Condominium in 1988 and at the annual election
of Managers, one Sponsor designee is elected to the Board.

2. No Material Changes

Except as set forth in the First Amendment, the
Second Amendment, the Third Amendment, the Fourth Amendment and
this Fifth Amendment to the Plan, there have been no material
changes in the Plan.

3. Incorporation of Plan

The Plan, as modified and supplemented hereby, an@
in the First, Second, Third and Fourth Amendments to the Plan, 1s
incorporated herein by reference with the same effect as if set
forth at length. All provisions in this Fifth Amendment shall
have the same meaning as ascribed thereto in the Plan.

Dated: May 29, 1990
Rye, New York

SPONSOR

J & M ASSOCIATES



Exhibit 1

CHATSWORTH GARDENS

Common
Apartment Rent Charges
iD $ 303.36 $ 178.94
1H 638.66 436.91
2G 308.25 313.74
2H 972.71 654.51
4B 647.64 321.27
4G 578.05 792.14
5H 1,199.80 792.14
6B 739.34 328.79
7G 514.90 333.65

$5,902.71 $4,152.09



Exhibit 2

Joseph M. Cassin:

Tappan Manour Condominium
320-330 S. Broadway
Tarrytown, New York

Chatsworth Gardens
14 N. Chatsworth Avenue
Larchmont, New York

Michael Grean:

The Estates at Rye Woods
Carolyn Court
Melissa Court

* The Gables at Rye

* In accordance with the Twelfth Amendment to the Offering
Plan, the Sponsor of this project filed for reorganization
pursuant to Title 11 U.S.C., Chapter 11 of the Federal Bankruptcy
Code. The Sponsor is not current on its financial obligations
with respect to its financing.






FOURTH AMENDMENT TO OFFERING PLAN

A Plan for Condominium Ownership of the
Premises at
100-110 Theodore Fremd Avenue
Rye, New York 10580

SPONSOR: J & M Associates
11 Elm Place
Rye, New York 10580

SELLING AGENT: Ridgewood Management Corp.
11 Elm Place
Rye, New York 10580

DATED: May 22, 1990

This Amendment Modifies and Supplements the terms of
the original Offering Plan dated November 27, 1987 as amended by
the First Amendment dated May 10, 1988, the Second Amendment
dated June 29, 1988, the Third Amendment dated November 21, 19838
and this Fourth Amendment.
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FOURTH AMENDMENT TO OFFERING PLAN

RYEVIEW CONDOMINIUM

100-110 Theodore Fremd Avenue
Rye, New York 10580

This Amendment modifies and supplements the terms
of the Offering Plan dated November 27, 1987 as amended by the
First Amendment dated May 10, 1988, the Second Amendment dated
June 29, 1988 and the Third Amendment dated November 21, 1988 and
should be read in conjunction with said Offering Plan.

1. Board of Managers

The first meeting of Unit Owners was held November
29, 1988 at which time control of the Board of Managers was
transferred to resident Unit Owners. A five (5) member Board of
Managers was elected as follows:

Tina Novak, President

Terrence Guerriere, Vice President
Raymond Doyle, Treasurer '
Laure Dubus

Joseph M. Cassin (Sponsor)

2. Unsold Units

Attached hereto as Exhibit 1 is a list of the
Unsold Units which the Sponsor currently owns.

3. Financial Statement

The 1988 certified financial statement of operation
is attached hereto as Exhibit 2.



4. - Laundry Machines

There is currently a dispute between the Sponsor
and the Condominium Board of Managers regarding the ownership of
the laundry machines located at the property. The Sponsor
contends that the machines are personal property belonging to it
and the Board contends that the machines belong to the
Condominium. There are laundry facilities available within
walking distance from the Property. The resolution of the
dispute will be disclosed in a duly filed Amendment to the Plan.

5. No Material Changes

Except as set forth in the First Amendment, the
Second Amendment, the Third Amendment and this Fourth Amendment
to the Plan, there have been no material changes in the Plan.

6. Incorporation of Plan

The Plan, as modified and supplemented hereby, and
in the First, Second and Third Amendments to the Plan, is
incorporated herein by reference with the same effect as if set
forth at length. All provisions in this Fourth Amendment shall
have the same meaning as ascribed thereto in the Plan.

Dated: May 22, 1990
Rye, New York

SPONSOR

J & M ASSOCIATES



Exhibit 1

AlA
AlD
AlH
A2D
A2E
A2F
A2G
B1B
B1C
B2C



TauB & BARBER, P. C.

CE';RTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
1890 PALMER AVENUE

LARCHMONT, NEW YORK 10538 MEMBERS:

AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

MILTON M. TAUB, CPA 9i4 834-0743
ROBERT J. BARBER, CPA

NEW YORK STATE SOCIETY OF
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

To the Owners of
Ryeview Condaminium
Rye, New York

We have examined the accompanying balance sheet of Ryeview Condaminium
as at December 31, 1988 and the related revenue and expenses of the association
for the period August 1, 1988 to December 31, 1988. Our examination was made
in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and, accordingly,
included such tests of the accounting records and such other auditing procedures
as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

- In our opinion, the aforementioned financial statements present fairly
the financial position of Ryeview Condaminium as at December 31, 1988 and the

results of operations for the period August 1, 1988 to December 31, 1988, in

conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

A%M /Q

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACOOUNTANTS

Larchmont, New York
September 22, 1989



RYEVIEW CONDOMINIUMS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE PERIOD 8/1/88 - 12/31/88

Reserve
for Total
Operating Replacement all
Fund Fund Funds

REVENUES

Maintenance Fees $ 26,599 $ 26,599

Interest Incame S 640 640

Total Revenues 26,599 640 27,239

OPERATING EXPENSES

Heat, Light and Power 9,343 9,343

Repairs and Maintenance 2,272 2,272

Outside Labor 1,337 1,337

Insurance 2,525 2,525

Management Fees 3,333 3,333

Exterminating 201 201

Miscellaneous 239 6 245

Taxes 162 , 162

Total Operating Expenses 19,412 6 19,418

Excess of revenues over

expenses ' 7,187 634 7,821
FUND BALANCES, beginning of year -0- ~Q~ =0-
FUND BALANCES, end of year $ 7,187 $ 634 $ 7,821

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of these statements.

TauB & BARBER. P.C.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS



RYEVIEW CONDOMIIiidel ASSOCIATION
Notes to Financial Statements

ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
ORGANIZATION

Ryeview Condominium Association (Association) is a non-profit New York

' Corporation organized August 1, 1988. The Association was formed to provide

maintenance, preservation and control of cammon areas and to promote health,
safety and welfare for all residents. The value of common areas is not
reflected in the fianancial statements, as title to these is vested in the
individual hame owners on an undivided basis.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACOOUNTING POLICIES
FUND ACCOUNTING

The assets, liabilities and fund balances of the Association are reported
in two furd groups as follows:

Operating fund, designated by the board to reflect all activities
required for on-going maintenance of common areas.

Reserve for replacement, a board designated account which includes
amounts for anticipated future capital expenditures.

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING _
The association uses the accrual basis of accounting. All association

maintenance fees are recognized as earned when assessed and expenditures
are recognized when incurred.

MAINTENANCE FEES RECEIVABIE
Since any past due or delinquent fees may be secured by a lien on the

home—owner's condominium unit with the power of foreclosure, no allowance
for uncollectible fees is considered necessary.

INCOME TAXES
Under Section 528 of the Internal Revenue Code, the Association has the
choice of being taxed as a "C" corporation or as a homeowners association.
The election is made on a year by year basis. For 1988, the Association
has elected to be taxed as a Homeowners Association.

TauB & BARBER., P. C
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS






THIRD AMENDMENT TO OFFERING PLAN

A Plan for Condominium Ownership of the
Premises at
100-110 Theodore Fremd Avenue
Rye, New York 10580

SPONSOR: J & M Associates
11 Elm Place
Rye, New York 10580

SELLING AGENT: Ridgewood Management Corp.
11 Elm Place
Rye, New’York 10580

DATED: November 21 , 1988

This Amendment Modifies and Supplements the terms of
the original Offering Plan dated November 27, 1987 as amended by
the First Amendment dated May 10, 1988, the Second Amendment
dated June 29, 1988, and this Third Amendment.
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THIRD AMENDMENT TO OFFERING PLAN

RYEVIEW CONDOMINIUM

100-110 Theodore Fremd Avenue
Rye, New York 10580

This Amendment modifies and supplements the terms
of the Offering Plan dated November 27, 1987 as amended by the
First Amendment dated May 10, 1988 and the Second Amendment dated
June 29, 1988 and should be read in conjunction with said
Ooffering Plan.

1. The Closing

The Ryeview Condominium was established in
accordance with the térms of the Declaration dated July 22, 1988
and recorded August 12, 1988 in the offices of the Clerk of
Westchester County, Liber 9264, page 131.

Of the twenty-six (26) apartment units offered for
sale under the Plan, Purchase Agreements were in effect and have
closed for fifteen (15) units in the building.

2. Net Closing Adjustments

In accordance with the First Amendment to the Plan,
the Sponsor made a $10,000 contribution to the Working Capital
Fund. No adjustments were deducted from this Fund. Net closing
adjustments were in favor of the Sponsor in the amount of
$3,071.05 and are being paid pursuant to a non-interest bearing
promissory note. Said amount will be paid in twelve (12) equal
monthly installments commencing September 1, 1988.

3. Reserve Fund

Pursuant to the First Amendment to the Plan,
$50,000 of the Reserve Fund was to be funded upon the Closing of
ten (10) units, with an additional contribution of $5,000 for
each additional unit that closes. As of November 1, 1988,
fifteen (15) units have closed and Sponsor has thus far made a
$75,000 contribution to the Reserve Fund. As each subsequent
unit is closed, Sponsor will contribute an additional $5,000 per
unit until the total contribution of $125,000 has been
contributed. The Reserve Fund is being maintained in an account
at Citytrust in Danbury, Connecticut.



4. Board of Managers

The first meeting of Unit Owners will be held
within thirty (30) days of the Presentation Date of this
Amendment for the purpose of electing a five (5) member Board of
Managers. All Unit Owners will be notified in writing of the
exact date, time and location of such meeting.

5. Incorporation of Plan

The Plan, as modified and supplemented hereby, and
in the First and Second Amendments to the Plan, is incorporated
herein by reference with the same effect as if set forth at
length. All provisions in this Third Amendment shall have the
same meaning as ascribed thereto in the Plan. ,

6. No Material Changes

- Except as set forth in the First Amendment, the
Second Amendment, and this Third Amendment to the Plan, there
have been no material changes in the Plan.
Dated: November _21 , 1988 -
Rye, New York
SPONSOR

J & M ASSOCIATES

)






SECOND AMENDMENT TO OFFERING P

A Plan for Condominium Ownership
Premises at
100-110 Theodore Fremd Avenu
Rye, New York 10580

SPONSOR: J & M Associates
11 Elm Place
Rye, New York 10580

SELLING AGENT: ~ Ridgewood Management Co
11 Elm Place
Rye, New York 10580

DATED: June &9 , 1988

~

LAN

of the

e

rp.

This Amendméht Modifies and Supplements the terms of

the original offering Plan dated November 27,
the First Amendment dated May 10, 1988.

1987 as amended by

P\\.



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK



SECOND AMENDMENT TO OFFERING PLAN

RYEVIEW CONDOMINTIUM

100-~110 Theodore Fremd Avenue
Rye, New York 10580

- This Amendment modifies and supplements the terms
of the Offering Plan dated November 27, 1987 as amended by the
First Amendment dated May 10, 1988 and should be read in
conjunction with said Offering Plan.

1. Declaration of Effectiveness

In accordance with the terms of the Plan, as
amended, the Plan was declared effective as of June 17, 1988 by
written notice of such declaration of effectiveness distributed
to all tenants and purchasers by the Selling Agent on said date.
A copy of such notice, is annexed hereto as Exhibit 1.

There are a total of twenty-six (26) apartment
units offered for sale under the Plan. Purchase Agreements have
been executed and delivered to the Selling Agent for fifty-three
(53%) percent (14 units) of all residential dwelling units in the
building. Annexed hereto as Exhibits 2 and 3 respectively are
the affidavit of Sponsor in support of the declaration of
effectiveness and a list of purchasers counted in meeting the

requirements of effectiveness.

2. Closing Date

- Closing dates to convey title to units for which
Purchase Agreements have been executed have not yet been
scheduled. The first closing will be held within one hundred
eighty (180) days from the date hereof, unless adjourned by
Sponsor; but in no event socner than thirty (30) days from the
date hereof. At such time as closing dites have been scheduled,
all purchasers will be notified in writing of the date, time and
place of the closing for his or her unit.

3. Financial Statement

Attached hereto as Exhibit 4 is the statement of
operations for the period ending December 31, 1987.
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4. Incorporation of Plan

The Plan, as modified and supplemented hereby, and
in the First Amendment to the Plan, is incorporated herein by
reference with the same effect as if set forth at length. All
provisions in this Second Amendment shall have the same meaning
as ascribed thereto in the Plan.

5. No Material Chahges

Except as set forth in the First Amendment and
this Second Amendment to the Plan, there have been no material
changes in the Plan.

{

Dated:‘ June Qﬂ‘ 1988
Rye, New York

SPONSOR

J & M ASSOCIATES

' ®

£



EXHIBIT 2

AFFIDAVIT OF SPONSOR

STATE OF NEW YORK )
)ss.:
COUNTY OF NEW YORK )

Joseph M. Cassin, being duly sworn, deposes and says:

1. I am a principal of J & M Associates, the Sponsor
of the Condominium Offering Plan for the premises at 100-110
Theodore Fremd Avenue, Rye, New York, (the "Plan") and I am
authorized to make the following statements.

2. The Plan was accepted for filing by the Department
of Law on December 4, 1987 and presented to the tenants in
occupancy on December 19, 1987.

3. The Sponsor hereby represents that all of the
purchasers who are counted for the purpose of declaring the Plan
effective are either tenants in occupancy or bona fide
purchasers who represent that they have purchased for their
personal occupancy, and that to the knowledge of the Sponsor,
none of the purchasers are purchasing as an accommodation to, or
for the account or benefit of Sponsor, and have duly executed
Purchase Agreements and have paid the full downpayment as
required in the Plan.

4. Set forth in Exhibit 3, annexed hereto and made
part hereof, is a list of the names of purchasers who are being
counted for the purpose of declaring the Plan effective, the '
apartment purchased, and the date of each Purchase Agreement.

5. The Sponsor hereby represents that no purchaser who
is counted for the purpose of declaring’the Plan effective is
the Sponsor, a principal of the Sponsor, or related by blood,
marriage, or adoption to, or is an employee, limited partner or
business associate of the Sponsor or the Selling Agent.

6. The Sponsor has been advised that no tenants have
executed a purported "no buy" pledge.
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Page 2.

7. No Purchase Agreements used for the purpose of
declaring the Plan effective were assigned or transferred unless
in accordance with the Plan.

8. The Sponsor hereby represents that purchasers who
are counted for the purpose of declaring the Plan effective
signed Purchase Agreements without fraud or duress and with no

discriminatory inducement.

Jose M. Cdssin”
J & M Associates

Sworn to before me this 20th day
of June, 1988.

é——-@m%w&

Notary Public

CAROL M. JOSEPH
blic. State of New York
Notary P(tl’o. IS‘l »48234?(5C°u"~
ified in New Yor
Qurorma!mg;;ires Jan 31,1989 _

o e .. 3,;?"!{5, .



Unit No.

Building A

1-B
1-C

1-F

2-A
2-B
2-C
2-H

Building B

1-A
1-B
1-D

(NN NN
oWy

Patio A

Garage

R YR

n
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EXHIBIT 3

LIST OF PURCHASERS

Purchaser(s) Name

Michael J. Finnegan
Drewry F. Wofford III and
Doreen A. Wofford

James M. Whittemore and
Richard F. Whittemore
Christine A. Novak
Lawrence J. Bieniek
Thomas 0O’/Connor

George C. Hopwood

HRUN

Laure Dubus

James T. Howard III

Steven A. Singer

Michael Sweeney

Raymond Doyle

G. Gary Mantell and
Ivy Lynn Mantell

Terence P. Guerriere

James T. Howard III
Steven A. Singer

Raymond Doyle

James M. Whittemore and
Richard F. Whittemore

Anthony Loconte and
Elizabeth Blaney

»®

Purchase Date

6/15/88
6/08/88

5/27/88
6/10/88
6/04/88
4/12/88
3/09/88

5/20/88
6/13/88
6/15/88
4/12/88
5/25/88

6/04/88

6/10/88

6/13/88
6/15/88
5/25/88
5/27/88

5/20/88



EXHIBIT 4

Richard A. Eisner & Comp:
Certified Public Accoun

Member of Summit International Assoctate

To the Owners of
100-110 Theodore Fremd Avenue
New York, New York

We have examined the statement of income and
operating expenses (exclusive of depreciation and interest) of
the building located at 100-110 Theodore Fremd Avenue, Rye, New
York, for the year ended December 31, 1987. Our examination
was made in accordance .with generally accepted auditing
standards and, accordingly, included such tests of the
accounting records and such other auditing procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances.

The accompanying statement was prepared for inclusion
in an offering plan for the conversion to cooperative ownership

of the building located at 100-110 Theodore Fremd Avenue, Rye,
New York.

In our opinion, the aforementioned financial
statement presents fairly the income and operating expenses
(exclusive of depreciation and interest) of the building
located at 100-110 Theodore Fremd Avenue, Rye, New York, for
the year ended December 31, 1987, in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles applied on a basis consistent

with that of the preceding year.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC /ACCO7«TANTS

[ 4
New York, New York '

February 26, 1988

575 M Jison Avenue, New Yﬁfk. N.Y» 10
T - (212) 355-1700. Fax: (212) 3¢

-, v ., R
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STATEMENT OF INCOME AND OPERATING EXPENSES
(EXCLUSIVE OF DEPRECIATION AND INTEREST) OF THE BUILDING
LOCATED AT 100-110 THEODORE FREMD AVENUE, RYE, NEW YORK

FOR THE YEAR ENDED

Income:
Apartment rentals . . . .
Garage rentals. « « « « &«

Operating expenses:
Real estate taxes . .
Water and sewer taxes
Heat‘ - - - L J
Electricity .
Insurance . «
Supplies. . .
Exterminating « « « « - -
Repairs and maintenance .
Management fees (Note 2).
Accounting fees « « .+ . .

-
-
L J

DECEMBER 31,

Office expense and miscellaneous.

INCOME FROM OPERATIONSG (EXCLUSIVE

OF DEPRECIATION AND INTEREST)

The accompanying notes to statement O
operating expenses are an integral par

[]
e ¢ & & &

-2 -

e & ¢ 0 8 ¢

1987

$244,090
2,280

246,370

27,341
4,654
12,414
5,599
5,721
2,288
2,432
9,641
6,240
1,803
264

78,397

$167,973

£ income and
t hereof.
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THE BUILDING LOCATED AT
100-110 THEODORE FREMD AVENUE, RYE, NEW YORK

NOTES TO STATEMENT OF INCOME AND OPERATING EXPENSES

(NOTE 1) - Accounting Policy:

The accompanying statement of income and operating expenses
does not reflect any charge for depreciation and interest
expense.

(NOTE 2) - Management Fees:

Management fees are based on an oral agreement.

v
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FIRST AMENDMENT TO OFFERING PLAN
A Plan for Condominium Ownership of the
Premises at

100-110 Theodore Fremd Avenue
Rye, New York 10580

SPONSOR: J & M Associates
11 Elm Place
Rye, New York 10580

SELLING AGENT: Ridgewood Management Corp.
11 Elm Place
Rye, New York 10580

DATED: May 10 , 1988

This Amendment Modifies and Supplements the terms of
the original Offering Plan dated November 27, 1987.



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK



THIS OFFERING PLAN HAS BEEN AMENDED. SEE INSERT UNDER FRONT COVER.

THIS IS AN EVICTION PLAN. SEE PAGE 21. NON-PURCHASING TENANTS OTHER THAN ELIGIBLE
SENIOR CITIZENS AND ELIGIBLE DISABLED PERSONS WILL BE EVICTED.

A PLAN FOR CONDOMINIUM OWNERSHIP
OF
PREMISES KNOWN AS

RYEVIEW CONDOMINIUM

100-110 Theodore Fremd Avenue
Rye, New York 10580

Total Purchase Price (26 Units—5 Garages)

Non-Tenant Purchasers. . ... ... ......... ... .. .... .. $4,788,900
Tenant Purchasers. . . ......... ... .. ... ... . .. ..., $3,421,500
Working Capital Fund* . ... .. ... ... ... ... ... .. .. $ 10,000
Reserve Fund™* . . ... . ... ... ... .. .. ... $ 20,000

*Subject to certain closing adjustments and/or depletion—see section of
the Plan entitled “*Sponsor Reserve and Working Capital Fund.”

SPONSOR: SELLING AGENT:
J&M ASSOCIATES RIDGEWOOD MANAGEMENT CORP.
11 Elm Place 300 East 42nd Street
Rye, New York 10580 New York, New York 10017

Approximate date of first offering: November 27, 1987.
This offering plan shall not be used after November 26, 1988 unless extended by amendment.
SEE PAGE V FOR SPECIAL RISKS TO PURCHASERS

THIS OFFERING PLAN IS THE ENTIRE OFFER TO SELL THESE CONDOMINIUM UNITS AND
GARAGE SPACES. NEW YORK LAW REQUIRES THE SPONSOR TO DISCLOSE ALL MATERIAL
INFORMATION IN THIS PLAN AND TO FILE THIS PLAN WITH THE NEW YORK STATE DEPARTMENT
OF LAW PRIOR TO SELLING OR OFFERING TO SELL ANY CONDOMINIUM UNIT. FILING WITH
THE DEPARTMENT OF LAW DOES NOT MEAN THAT THE DEPARTMENT OR ANY OTHER
GOVERNMENT AGENCY HAS APPROVED THIS OFFERING.
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PARTS I AND II OF THIS DOCUMENT TOGETHER CONSTITUTE THE
ENTIRE OFFERING PLAN ("THE PLAN"). ALL THE DOCUMENTS
REFERRED TO IN THIS PLAN ARE IMPORTANT AND SHOULD BE READ
CAREFULLY BY PROSPECTIVE PURCHASERS.

SPECIAL RISK FACTORS

Time of the Essence

The balance of the purchase price will be due no
earlier than a date which is at least thirty (30) days after the
date this Plan is declared effective. Purchaser will be given
written notice of the closing date at least fifteen (15) days in
advance of the closing of title to his Unit. TIME IS OF THE
ESSENCE. Failure to make payment of the balance due at the time
when a purchaser is called upon to make such payment may result
in loss of the down payment (not to exceed ten (10%) percent of
the Purchase Price) and cancellation of the Purchase Agreement.

Working Capital and Reserve Fund:

No representation is made that the Working Capital and
Reserve Fund will be adequate to cover current or future
expenses, including repairs or replacements, and if additional
funds are required over and above the Working Capital and Reserve
Fund, it may be necessary to increase Common Charges. See

"Sponsor Reserve and Working Capital Fund" for full discussitn.

CERTAIN DEFINITIONS

For convenience of presentation, general definitions of
certain of the terms used in Part I of the Plan are set forth
below.

"Appurtenant Interests" refers to the interest of a
Residential Unit Owner in (a) the Common Elements, (b) any Units
acquired by the Condominium Board or its designee on behalf of
all Unit Owners, or any proceeds of the sale or lease thereof and
(c) any other assets of the Condominium.

"By-Laws" refers to the By-Laws governing the opera-
tions of the Condominium, the form of which is set forth as
Document 6 in Part II of the Plan.

"Closing" refers to the time, place and procedure by
which fee title to a Unit is conveyed to a Purchaser pursuant to
a fully executed Purchase Agreement.

"Closing Date" refers to the date on which Closing
occurs.



"Common Charges" refers to the charges allocated and
assessed by the Board of Managers to the Unit Owners to meet the
Common Expenses.

"Common Elements" refers to the General Common Elements
and consists of all parts of the Property other than the Units.

- "Common Expenses" refers to costs and expenses incurred
or projected in connection with the repair, maintenance, replace-
ment, restoration and operation of, and any alteration, addition
or improvement to, the Common Elements.

"Common Interest" refers to the undivided interest
percentage of each Unit in the Common Elements.

"Condominium" refers to the Property, which, when
converted to the condominium form of ownership in accordance with
the provisions of the Plan, will be known as Ryeview Condominium.

"Condominium Act" refers to the New York Condominium
Act, as amended from time to time, presently found in the New
York Real Property Law Article 9-B.

"Board of Managers" refers to the elected Board of
Managers of the Condominium which is the governing body.

"Declaration" refers to the instrument creating the.
Condominium, as the same may be amended from time to time, the
form of which is set forth as Document Number S5 in Part II of the
Plan.

"Department of Law" refers to the New York State
Department of Law.

"Down Payment" refers to the money a person desiring to
purchase a Unit must deliver to Sponsor at the time such person
delivers his executed Purchase Agreement to Sponsor.

"Effective Date" refers to the date the Plan is
declared effective by Sponsor in accordance with the terms of the
Plan.

"Exclusive Purchase Period" refers to the first ninety
(90) days after the date the Plan is presented.

"First Unit Closing" refers to the date upon which
title to a Unit is first conveyed to a Purchaser under this Plan.

"Institutional Lender" refers to (a) a sav1ngs bank,
savings and loan association, bank or trust company, insurance
company, real estate investment trust or mortgage trust or (b) a
federal, state, municipal, teachers’ or union employee, welfare,
pension or retirement fund or system.

- vi -



"Land" refers to the Property, other than the Building
and the appurtenances thereto.

"Law" refers to the laws and ordinances of the United
States, and New York State, the rules, regulations, orders and
directions of any or all governmental, public, or quasi-public
authorities having jurisdiction over the Property and/or the
Condominium, and/or the direction of any public officer pursuant
to law.

"Offeree" refers to (a) Purchasers who have executed
and delivered Purchase Agreements for Units and are not in
default thereunder, (b) Unit Owners, and (c) any other person or
entity who, pursuant to law, is an offeree of the Plan.

"permitted Mortgage" refers to any mortgage of a ,
Unit(s) permitted to be placed thereon pursuant to the provisions
of the By-Laws. :

"Plan" refers to this offering plan for the conversion
of the Property to condominium ownership, as the same may be
amended from time to time.

"Presentation Date", "Date of Presentation", '"presen-
tation", "presented" and related words refer to the date by which
this Plan, or any amendment hereto, has been personally delis
vered, or the date which is five (5) days after the date of
mailing, to all tenants of Units in the Building following
acceptance of this Plan for filing by the Department of Law.

"property" refers to the Land, the Building and the
appurtenances thereto.

"purchaser" refers to a person(s) or entity(ies) named
in a Purchase Agreement which has been duly executed by such
person(s) or entity(ies) and accepted by Sponsor.

"purchase Agreement" refers to the agreement to
purchase a Unit pursuant to the Plan, the form of which is set
forth as Document Number 1 in Part II of the Plan.

"Recognized Lender" refers to a commercial bank,
savings bank, savings and loan association or insurance company
doing business in the State of New York.

"Residential Unit" or "Unit" refers to any of the
twenty-six (26) residential apartments or five (5) garage spaces
in the Building being offered for sale under this Plan and
designated as such in the Declaration, together with its
appurtenant Common Interest. ‘

"Rules and Requlations" refers to the rules and regula-
tions made in accordance with the By-Laws.

- vii -



"Special Assessments" refers to the charges allocated
and assessed by the Board of Managers to the Unit Owners, prorata
in accordance with their respective Common Interests (except as
otherwise provided in the Declaration or in the By-Laws).

"Sponsor" refers to J & M Associates having an office
at 11 Elm Place, Rye, New York.

"Tenant" refers to a bona fide tenant in occupancy on
the date the Plan is accepted for filing.

"Unit Owners" or "Residential Unit Owners" refers to,
collectively, the owners of the Units.

"Unsold Residential Units™ or "Unsold Units" refers to
any Units at the time owned by Sponsor or its designee(s).
Sponsor’s designees may include purchasers purchasing for invest-
ment.

- viii -
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_/SEZZ INSTRUCTICH SzZZIT

) =T OW S-S J/LRSL SLTOBE CLOMPLZo-NG THLS G
DISARLED PERSON ELICTICN ZCRM

NAME:

ADDRESS: APT. %

I elect nect to purchase my apartment under the oiferi
plan fcr ccnversicn cf the building te a cccperative cr
ccndeminium.

I certify that:

1. I am a tenant ¢f the apartment listed abcve.

2. I have an impairment which results Izcm

anatcmical, physiclegical cr psychclcgical
conditicns (cther than an addicticn tc
alecchel, gambling, or any centrelled
substance) which (1) is demcnstrable by
medically acceptable clinical and
labecratery diagnestic technigues, (2) is

- ] expected tc be permanent, and (3) prevengs
me frem engaging in any substantial
gainful emplcyment. )

I unders+and that this disabled perscn elacticn dces
net preclude me £rcm purchasing my apartment at a later dacs.

The abcve sta-sments ars tIue &< the Dest cI vy
kncwlecdge and understanding.

SIGNED:
- % -
Swern tco/aZfirmed befcre :
me this day of
, L38 .
NCTARY =U3LiC
Receist ackncwledged, and cooy given &< tenanc.
Scenscz/acgent: Dace: .

TCRM SHE-2 (Rev. 3/33)

_ix—



State law precvides that tenants whe ars "E I
DISABLED PERSONS" cannct be evicted because thev did net
their apartnents.

TO QUALIFY AS AN "ELIGIBLE DISARLED PERSCN,"
(1) Ycu must be a tenant, (2) ycu must have a disability as
defined cn the reverse side cf this fcrm, and (3) ycu must
ccmplete this form and return it to the spenscr within 60 days.

Whe Is Ccnsidered A Tenant?

A tenant fcr purposes c¢f this form is a perscn whe has
signed a lease, the husband cor wife cf a perscn whe has signed a
lease, cr anycne else legally and permanently living in the
apartment.

This Fecrm Must Be Returned Te The Socenscer

If ycu were disabled when ycu first received the

cffering plan, you must ccomplete and return this f£crm tc the

spenscr nct mere than 60 days later. Hewever, if ycur disabilit:
first cccurred after you received the cffering plan, then this
electicn may be made up tc 60 days after the disability first
cccurred (unless after the first 60 days but befere ycur electic:
the spcnscr has accepted a written agreement tc purchase ycur

apartment frcm a "becna fide" purchaser). .

Return the form either by delivering it tc the spcnscr
the spcnscr's selling agent at the lccaticn specified in the pla:
by mailing it by certified cr registered mail, rezurn raceipt
reguested, tc the spcnscr cr selling agent at the address specitl
the plan.

WARNING: FAILURE TO RETURN THIS FORM

WITHIN 60 DAYS COULD ULTIMATILY
RESULT IN YOUR BEING EZVICTED!
-Be sure tc sign the fcrm befcre a Nectary Pukblic-
" THE SPONSOR MAY DISPUTE YQUR ELIGIBILITY

The law allcws the spcnscr tc dispute vcour eligibilisw
as an "eligible disablad perscn.” 1In crder tc dc s, the scensc
must apply tc the Depar<tment ¢f Law fcor an eligibilizy
detarminaticn within 3C days ater the spenscr recelvas vcur
elacticn form. In case ¢ a dispute, the Department -I Law nas |
30 days tc dezermine veur eligibilisy., If veur eligibilisy is
disputed, ycu will be nctifisd bv the Cepartment ci lLaw and give
the czoTertunicy te delfand wveur elicikili=vy,
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TGSTRUCT N SEZET ON FEVELRSL BEFORE COMPLETIN “HIS

SENIOR CITIZEN ELZICTION FORM*

NAME:

ADDRESS: APT. #

I elect not to purchase my apartment under the offering
plan for conversion of the building to a cccperative or
condominium.

I certify that:

1. I am a tenant of the apartment listed above.

2. I was 62 vears of age or older on the date the
Department of Law accepted the offering plan for
filing.

T understand that this senior citizen election does not
preclude me from purchasing my apartment at a later date.

The above statements are true to the best oL my .
knowledge and understanding.

Sworn to/affirmed before
me this day of
, 168 .

NOTARY PUBLIC

Receipt ackncwledged and cop iven to %tenant.
T J 2Y g

Sconsor/agent: Date:

TFor use .o lew York C.tyv, and municipalities in Lew York State
which have adcpted GBL §352-e(2a).

TORM SE-1 (Rev. 7/83)




INSTRUCTIONE FCR CCM TING SEWIOR CITIZEN ELECTICH FORM

T

"

State law prcvides that tenants who are "eligib
senior citizens" cannct be evicted because they did not ¢
their apartments.

TO QUALIFY AS AN "ELIGIBLE SENIOR CITIZEXN,"
(1) you must be a tenant, (2) you must have been 62 years ci ag
or oclcéer cn the date the Department cf Law "accepted the cZfer:
plan for f£iling," and (3) vou must complete this election form
and return it to the sponsor within 60 days of the date vou fi:x
received the.offering nlan.

Who Is Considered A Tenant? -

A tenant for purposes oI this form is a pe*son wno ha
signed a lease, the husband or wife of a person who has signed
lease, or anycne else legally and permanently living in the
apartment.

Date Qffering Plan Was Accepted For Filing

The approximate date the Department of Law "accepted
the F’e*lng plan for filing"” is printed on the front cover of
the offering plan. You must have been 62 years of age or older
on the filing date to qualify. .

Return This Form Within 60 Davs

You must ccmplete-and return this fcrm within 60 days
of the date veu first received the cffering plan. Return t
form either bv delivering it to the sgonsor or the sgensor's
selling agent a%t the locaticn specified in the plan, or by
mailing it by certified or registered mail, return resceipt
regquested, to the sponsor or selling agent at the address
speciiied in the plan.

WARNING: FAILURE TC RETURN THIS TCPM
WITHIN 60 DAYS COQULD ULTIMATELY
PESULT IN YCUR BEING EVICTEL!

0

-3e sure to sign the Zorm befcre a Notary Public-

THZ SPCONSCR MAY DISPUTE YOUR ZLIGIZSILITY

- - - . - - - - - — - - -

The law allcws the sponscz tc édispute your el
as an "eligible senicr citizen. In order %o dc¢ so, &t
must apply to the Department of Law for an eligibilicy
determinaticn within 30 days after the sponscr receives vour
electicn Zorm. 1In case of a dispute, the Derartment c¢I Law has
30 days to determine yeur eligibility. If your eligibiliwcy
disputed, vou will be nctified bv the Department oI law and gix
the opportunity to cdefend vour eligibility.

- xii -




OFFERING PLAN
FOR
RYEVIEW CONDOMINIUM
PART I

INTRODUCTION

The Offering Plan

J & M Associates with offices at 11 Elm Place, Rye, New
York (referred to as the "Sponsor") presents herewith an Offering
Plan (the "Plan") to set forth all the material terms to convert
to condominium ownership the land, buildings and appurtenances
thereto located at 100-110 Theodore Fremd Avenue, Rye, New York
10580. The land and buildings hereinafter sometimes referred to
as the "Property", were acquired by the Sponsor in December,
1985.

The Plan may be amended from time to time when an
amendment is filed with the New York State Department of Law.
All such amendments will be served on purchasers and tenants by
either personal delivery or regular or certified mail.

The Plan is presented in two parts which together
constitute the entire Offering. Part I sets forth a general-
description of the conversion and the Condominium. Part II *
contains the basic documents necessary to create the Condominium
and to otherwise effectuate the provisions of the Plan. Also
included in Part II is an engineer’s report describing the
present condition of the Property. All of these documents are
important and should be carefully read by prospective purchasers
of Units under the Plan. Prospective purchasers are advised to
review the Plan with their own attorneys or other competent
advisors before agreeing to purchase a Unit.

The Sponsor has elected to present the Plan in
compliance with the requirements of that part of Section 352-eee
of the General Business Law of the State of New York ("GBL")
governing eviction plans and conversion of residential apartments
to condominium ownership. Accordingly, under existing law, a
bona fide tenant in occupancy of an apartment (other than an
eligible senior citizen or disabled person) will have the right
to remain in occupancy of his or her apartment, even if it is
sold to a tenant residing in another Unit or to a non-tenant, for
a period of three (3) years from the date the Plan is declared
effective, as long as such non-purchasing bona fide tenant (other
an an eligible senior citizen or disabled person) is not in
default of his or her obligations under his or her lease or
tenancy. In the event, however, that a tenant in occupancy of a
Unit is not a bona fide tenant, that tenant may not have the
right to continue in occupancy of the Residential Unit following
the expiration of his or her lease. Present bona fide tenants in



occupancy are under no obligation to purchase their Units. See
"General Rights of Existing Tenants" for a full discussion.

The Sponsor may declare the Plan effective when
Purchase Agreements have been executed and delivered by and are
in effect with respect to, the units of 51% of the bona fide
tenants in occupancy of all Units on the date the Plan is
accepted for filing by the New York State Department of Law,
excluding for the purposes of determining the number of bona fide
tenants in occupancy on such date, eligible senior citizens and
eligible disabled persons and at least 35% of all bona fide
tenants in occupancy of all Units in all buildings at the time
the Plan is declared effective, including eligible senior
citizens and disabled persons. Therefore, Sponsor may own a
number of Unsold Units and will be obligated to pay the Common
Charges for all these Unsold Units. See "Effective Date of
Plan", "Closing of Title" and "Obligations of Sponsor" for a full
discussion.

The Condominium

The Condominium will be known as Ryeview Condominium.
It will be organized to comply with and be subject to Article 9-B
of the Real Property Law of the State of New York, as amended
("Condominium Act").

The ownership of a condominium unit is similar it many
respects to the ownership of a private home. Each Unit Owner
owns title to his Unit, is entitled to exclusive possession and
is privileged to mortgage his Unit or not, as he sees fit, and in
such amount, as he chooses. He may obtain a first mortgage from
a bank, trust company, insurance company, savings and loan
association, pension fund or other lender acceptable to Sponsor.
Each Unit is separate and not subject to a mortgage on other
Units. .

A Unit Owner may sell or lease his Unit to anyone
without restriction or limitation. He will be solely responsible
for the maintenance of his Unit and he may decorate the interior
of his Unit in any way that he desires, subject to compliance
with the Declaration and By-Laws (and the Rules and Regulations
adopted in accordance therewith), and will be solely responsible
for the cost of maintenance and interior repairs to his Unit
after Closing. Each Unit will be taxed as a separate tax lot for
real estate tax purposes, and Unit Owners will be not be respon-
sible for the payment of, nor will his Unit be subjected to, any
lien arising from the non-payment of taxes on other Units. 1In
the opinion of Cassin, Cassin & Joseph, counsel to Sponsor, under
present income tax laws a Unit owner, substantially like a home
owner, may deduct from his income, for Federal and New York State
income tax purposes, his real estate taxes and the interest paid
on any mortgage placed upon his Unit. See "Counsel’s Tax
Opinion" for a full discussion.



In addition, a Unit Owner also owns, in common with the
owners of all other Units, an undivided interest in all parts of
the Property other than the Units ("Common Elements"). As a Unit
owner, he will have the right to use the Common Elements and to
vote annually for the election of the members of the Board of
Managers, who will supervise the property and manage the affairs
of the Condominium.

The Board of Managers will assess against every Unit
Owner, in proportion of his interest in the Common Elements,
charges for the maintenance of the Common Elements and for the
operating costs of the Property ("Common Expenses") See Schedules
A and B. Each Unit Owner will pay for all electricity which he
consumes within his own Unit, the charges for which will be
separately metered.

Water charges will be paid for by the Board of Managers
as a Common Expense, together with the cost of repairs, replace-
ments and improvements of the Common Elements, and oil for heating
of all the buildings. On the other hand, repairs, replacements,
improvements and decorations to individual Units will be under the
control and at the expense of the Unit Owner.

THE PURCHASE OF A CONDOMINIUM UNIT HAS MANY SIGNIFICANT
LEGAL AND FINANCIAL CONSEQUENCES AND MAY BE ONE OF THE MOST
IMPORTANT FINANCIAL TRANSACTIONS OF YOUR LIFE. THE ATTORNEY
GENERAL STRONGLY URGES YOU TO READ THIS OFFERING PLAN CAREFULLY
AND TO CONSULT AN ATTORNEY BEFORE SIGNING AN AGREEMENT TO PURCHASE
A CONDOMINIUM.

Offering of Units for Sale

: Sponsor hereby offers twenty-six (26) residential
apartments and five (5) garage spaces for sale under the Plan
(collectively called "Units"). Garage spaces are only offered for
sale to purchasers of residential apartments. Each tenant and/or
purchaser is entitled to an outdoor parking space and thus tenants
who currently occupy an indoor space will be required to vacate
such space upon expiration of the lease term. As set forth above,
the Plan is offered as an Eviction Plan. Sponsor intends to
continue an active sales program with respect to all Units that
are available for occupancy.* The initial purchase prices

*Sponsor reserves the right to exclude any of the Units from the
offering under the Plan and retain them for its own account, other
than those Units occupied by bona fide tenants who elect to
purchase during the first ninety (90) days after the Plan is
presented. Any or all of those excluded Units may be used by
Sponsor for any lawful purpose, including without limitation, the
leasing or renting of all or any of those excluded Units for such
rents and on such terms and conditions as Sponsor and any tenant
may agree upon, provided that such rents, terms and conditions are
in accordance with the applicable rent laws. Any retained Units
may be subsequently sold without prior amendment to the Plan,
unless required by law or regulation.

- 3 -



and estimated Common Charges for each of the aforementioned
apartments and garage spaces are listed in Schedule A.

- THE PURCHASE PRICES OF THE UNITS HAVE BEEN SET BY THE
SPONSOR AND ARE NOT SUBJECT TO APPROVAL BY ANY GOVERNMENTAL

AGENCY.

During the first ninety (90) days following the date
this Plan is presented ("Exclusive Purchase Period"), each bona
fide tenant in occupancy on the date this Plan is accepted for
filing shall have the exclusive right to purchase his Unit at the
reduced tenant purchase price set forth in Schedule A. The total
cash payment payable by bona fide tenants in occupancy at the
time of presentation of this Plan may not be increased during the
Exclusive Purchase Period. Upon expiration of the exclusive
ninety (90) day period, bona fide tenants will no longer have the
exclusive right to purchase their respective Units at the reduced
tenant purchase price which shall be deemed increased to the
non-tenant purchase price. The right of each bona fide tenant to
purchase the Unit at the reduced purchase price is assignable or
transferable but such assignment is subject to the provisions of
the Plan. See "Assignment of Purchase Agreements".

The submission of an application or a Purchase Agree-
ment for a Unit to Sponsor by a prospective Purchaser does not
mean that Sponsor has approved the prospective Purchaser for the
purchase of the specific Unit. Sponsor shall not be obligated to
sell a Unit to any prospective Purchaser until an orlglnal
counterpart of the Purchase Agreement signed by Sponsor is
returned to the prospective Purchaser. Sponsor has the right to
reject any prospective Purchaser (other than an existing bona
fide tenant who is not in default under his lease and who signed
and delivered a Purchase Agreement during the Exclusive Purchase
Period) without cause or explanation, provided that the rejection
is not based upon sex, race, creed, color, national origin,
ancestry or other ground proscribed by law.

The estimated Common Charges for each Unit for the
first year of operation of the Property as a condominium are set
forth in Schedule A. Audited statements of operating income and
expenses before depreciation, interest and amortization of
mortgage expenses during a period which the Property was operated
as a rental property, are set forth in Schedule C. When the
financial statements for the most recent year become available,
if necessary the Plan will be amended to include such statements.

In addition to the payment of Common Charges, each Unit

Owner will be responsible for the payment of the real estate

taxes (which upon-~closing will be separately assessed against his
Unlt), interest and amortization payments on any mortgage cover-
1ng his Unit, personal liability and property insurance pertaln—
ing to his Unlt and charges for electricity and gas consumed in
his Unit. Schedule A sets forth estimates of the amount of real
estate taxes which will be payable with respect to each Unit

- 4 -



during the first year of operation of the Property as a
Condominium. See Footnotes to Schedule A for a full discussion.

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY

The Property consists of 2 two-story brick buildings
with full basements containing a total of twenty-six (26) resi-
dential apartments. The parcel also contains a one-story garage
structure with space for five (5) cars. These garages are also
offered for sale as they become available. There is presently
outside parking for 33 cars. One outside space will accompany
each Unit. Indoor spaces are offered for sale to purchasers of
residential apartments on a first-come, first-served basis. Pur-
chasers of garage spaces shall be required to submit a Garage
Parking Election Form attached to the Purchase Agreement to the
Selling Agent by Certified Mail, Return Receipt Requested and the
post office mailing date will determine which Purchaser is first
in time to submit such Election Form.

The Unit

The Units consist of the area enclosed horizontally by
the unexposed faces of the plaster/sheetrock at the exterior
walls of the building and the unexposed face of the plaster/
sheetrock at the Unit side of the plaster/sheetrock dividing the
Units from other Units including the plaster/sheetrock. Verti-
cally the Unit consists of the space between the underside of the
finished floor, including the finished floor (rugs, tile and wood
as the case may be) and the lower face of the plaster/sheetrock
ceiling, doors and windows which open from a Unit shall be deemed
part of the Unit.

The -Common Elements

The Common Elements consist of the entire Property,
including all parts of the building and improvements thereon
other than the Units and will include without limitations the
following:

(a) The land on which the building is erected, toge-
ther with all easements, rights and privileges
appurtenant thereto.

(b) All foundations, columns, girders, beams, sup-
ports, those portions of the exterior wall beyond
the outside face of the sheetrock, all basement
and crawl space, those portions of the walls and
partitions dividing Units located between the
unexposed faces of both sheetrock walls enclosing
the Units, those portions of the ceilings from the
lower face of the sheetrock to the lower face of
the finished floor of the Unit above, but not
including the lower face of the ceilings of the
top floors above the lower face of the sheetrock,
roofs and basements not within the Unit;

-5 =



(c) All land, lawns, gardens, community facilities,
and outdoor parking, driveway and other improved
and unimproved areas not within the Unit:

(d) All central and appurtenant installations and
facilities outside the Units for services such as
- power, light, telephone and water:;

(e) All sewer pipes:;

(£) All other apparatus and installations now existing
or hereafter constructed in the buildings for
common use or necessary or convenient to the
existence, safety or maintenance of the Property.

LOCATION AND ARFA INFORMATION

The Property is located in the City of Rye, County of
Westchester. It fronts on Theodore Fremd Avenue and is approxi-
mately one quarter mile from the Purchase Street downtown area
and one half mile from the railroad station.

The City has its own police and fire departments.
Public schools are under the Rye School District. Road
maintenance, sanitation and water are furnished through th¢
town. City taxes are assessed and collected to pay for these
services. The Property is zoned for multi-family residential
occupancy. -
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NOTES TO SCHEDULE A

(1) The percentage interest of each Unit in the Common
Elements is based upon space, the location of the Unit and the
additional factors of value relative to other space in the
Condominium, the uniqueness of the Unit, the availability of
Common Elements for exclusive or shared use and the overall
dimensions of the particular Unit. These allocations are made
pursuant to the terms of the Condominium Act.

(2) The terms and conditions pursuant to which the
reduced purchase price set forth in this column are offered are
more particularly described in "Exclusive Right of Tenants to
Purchase."

(3) The prices in this column are for Purchasers other
than bona fide tenants in occupancy and for bonafide tenants in
occupancy upon the expiration of the Exclusive Purchase Period.
See "Exclusive Right of Tenants to Purchase" for full discussion.

Purchase prices to bona fide tenants are subject to
change. All publicly advertised changes in purchase prices,
general changes in purchase prices and all across the board
increases in purchase prices may only be made by a duly filed
amendment to the Plan. See "Changes in Price and Units." There
can be no increase in the prices offered to bona fide tenantgs

during the Exclusive Purchase Period and any extension thereof.

In addition to the payment of the Purchase Price, each
Purchaser will be responsible for the payment of certain closing
costs and expenses at the time of Closing, such as legal fees,
title insurance premiums and recording charges. If Purchaser
obtains a mortgage loan, Purchaser will also be responsible for
the payment of additional closing costs and expenses relating to
such loan. Finally, the apportionment of certain charges
relating to the Unit at the time of the closing of title will be
reflected as adjustments to the Purchase Price. See "Closing
Costs, Expenses and Adjustments" on page 41 for full discussion.

(4) The figures are based on the Estimated Income and
Expenses for the First Year of Condominium Operation (2/1/88 -
1/31/89) set forth in Schedule B. 1In addition to these estimated
payments, each Unit Owner will be responsible for mortgage
payments under a loan or loans, if any, obtained by him to
finance the purchase of his Unit, the cost of electricity and gas
supplied to his Unit, which will be separately metered and will
be payable directly to the utility company, real estate and other
taxes with respect to his Unit, personal liability and property
insurance pertaining to his Unit, and the cost of interior
repairs and decorations to his Unit. It should be noted that as
costs rise due to inflation or other factors, maintenance charges
will increase.



(5) The estimated monthly real estate tax figures are
based upon the assumption that the assessed valuation of the
Property shall remain in the total amount of $109,050.00 and on
the further assumption that tax rates shall increase by approxi-
mately twelve (12%) percent. However, there is no assurance, and
Sponsor makes no representation, that the said assessed valuation
of the Property shall be in the total amount of $109,050.00 on
future assessment rolls, or that the tax rates will be as pro-
jected herein. Real estate taxes may be taken as a tax deduction
when filing a tax return with the Internal Revenue Service. See
"Counsel’s Tax Opinion" for full discussion.

Real Property Law Section 339-y provides, among other
things, with respect to condominiums, that each Unit and its Com-
mon Interest shall be deemed to be a parcel and shall be subject
to separate assessment and taxation. However, in no event shall
the aggregate of the assessment of the Units plus their Common
Interests exceed the total valuation of the Property were the Pro-
perty assessed as a parcel. Until such time as each Unit and its
Common Interest receives a separate assessment, the Board of Mana-
gers shall pay all real estate taxes for the Property and shall
allocate the cost thereof among all the Unit Owners in proportion
to the Common Interest in each Unit.

The property is designated: Sheet 146.06, Block 2, Lot
29. The assessed valuation has been: .

Assessed Value

Land 37,750
Improvements 71,300
Total $109,050

The property is taxed by the City of Rye. Rates per
$1,000 assessed value and actual amounts billed are reflected
below:

Type Fiscal 1985 1986

-Rate  _Amount ~Rate = __Amount
County and
Sewer 1/1 50.71 $ 5,529.92 58.195 $ 6,346.16
School 7/1 123.36 13,452.40 131.31 14,319.36
City 1/1 47.11 5.,137.34 48.47 5,285.65
TOTALS $24,119.66 $25,951.17
Percentage Increase 7.60%

An increase of 12% to $29,065 is projected in Schedule A.
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CHANGES IN PRICES AND UNITS

Changes in Unit Price

The prices for Units are listed in Schedule A. These
prices have been set by the Sponsor and are not subject to
approval by a governmental agency. The estimated Common Charges
and the estimated real estate taxes for each Unit for the first
year of operation of the Property as a Condominium are also set
forth in Schedule A.

The Sponsor reserves the right, except with respect to
bona fide tenants in occupancy during the initial ninety (90) day
Exclusive Purchase Period, to change the amount of the Purchase
Price as shown in Schedule A, and to change the terms of the sale
and the manner of payment for a Unit. The Plan must be amended
to reflect (i) a general price change affecting a line or lines
of Units (as opposed to an isolated price change) or (ii) price
to be advertised, or (iii) an increase in price to an individual
purchaser.

Following the ninety (90) day Exclusive Purchase
Period, the prices are negotiable and as long as it does not
constitute a discriminatory inducement, the Sponsor may enter
into an agreement with an individual purchaser to sell one or
more Units at prices lower than those set forth in Schedule A
without prior notice and without amendment to the Plan. .

IF THE PLAN IS AMENDED PRIOR TO THE FIRST CLOSING OF
TITLE AND THE AMENDED TERMS ARE MORE FAVORABLE THAN PREVIOUSLY
OFFERED, BONA FIDE TENANTS WILL AUTOMATICALLY BE AFFORDED THE
BENEFIT OF THE MORE FAVORABLE TERMS.

Change of Size and Layout of Units

In order to meet the particular requirements of prospec-
tive purchasers, or for any other reason, Sponsor reserves the
right to change the size and interior layout of apartment Units
by the combination of two or more Units for which Purchase
Agreements have not been executed by a Purchaser or with respect
to which a Purchaser is in default. Sponsor further reserves the
right to divide any such Units into two or more Units. The
combination or division made by the Sponsor may result in a
varied number of total Units than described in this Offering Plan
but the Declaration and all amendments thereto shall reflect the
resulting number of Units. No change will be made in the size or
number of Units, their respective percentage interest in the
Common Elements, or in the size or quantity of the Common
Elements, without amendment to the Plan and the Declaration.

Once the Declaration is recorded, no change may be made
in the number of Units or in the number of rooms within a Unit,
nor may the size of any Unit be changed, by subdivision or
combination or alteration of boundary walls as described above,

_ll_



or otherwise, nor may the Common Interest of any Unit be changed,
unless the Declaration is amended and the amendment duly
recorded. To the extent permitted by law, however, the Common
Interest appurtenant to any Unit shall in no event be changed
solely as a result of an owner or owners of any two or more
Units, which Units are the only Units serviced or benefited by
any Common Elements adjacent to such Units, using that portion of
the Common Elements as if it were a part of the Units. As more
particularly provided in the Declaration Sponsor or its designee
or the owner of an Unsold Unit will have the right itself to so
amend the Declaration, to the extent required. Unless an
affected purchaser consents, no material change will be made in
unit size, layout, or percentage of common interest if a purchase
agreement has been executed and delivered to the Sponsor for that
Unit and the purchaser is not in default.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, nc material
change will be made in the size or quality of Common Elements
unless Purchasers not in default under their Purchase Agreements,
receive a right to rescind for a period of fifteen (15) days
after they are given written notice of such change. 1If a
Purchaser elects to rescind, his downpayment will be returned
promptly by the Sponsor.

BALANCE OF THIS PAGE HAS BEEN LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY
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SCHEDULE B
ESTIMATED INCOME AND EXPENSES FOR THE
FIRST YEAR OF OPERATION AS A CONDOMINIUM
2/1/88 - 1/31/89

ESTIMATED INCOME:

Common Charges - $69,024
TOTAL INCOME $69,024 (1)

ESTIMATED EXPENSES:

Heat and Hot Water ' . $16,071 (2)
Utilities (Electric and Gas) 5,095 (3)
Water 4,111 (4)
Payroll and Benefits 5,400 (5)
Repairs, Maintenance & Supplies 8,000 (6)
Insurance 7,860 (7)
Management 18,000 ' (8)
Legal and Accounting 1,200 ° (9)
Contingency Reserve - 5% 3,287 (10)
TOTAL ESTIMATED EXPENSES iggﬁg%é
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NOTES TO SCHEDULE B

(1) Total Income ($69,024) - The total income is

exclusive of any interest income that may be earned by the
condominium from investment of the Reserve and Working Capital
Funds. It is expected that all or part of these funds will be
expended during the first or subsequent years of condominium
operation. Accordingly, such interest income cannot be precisely
determined and has not been included in the estimated receipts
for the first year of operation.

(2) Heat and Hot Water (Budget $16,071) - Heat and hot
water for the complex is provided by two boilers and burners
equipped to burn #2 oil. Current usage and cost for the most
recent three (3) years has been:

Period Gallons Total Cost
1984 15,728 $18,165
1985 14,156 15,933
1986 13,941 11,229

The budgeted figure is based upon projected consumption of
approximately 15,453 gallons at $1.04 per gallon or $16,071 which
represents a ten (10%) percent increase over the average quantity
of fuel purchased for the prior two (2) years. The price per
gallon is that mandated by the New York State Attorney General’s
Office July, 1986 guidelines.

(3) Utilities (Budget $5,095) - Apartments are
individually metered for electric and cooking gas consumption
which is paid for by the occupant. The budget provides for
lighting of interior and exterior common areas including laundry
room dryers. The usage and cost for the most recent three (3)
years was as follows:

(Elec) Rwhrs Amount (Gas)CCF Amount
1984 18,323 $3,453 190 $293
1985 16,585 3,049 122 222
1986 19,910 3,752 168 324

The budget provides for a 25% increase over the com-
bined 1986 dollar amount.

(4) Water (Budget $4,111) - The budget for water is
based upon actual costs billed. Water charges for the most
recent three (3) year period were:

Period Cost
1984 $3,028
1985 3,414
1986 4,769
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This estimate of water and sewer rents for the first year of
condominium operation includes a provision for approximately ten
(10%) percent above the average paid for the previous three (3)
years or $4,111.

(5) Payroll and Benefits (Budget $5,400) - The staff
shall consist of one non-resident part-time superintendent who
will be paid $450 per month. The budgeted figure contemplates
this employment during the first year of condominium operation.
The projected salary of the employee meets the state minimum wage
laws. There are no fringe benefits provided to the non-resident
superintendent.

(6) Repair, Maintenance & Supplies (Budget $8,000) -
Estimated expenses are based on normal maintenance and repairs of
exterior and interior common areas, and includes supplies
consisting of cleaning materials, lubricants, hooks, bulbs for
replacement in public fixtures, general and hardware supplies,
periodic painting of public halls and common areas, and the
general upkeep and maintenance of the Building. The budget
figure of $8,000 is allocated as follows:

Landscaping $3,000
Painting 2,000
Roof 1,500 .
Boiler 750 .
Miscellaneous 750

The unit owner is responsible for repairs and maintenance for the
apartment owned including appliances.

(7) Insurance (Budget ($7.860) - The following
insurance coverage will be provided through Martin Insurance
Agency, Rye, New York:

$1,250,000 All Risk on buildings at full replacement
($1,000 deductible);

$1,000,000 Broad Form Comprehensive General Liability
including Directors and Officers Liability
and Errors and Omissions for the Board of
Managers and Managing Agent;

$1,000,000 Umbrella Liability:
$ 250,000 Loss of Rents;
$1,250,000 Steam Boiler; and

Worker’s Compensation and Disability as
required by law.
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This coverage does not include claims for personal
injury or property damage resulting from occurrences in
individual Units, nor does it include coverage of persocnal
property of Unit Owners. Therefore, each Unit Owner should
consider the desirability of obtaining insurance, at his or her
own cost, covering among other items (i) fire and casualty losses
to the contents of the Unit and any replacements, additions,
upgraded fixtures and improvements therein, (ii) personal
property, and (iii) liability for personal injury as a result of
occurrences within the Unit. ‘

(8) Management (Budget $18,000) - Management is to be
performed by Ridgewood Management Corp. under a two-year contract
at an initial rate of $ 1,500 per month or $18,000 per year.

The Agreement will be automatically renewed from year to year
unless terminated on sixty (60) days prior written notice. See
subsection entitled "Management Agreement." The managing agent
is a corporation whose sole shareholder is Joseph M. Cassin, who
is also a principal of the Sponsor of this Plan. The fee
contemplated is average for the current market.

(9) Legal and Accounting (Budget $1,200) - A
substantial portion of the budget item will be used for auditing
fees in connection with preparation of the condominium Federal
and State income tax returns. A small allowance is provided for
miscellaneous legal services in the event the Board of Managers
decides to engage an attorney. .

(10) Contingency Reserve (Budget S$3 287) - The reserve
for contingencies is intended to provide for unforeseen increases
in operating costs, or other purposes, as determined from time to
time by the Board of Managers. This reserve is separate and
‘distinct from the Reserve and Working Capital Funds. The
projected operating budget does not include any interest income
that may be reserved on the Reserve Fund nor does it make any
provision for net closing adjustments that may be due to Sponsor.
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

SCHMIDT & PISCITELL 140 East 45th Street, New York, New York 10017 (212) 986-4300

The Partners
J & M Associates

We have examined the statement of operations of )
100-110 Theodore Fremd Avenue, Rye, New York for the
period from January 1, 1986 tu November 30, 1986

and for the year ended December 31, 19R5. Our
examination was made in accordance with gonerally
accepted auditing standards and, accordingly,
included tests of the accounting rccords and such
other auditing procedures as we considered

necessary in the circumstances.

In our opinton, such financial statement presents
fairly the results of operations of 100 Theodore
Fremd Avenue for the period from January I, 1986 to
November 30, 1986 and for the vear ended December 31,
1985 in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles.

QR x N\

December 19, 1986



100-110 THEODORE
RYE, NEW YORK

AVYENUE

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

FROM JANUARY 1,

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

Revenues
Rentauls
Other

Expenses
Salaries
Payroll taxes
Insurance
Real estate taxes

1386 to NOVEMBER 30,

Water and scwer charges

Electricity and gas
Fuel

Commissions
Manugement servicves

Repairs and matntenunc

Building

[

Appliance replacement

Painting

Grounds

General
Advertising
Professiovnul fees
Supplies
Miscelluneous

Income before interest,
depreciation and amort

The nCcompany 1oy
ol thiw

fzat ton

- 20

Notes
Financial

19856

tntepral part
statement

1986 AND

1985

“
[§8)
o
w
[ 8]
o



SPECIAL RIGHTS OF ELIGIBLE SENIOR CITIZENS
AND ELIGIBLE DISABLED PERSONS

Pursuant to GBL Section 352-eee, in the event the
Property is -converted to condominium ownership, eviction
proceedings will not be commenced against non-purchasing tenants
who are sixty-two (62) years of age or older on the date the Plan
is declared effective, or Disabled Persons who meet certain
statutory eligibility requirements discussed below, or the
spouses of such eligible Senior Citizens and Disabled Persons.

Although there is no statutory requirement, the Sponsor
advises and requests that each tenant who believes he will become
an eligible Senior Citizen within twelve (12) months from the
date the Plan is filed, file the election form as set forth in
the beginning of the Plan. The failure to return the form shall
not diminish any rights granted to Senior Citizens by law. A
Senior Citizen may, of course, purchase his apartment at any time
even if an election form has not been previously submitted.

In accordance with GBL Section 352-eee the term
"Eligible Disabled Persons" shall mean a non-purchasing tenant or
the spouse of a non-purchasing tenant who:

(a) has an impairment which results from anatomical,
physiological or psychological conditions, other than addiction
to alcohol, gambling, or any controlled substance, which are*
demonstrable by medically acceptable clinical and laboratory
diagnostic techniques, and which are expected to be permanent and
which prevent the tenant from engaging in any substantial gainful
employment on the filing date; and

(b) has elected not to purchase his Unit within sixty
(60) days from the filing date by completing the Disabled Person
election form in the front of the Plan, having it notarized and
personally delivering it to the named Selling Agent at 11 Third
Street, Rye, New York 10580 by mailing it certified or registered
mail, return receipt requested to the named Selling Agent at the
above address. If the disability first occurs after the Plan has
been accepted for filing, then the aforementioned election may be
made within sixty (60) days following the onset of such
disability unless the Sponsor has accepted a written Purchase
Agreement from a bona fide Purchaser during the period subsequent
to sixty (60) days following the filing date but prior to such
election.

An election not to purchase shall not preclude an
Eligible Disabled Person from subsequently purchasing his Unit.
The Eligible Disabled Person may rescind the election at any
time. ‘ :

The protections given to Senior Citizens and Eligible
Disabled Persons under GBL Section 352-eee include the following:
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(a) No eviction proceeding will be commenced at any
time against either non-purchasing tenants who are sixty-two (62)
years of age or older on the date the Plan is declared effective
or Eligible Disabled Persons who have elected not to purchase, or
their spouses, except that such proceedings may be commenced for
non-payment of rent, illegal use or occupancy of the Unit,
refusal of reasonable access to the owner or a similar breach of
his obligations to the owner of his Unit. This restriction will
apply notwithstanding the fact that the owner seeks the dwelling
Unit for the use and occupancy of himself or his family.

(b) Ellglble Senior Citizens and Eligible Disabled
Persons who reside in Units subject to government regulatlons as
to rentals and continued occupancy shall continue to be subject
thereto.

(c) The rentals of Ellglble Senior Citizens and
Eligible Disabled Persons who reside in dwelling units not
subject to government regulations as to rentals and continued
occupancy and Ellglble Senior Citizens and Eligible Disabled
Persons who reside in dwelling units with respect to which
government regulation as to rentals and continued occupancy is
eliminated or becomes inapplicable after the Plan has become
effective, shall not be subject to unconscionable increases
beyond ordinary rentals for comparable apartments during the
period of their occupancy. .

(d) The rights granted under the Plan to Eligible
Senior Citizens and Eligible Disabled Persons may not. be abro-
gated or reduced regardless of any expiration of or amendment to
GBL Section 352-eee.

(e) Each Purchaser, including a Purchaser of Units
occupied by an Eligible Senior Citizen or an Eligible Disabled
Person shall be bound by the provisions of the GBL and the
representations of the Sponsor stated in the Plan. Each
Purchaser will be required to represent in writing to the Board
of Managers at the time of acquisition that the purchase is
subject to all the rights of the Eligible Senior Citizen or
Eligible Disabled Person occupying the apartment and that the
Purchaser, his successors and assigns shall continue to be bound
as long as such occupancy continues.

The Sponsor may dispute the election by a tenant to be
an Eligible Disabled Person by applying to the Department of Law
for a determination of the tenant’s eligibility within thirty
(30) days of the receipt of the election form by the Selling
Agent. The Department of Law shall issue its determination of
eligibility within thirty (30) days thereafter.

The determination by the Department of Law is the sole
method of resolving such a dispute and may only be reviewed by a
proceeding under Article 78 of the New York Civil Practice Law
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and Rules which proceeding must be commenced within thirty (30)
days after the determination becomes final.

EXCLUSIVE RIGHT OF TENANTS TO PURCHASE

All bona fide tenants in occupancy on the date that the
Plan is accepted for filing will have the exclusive right to
purchase their Unit for ninety (90) days commencing on the date
the Plan is presented. This Exclusive Purchase Period may be
extended by amendment if the Sponsor so wishes. Any bona fide
tenants with the right to renew a lease on the date the Plan is
accepted for filing, has the right to purchase his Unit as a
tenant and subject to the Tenant Price set forth in Schedule A
during the Exclusive Purchase Period.

During the Exclusive Purchase Period, a tenant’s
apartment may not be shown to a third party unless the tenant
has, in writing, waived the right to purchase nor will a Purchase
Agreement be executed for such apartment by an outside purchaser.

For a period of six months, after the expiration of the
Exclusive Purchase Period, each tenant will be notified if his
apartment is being sold under an executed Purchase Agreement and
the tenant will have fifteen (15) days from the mailing of a copy
of the executed Purchase Agreement sent by registered mail, to
purchase his apartment under the same terms and conditions ag are
contained in the executed Purchase Agreement to purchase.

This offering is made subject to the Eviction provi-
sions of the General Business Law. In the event the GBL or any
provision thereof is declared invalid or expires, the Sponsor
reserves the right to continue this offering without complying
with said Law, effective as of the initial date of this offering.

Those tenants who do not elect to purchase, shall not
be subject to unconscionable rent increases beyond ordinary
rentals for comparable apartments and said increases shall be in
accordance with any existing rent regulations in effect. There
are no rental regulations in effect in the City of Rye. Non-
purchasing tenants shall not be subject to harassment and shall
be entitled to all services and facilities required by law on a
non-discriminatory basis provided by the same Managing Agent who
manages all the Units in the Building. The Sponsor guarantees
that the Managing Agent shall provide those services that are
required by law to all tenants on a non-discriminatory basis.

Definitions:

For the purposes of determining those tenants entitled
to the above mentioned exclusive purchase right, a bona fide
tenant in occupancy shall be defined as:

(1) A tenant in occupancy on the date the Plan is
accepted for filing:
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(2) A tenant in occupancy with the right to renew a
lease on the date the Plan is accepted for filing;

(3) A tenant who has the right to continued occupancy
on the date the Plan is accepted for filing.

Furthermore, for the purpose of determining who has the
right to purchase during the exclusive period, a bona fide tenant
of record with an unexpired lease on the date the Plan is
accepted for filing shall be presumed to be a "tenant in
occupancy" even though the tenant has sublet his Unit or the Unit
is not the tenant’s primary residence.

A bona fide sublessee in occupancy on the date the Plan
is accepted for filing also has the right to purchase during the
exclusive period if he: (i) sublets from a non-bona fide tenant,
or (ii) has obtained written permission to purchase his Unit from
a bona fide tenant of record. This right shall not be construed
to deprive an owner of any legal remedy for illegal occupancy.

Non-purchasing tenants will be notified of changes in
ownership of Units they occupy. Such notification will be made
by written notice, delivered personally or mailed by regular
mail, by the Board of Managers addressed to the tenant at the
subject apartment, within thirty (30) days after such change in
ownership has become effective.

Parking

The Sponsor hereby offers to Purchasers of units the
right to purchase garage parking spaces. Use of all parking
spaces on the Property is not subject to rental regulation. Upon
closing of the first unit, tenants who currently lease garage
parking spaces (whether or not such tenants purchase their
respective apartments) shall continue to be entitled to lease
such parking spaces until the expiration of their then existing
lease, excluding any renewals thereof, at which time. they will be
required to vacate said spaces. As spaces become available, they
will be offered for sale on a first-come, first-served basis to
tenants who have purchased their units and who have completed and
submitted the Garage Parking Election Form attached to the
Purchase Agreement. All tenants, whether or not they purchase
their unit, will be entitled to an outdoor space.

General Rights of Existing Tenants

) In accordance with Section 352-eee of the General
Business Law, the Sponsor states as follows:
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THIS PLAN IS BEING PRESENTED AS AN EVICTION PLAN.
Therefore, it may not be declared effective until written agree-
ments to purchase under the Plan have been executed and delivered
by at least fifty-one (51%) percent of bona fide tenants in
occupancy of all dwelling Units in the buildings on the date the
Plan was accepted for filing by the Attorney General (excluding,
for the purposes of determining the number of bona fide tenants
in occupancy on such date, eligible senior citizens and eligible
disabled persons); and at least thirty-five (35%) percent of the
bona fide tenants in occupancy of all dwelling units in the
building on the date the Plan was accepted for filing by the
Attorney General (including for the purposes of determining the
number of bona fide tenants in occupancy on such date eligible
senior citizens and eligible disabled persons).

The Plan must be pursuant to an offering, made in good
faith without fraud and without discriminatory repurchase agree-
ments or other discriminatory inducements.

At any time before it is declared effective, the

Sponsor expressly reserves its right to provide, by duly filed
amendment, that this Plan shall become a "Non-Eviction Plan" (as
defined in GBL 352-eee). If the Plan is amended to provide that
it shall be a Non-Eviction Plan, any person who has agreed to
purchase under the Plan prior to such amendment shall have a,
period of thirty (30) days after receiving written notice of such
amendment to revoke his agreement to purchase under the Plan.

In the event the Plan is declared effective as an
Eviction Plan, and title closes pursuant to the terms of this
Plan, as it may be amended, no eviction proceedings will be
commenced against any non-purchasing tenants until (1) the
expiration date of the non-purchasing tenant’s current lease or
rental agreement or (2) the date which is three (3) years after
the date on which the Plan is declared effective, whichever date
is later; provided that no eviction proceedings will be commenced
at any time against non-purchasing tenants who are eligible
senior citizens or eligible disabled persons as defined in GBL
Section 352-eee or their spouses (See Section entitled "Special
Rights of Eligible Senior Citizens and Eligible Disabled
Persons").

In addition, the rentals of any such non-purchasing
tenants who reside in Units not subject to government regulation
shall not be subject to unconscionable increases beyond ordinary
rentals for comparable apartments during the period of their
occupancy. Notwithstanding the foregoing, eviction proceedings
may be commenced for nonpayment of rent, illegal use or occupancy
of the premises, refusal of access to the owner or a similar
breach by the non-purchasing tenant of his obligations to the
landlord. Complaints regarding unconscionable rent increases may
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be directed to the Department of Law, Real Estate Financing
Bureau, 120 Broadway, New York, New York 10271.

The Sponsor shall, commencing on the 30th day after the
presentation date of the Plan, and on the 60th, 88th, and 90th
days and every 30th day thereafter, up to and including the date
the Plan is declared effective or abandoned (as the case may be),
and on the tenth and second day before the expiration of the
Exclusive Purchase Period provided in a substantial amendment to
the Plan, file a written statement, under oath, setting forth the
percentage of bona fide tenants in occupancy on the date such
letter was issued who have submitted duly executed Purchase
Agreements to purchase under the Plan as of the date of such
statement. The Sponsor also represents that before noon of the
day that such sworn statement is filed, he will post a copy of
said statement at a prominent place accessible to all tenants in
the Building, and copies of this notice will be available to any
tenant from 9:00 A.M. to 5:00 P.M. at the office of the Selling
Agent. )

Non-purchasing bona fide tenants who reside in dwelling
Units subject to government regulations as to rentals and conti-
nued occupancy shall continue to be subject thereto. The rights
granted under the Plan to purchasers and to non-purchasing bona
fide tenants may not be abrogated or reduced regardless of any
expiration of or amendment to GBL 352-eee. .

All Units occupied by non-purchasing tenants shall be
managed by the same Managing Agent who manages all other Units in
the Building. Such Managing Agent shall provide to non-
purchasing tenants all services and facilities required by law on
a non-discriminatory basis. The Sponsor guarantees the obliga-
tion of the Managing Agent to provide all such services and
facilities until such time as the Sponsor surrenders control of
the Board of Managers.

Except as discussed above, no representation or state-
ment is made as to whether or when a non-purchasing tenant will
be required to vacate his Apartment or as to the application or
effect of the local rent laws, if any, on his right to remain in
possession. Tenants are advised to confer with their respective
attorneys regarding their rights under such laws. Further, no
representation or warranty is made as to the validity or enforce-
ability of any rent laws, or whether the same will apply to the
Building or whether there will be any future amendments thereto.

If a tenant occupying a Unit purchases the Unit, then
from and after the date the Deed is transferred to him, such
tenant-purchaser shall be entitled to all the rights and benefits
customarily available to all condominium owners as explained
elsewhere herein, but would no longer be subject to or have any
rights afforded tenants under any applicable rent laws.
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The Sponsor will not permlt the assignment or transfer
of Purchase Agreements by tenants in occupancy. See section
entitled "Assignment of Purchase Agreements”.

If the Plan is amended prior to the first closing of
title to a Unit, and the amended terms are more favorable than
previously offered bona fide tenants in occupancy on the
presentation date w1ll automatically be afforded the benefit of
the more favorable terms.

RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF NON-TENANT PURCHASERS

If a Purchaser acquires ownership of a Unit occupied by
another, then on the Closing Date, the Purchaser will become the
landlord of the occupant and the latter will become the Purcha-
ser’s tenant.

A Purchaser of a Unit occupied by a tenant will pur-
chase subject to the terms and conditions of the existing lease
or tenancy from and after the closing of title to his Unit.
Copies of all leases in effect at the date of presentation of the
Plan are on file at the Selling Agent’s office for examination by
prospective Purchasers. All leases may be inspected by potential
purchasers and should be lnspected to ascertain the purchaser’s
obligations under the lease. It is also recommended that the
Purchaser consult with his own attorney regarding his obligation
to any tenant or occupant under any existing lease or occupancy
pursuant to any applicable law.

A Purchaser of an occupied Unit will be entltled to
collect and retain all rents payable by the tenant occupying his
Unit. In addition, the purchaser of a Unit subject to an exis-
ting lease will be entitled to receive the unapplied portion of
any security deposit held by the Sponsor under the terms of the
lease. Such security must be held by the purchaser in trust, in
an interest bearing account in accordance with Section 7-103 of
the New York General Obligations Law. Upon delivery of such
security deposit by the Sponsor, the purchaser will be required
to execute, notarize and deliver to Sponsor an agreement acknow-
ledging the amount received and indemnifying the Sponsor against
all claims and liability in connection therewith.

If a Purchaser acquires ownership of a Unit occupied by
another, such Purchaser will be required to pay the Common
Charges and expenses for such Unit to the Board of Managers
whether or not such Common Charges and expenses are greater or
less than the rents received from the non-purchasing tenant.

In addition, the Purchaser will have the further obliga-
tion to repair, replace and maintain the plumbing fixtures,
refrlgerator, range, lighting fixtures and any other equlpment
contained in the Unit and to paint the Unit as provided in the
lease or under any applicable law.
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To insure proper performance of these obligations, the
By-Laws of the Condominium provide that the non-tenant Purchaser
shall irrevocably appoint the Managing Agent for the Condominium
as his agent to provide for the account of and at the expense of
the non-tenant Purchaser all services required to be furnished or
performed under the non-purchasing tenant’s lease or under
applicable law.

The non-tenant Purchaser shall deposit with the
Managing Agent at the closing of title, an amount not less than
two (2) months’ maintenance charges. These funds will be used
for working capital to furnish the services required and upon
notice by the Managing Agent, the non-purchasing tenant shall
deposit, within thirty (30) days sufficient funds to maintain
this balance. The Declaration of Condominium and the By-Laws
provide that the failure of a Unit owner to replenish the funds
in a timely manner shall result in the Board of Managers, on
behalf of the Unit owners, having a lien against the Unit.
Interest, if any, shall be the property of the Unit Owner.

Under 352-eee an Owner of a Unit occupied by a non-
purchasing tenant may commence an action to recover possession of
the Unit on the grounds that he seeks the Unit for the use and
occupancy of himself or a member of his immediate family.

However, a Purchaser of a Unit is prohibited from
evidencing or attempting to evict a non-purchasing tenant in
occupancy of his Unit if such tenant in occupancy is either:

1. 62 years of age or older on the date the Plan is
declared effective; or

2. an Eligible Disabled Person, as that term is
defined in GBL Section 352-eee; or

3. the spouse of either an Eligible Senior Citizen or
Eligible Disabled Person.

In all other cases, no eviction proceedings can be
commenced for a period ending on the later of (a) three (3) years
from the date the Plan is declared effective; or (b) the expira-
tion or termination of an existing lease or tenancy.

No representation or warranty is made as to the length
of time which may elapse before a final court order of eviction
is granted and made effective, or that such court order will be
granted, or that possession of a Unit occupied by another will be
obtained. All costs and expenses incurred in connection with the
ownership of a Unit occupied by another (including, without
limitation, legal fees, and litigation expenses for enforcing the
lease or obtaining possession of the Unit), will be borne
entirely by the Purchaser.
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IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT EVERY NON-TENANT PURCHASER
CONSULT AN ATTORNEY IN ORDER TO BECOME FULLY APPRISED OF THE
EFFECT OF ANY RENT LAWS ON HIS RIGHTS AS A PURCHASER AND HIS
OBLIGATIONS TO ANY EXISTING TENANT OR OCCUPANT.

PROCEDURE TO PURCHASE

A person desiring to purchase a Unit will be required
to execute in triplicate a Purchase Agreement in the form set
forth as Document 1 in Part II of the Plan and the Transferee
Affidavit required by Article 31-B of the Tax Law. The Purchase
Agreement contains the terms and conditions upon which the Unit
will be sold and should be read carefully by the prospective
Purchaser and his legal or financial representative before being
executed. Non-tenant Purchasers will also be required to
complete and sign an application that will be used by Sponsor to
determine the qualifications and creditworthiness of the
prospective Purchaser.

The prospective Purchaser should deliver three (3)
copies of the executed Purchase Agreement and application (if
applicable) and two (2) Transferee Affidavits together with his
good unendorsed personal check for an amount equal to ten (10%)
percent of the Purchase Price (the "Down Payment") made payable
to "Ryeview Special Account", to the Selling Agent at 300 East
42nd Street, New York, New York 10017 for submission to the -
Sponsor. Bona fide tenants will be entitled to pay only One*
Thousand ($1,000.00) Dollars towards the purchase price for the
Down Payment upon the signing of the Purchase Agreement for a
residential apartment and Five Hundred ($500.00) Dollars towards
the purchase price of a garage unit.

All checks delivered in payment of the Down Payment
shall be subject to collection and if any such check is returned
for insufficient funds, or any other reason, Sponsor shall have
the right, among other things, to deem the Purchase Agreement
cancelled and of no further force and effect.

The Sponsor has appointed Carol M. Joseph, Esg. as
Escrow Agent to hold monies paid by purchaser in trust in a
special account at Bank of New York, Rye Ridge Shopping Center,
Rye Ridge, New York entitled "Ryeview Special Account" until such
time as the closing of title to a Unit takes place. All such
monies, except for such contract deposits that are required to be
returned to the Purchaser as a result of a termination and
cancellation of such Purchaser’s Purchase Agreement or if the
Plan is abandoned, shall be retained in said special account, in
accordance with Section 352-h and 352-e (2) (b) of the New York
General Business Law.

After the Plan is declared effective, Sponsor will give
each purchaser not less than fifteen (15) days prior written
notice of the date, time, and place for the transfer of title to
his Unit. Upon Closing, the balance of the Purchase Price will
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be due and payable. The balance will be paid by Purchaser’s
unendorsed certified check or by an official check drawn on or by
a member of the New York Clearing House Association directly to
the order of the Sponsor or as otherwise directed by Sponsor, and
will be delivered to Sponsor. After title closing to a parti-
cular Unit takes place, all monies in the special account per-
taining to that Unit, shall be released only by the signature of
the Escrow Agent to or for the benefit of the Sponsor. It is not
the intent of the Escrow Agent to place deposits in an interest-
bearing account. It shall be an event of default if purchaser
fails to close title on the designated date or otherwise fails to
perform any obligations under his Purchase Agreement.

In the event of any default by a Purchaser under his
Purchase Agreement (the obligations of the Purchaser thereunder
being of the essence of said Agreement) and Purchaser does not
cure such default within thirty (30) days after Sponsor or the
Selling Agent gives written notice to the Purchaser of such
default, Sponsor may, at its option, either (i) cancel such
Purchase Agreement and retain the downpayment, made by the
Purchaser as liquidated damages (but not greater than ten (10%)
percent of the Purchase Price), in which event all rights,
obligations and liabilities of Sponsor and the Purchaser shall
wholly cease and terminate or (ii) bring an action against the
Purchaser for specific performance. Sponsor shall have the
remedies set forth in the preceding sentence and the additional
right to approve a request from the Purchaser to adjourn tHe
closing of title to such Unit. In the event Sponsor elects not
to cancel the Purchase Agreement as a result of the failure of
the Purchaser to close on the date specified by Sponsor, or if
Sponsor approves Purchaser’s request to adjourn the closing date,
then (a) Purchaser shall pay Sponsor interest equal to the prime
rate of Citibank, N.A. at the time of the original designated
closing date, on the total purchase price less the amount of any
monies theretofore paid on account therefor, computed from the
original closing date until the transaction is actually closed
and (b) all apportionments between Sponsor and Purchaser shall be
made as of the original closing date. Purchaser shall reimburse
Sponsor for any additional costs incurred by Sponsor as a result
of Purchaser’s delay.

Purchase Agreements, other than those executed by bona
fide tenants in occupancy during the ninety (90) day Exclusive
Purchase Period, will not be binding on Sponsor until approved
and executed by it and Sponsor will have 30 days after the
delivery by the Purchaser of an executed Purchase Agreement and
the downpayment, within which to accept or reject such Purchase
Agreement. Sponsor reserves the right to request thorough
identification and financial information concerning any
prospective Purchaser, subject to any limitations and
requirements imposed by law. If a Purchase Agreement is not
accepted by Sponsor within the aforesaid 30-day period, the
Purchase Agreement shall be deemed to have been rejected and
cancelled and all sums theretofore deposited thereunder shall be
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promptly returned to the Purchaser. Sponsor hereby reserves the
right at any time and from time to time for any reason
whatsoever, without prior notice or prior amendment to the Plan
and without the consent of the Board, to refuse to approve and
execute (1) a Purchase Agreement for any Unit, except as
prohibited by law, and (ii) a Purchase Agreement or Purchase
Agreements, as the case may be, for more than one Unit to any one
person or entity.

A purchaser who fails to obtain financing if it is re-
quested, shall receive a full refund of his deposit if he has ful-
filled all the requirements contained in the Purchase Agreement.
Said refund shall be made within fifteen (15) days after notice
to Selling Agent. Should Purchaser’s financing commitment lapse
for reasons other than Purchaser’s negligence, Purchaser may
rescind without penalty. In addition, should a substantial amend-
ment be filed, prior to a closing, the prospective purchaser may
rescind without penalty within thirty (30) days of the filing.

Assignment of Purchase Agreements

Any Purchase Agreement which has been accepted by the
Sponsor may be assigned or transferred by the purchaser to a
member of his or her immediate family without the consent of the
Sponsor, provided that (i) the requirements set forth below are
strictly observed and (ii) no default, or event which, with the
passage of time or the giving of notice, or both, would
constitute default, on the part of the purchaser has occurred
thereunder. "Immediate family" shall be defined as parent,
child, sibling or grandparent. All purchasers will have such a
right to assign or transfer their respective Purchase Agreements
on a non-discriminatory basis. However, the Down Payment shall
be increased from $1,000 (or $500 for garage spaces) to the ten
(10%) percent of the Purchase Price at the time of assignment.

To effect the assignment or transfer of a Purchase
Agreement, the purchaser will be required to submit the following
items to the Sponsor or the Selling Agent no later than thirty
(30) days prior to the Closing Date:

(a) an Assignment and Assumption of Purchase
Agreement, in the form set forth in Part II of the Plan, duly
executed and acknowledged by both the purchaser and his or her
assignee, annexed to which shall be a photocopy of the Purchase
Agreement countersigned by the Sponsor, a copy of the Down
Payment check and a new check representing the additional Down
Payment required:;

(b) if the assignment or transfer is made- prior to the
declaration of effectiveness of the Plan, an affidavit duly
executed by the assignee, in the form set forth in Part II of the
Plan, stating (i) that the assignee was not procured by the
Sponsor or the Selling Agent, (ii) that the assignee intends that
he, or that a specified member of his or her immediate family,
will personally occupy the apartment, and (iii) if he states that
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he intends that a member of his or her immediate family will
personally occupy the apartment, the name of such person and the
relationship to the purchaser;

(c) if the Transferee Questionnaire or any other
documentation relating to the N.Y.S. Gains Tax has theretofore
been executed by the purchaser and delivered to the Sponsor or
the Selling Agent, a substitute Transferee Questionnaire or other
required document, duly executed and acknowledged by the
assignee; and

(d) a check payable to Cassin, Cassin & Joseph, in the
amount of $250, for their services in connection with the
processing of the assignment or transfer.

This right of assignment is applicable only to bona
fide tenants in occupancy and does not apply to non-tenants, bona
fide tenants in occupancy who do not purchase within the Exclu-
sive Purchase Period or an Assignee of a bona fide tenant in
occupancy.

Anything herein to the contrary notwithstanding, if any
requirement set forth above is not observed strictly in accor-
dance with its terms, the purported assignment or transfer shall
be void and of no force or effect, and the Purchase Agreement
shall remain in effect and fully enforceable against the
subscriber in accordance with its terms.

Purchaser’s Mortgage

The Purchase Agreement is conditioned upon the Purcha-
ser obtaining a written loan commitment from a recognized lender
in an amount not to exceed ninety (90%) percent of the Tenant
Purchase Price and eighty (80%) percent of the Non-Tenant Pur-
chase Price for non-tenant Purchasers. The Purchaser agrees to
furnish to the lender such information and data pertaining to
Purchaser’s financial condition as may be required by the lender
within ten (10) days after the request therefor. 1In the event
that within thirty (30) days from the date of the Purchase
Agreement, an acceptable lender shall fail to approve Purchaser’s
credit, and written notice of such disapproval has been provided
to the Sponsor within five (5) days after the expiration of said
thirty (30) day period, the Purchase Agreement may be declared
null and void by either party and neither party shall have any
liability to the other thereunder except that the Escrow Agent
shall return to the Purchaser the deposit paid on the execution
of the Purchase Agreement, with interest, if any, in accordance
with the terms set forth in the Plan. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, if failure on the part of the lender to approve
Purchaser’s credit results from Purchaser’s failure to furnish
the information and data required or to promptly and diligently
make application for a loan, such failure shall be a default by
Purchaser under the terms of the Purchase Agreement and Sponsor
may (i) send notice to Purchaser of Sponsor’s intention to cancel

- 32 -



the Purchase Agreement, or (ii) extend the 30-day period
hereinbefore set forth by the number of days that Purchaser was
late in making the application or providing the requested
information and data.

Many commercial banks, savings banks and other finan-
cial institutions will finance the purchase of condominium
units. The availability and cost of such financing is dependent
upon economic conditions, varying lending policies among the
institutions and the qualifications of the Purchaser. A
prospective Purchaser is encouraged to explore all available
sources of financing, if required, since the terms and cost may
vary among the alternatives.

Sponsor, the Condominium and the Selling Agent are not
obligated to obtain or provide financing on behalf of any
Purchaser and are not acting as agent for any lender which may
give financing for the purchase of any Unit. Consequently, each
person who desires to finance the purchase of a Unit is solely
responsible to obtain a commitment for such financing in his
favor from the lender of his choice.

Persons interested in obtaining institutional financing
for the purchase of their condominium Unit should communicate
directly with the lender of their preference.

NO REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY IS MADE THAT BANK FI&AN-
CING WILL BE AVAILABLE TO ANYONE WHO PURCHASES A CONDOMINIUM UNIT
UNDER THE PLAN OR AS TO THE AMOUNT, TERMS, COSTS AND CONDITIONS
UPON WHICH FINANCING IS AVAILABLE.

INTERIM LEASES

The Sponsor reserves the right freely and without
restriction to lease or rent apartments in the building that are
vacant on the date of the presentation of the Plan or which
become vacant thereafter to Purchasers or Non-Purchasers at any
time both before and after the First Unit Closing. However, once
a Purchase Agreement is signed for a vacant Unit and as long as
the Purchase Agreement is in effect, the apartment may only be
leased to the Purchaser of such Unit.

The lease is referred to as an Interim Lease. Such
lease will be for such rent not exceeding the maximum rent
legally collectible, and upon such other terms as may be mutually
agreed upon.

It shall be a default under the Interim Lease if the
Purchaser-tenant thereunder fails to comply with all the
Purchaser’s obligations under the Purchase Agreement. A default
in the terms and conditions of the Interim Lease will also be a
default under the Purchase Agreement. In the event of Purcha-
ser’s uncured default under either the Interim Lease or the
Purchase Agreement, Sponsor, at Sponsor’s sole option, may elect
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to terminate the Interim Lease and to cancel the Purchase Agree-
ment, and the Purchaser-tenant must vacate the premises within
thirty (30) days after such notification by Sponsor. Notwith-
standing the foregoing, before Sponsor can cancel the Purchase
Agreement either (i) Sponsor must obtain an order of eviction or
other judgment or order from a court of competent jurisdiction
against the Purchaser-tenant, or (ii) the Purchaser-tenant must
have vacated the Unit or surrendered or agreed to surrender
possession thereof to Sponsor voluntarily.

In the event the Purchaser fails or refuses to vacate
and surrender possession of the Unit within such thirty (30) day
period, then all sums paid in connection with the Purchase
Agreement, as well as the security deposit given pursuant to the
Interim Lease, but not exceeding ten (10%) percent of the Pur-
chase Price for the Unit, may be retained by Sponsor as liqui-
dated damages.

In addition, Sponsor shall have the right to apply any
monies held as security deposit under the Interim Lease or in
trust under the Purchase Agreement, to effectuate any repairs to
the Unit caused by Purchaser-tenant, or his guests or invitees.

Rent due under an Interim Lease shall be adjusted as of
the closing date between Sponsor and the Purchaser-tenant. No
rent paid under an Interim Lease will be applied toward thg
Purchase Price of any Unit.

In the event that the Plan is abandoned, the Interim
Lessee shall be entitled to remain as a tenant entitled to all of
the rights under the applicable law or shall have the right to
terminate the lease upon ninety (90) days’ written notice. If an
Interim Lessee rescinds his Purchase Agreement pursuant to the
terms of the Plan, then the Interim Lessee shall vacate the
apartment within sixty (60) days from the time of such rescis-
sion.

EFFECTIVE DATE OF PLAN

The closing to any condominium unit will not take place
until the Plan is declared effective. The Plan may be declared
effective, at Sponsor’s option, at any time after Purchase
Agreements have been executed and are in effect with respect to
fifty-one (51%) percent of the bona fide tenants in occupancy of
all Units in the Buildings on the date the Plan is accepted for
filing by the New York State Department of Law, (excluding for
the purposes of determining the number of bona fide tenants in
occupancy on such date, Eligible Senior Citizens and Eligible
Disabled Persons) and at least thirty-five (35%) percent of all
bona fide tenants in occupancy of all Units in all Buildings at
the time the Plan is declared effective, (including Eligible
Senior Citizens and Disabled Persons). In calculating the
required percentage, only one purchase agreement per dwelling
unit will be counted and in the event a tenant leases or occupies
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more than one dwelling unit, only one purchase agreement from
that tenant will be counted. In establishing a base for
computing the required percentages necessary for effectiveness,
all dwelling units in the building or group of buildings shall be
included, except:

(1)

(ii)

For purposes of both the fifty-one (51%) percent
calculation and the thirty-five (35%) percent
calculation, those that were both vacant and not
under lease on the date the offering plan or
prospectus was accepted for filing by the
Department of Law, and

For purposes of the fifty-one (51%) percent
calculation, dwelling units of eligible senior
citizens who have returned completed election
forms prior to the plan being declared effective,
non-purchasing eligible senior citizens for whom
the sponsor has submitted evidence of eligibility
satisfactory to the Department of Law, and
eligible disabled persons who have not
subsequently purchased unless the sponsor has
disputed such election in which case the affected
dwelling unit will remain in the base until such
time as a final determination is made that the

election is sustained. .

In computing the percentages necessary for

effectiveness,

(1)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

the following purchase agreements may be included:

Purchase agreements by bona fide tenants in
occupancy on the filing date for his or her
dwelling unit;

Purchase agreements by bona fide tenants in
occupancy on the filing date for dwelling units
which are both vacant and not under lease;

Purchase agreements by bona fide tenants in
occupancy on the filing date for a dwelling unit
of another bona fide tenant if the other tenant
has purchased the first tenant’s dwelling unit or
a vacant dwelling unit;

Purchase agreements by the bona fide tenant of
record on the filing date or by a subtenant who
has the right to purchase;

Purchase agreements for dwelling units leased to a
corporation, partnership, trust, estate or other
entity subscribed to by an individual approved by
said corporation, partnership, trust, estate or
other entity.
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When Purchase Agreements have been executed and
accepted for the sale of eighty (80%) percent of the Units
offered under this Plan and the prerequisites to the declaration
of effectiveness required by Section 352-eee of the General
Business Law as set forth above have been met, the Sponsor must
declare the Plan effective.

The Plan will be declared effective by amendment to the
Plan or by written notice to all bona fide tenants and Purchasers
served by personal delivery or regular mail. If the Plan is
declared effective by notice, an amendment to the Plan will be
duly filed within five (5) business days thereafter. The First
Unit Closing will not occur until after such amendment has been
accepted for filing by the Department of Law.

In the event the Plan is withdrawn or abandoned, all
Down Payments will be returned to the Purchasers within fifteen
(15) days thereafter, except the Down Payment of any Purchaser
who is then in default under his Purchase Agreement beyond any
applicable grace period or whose Purchase Agreement has been
cancelled due to his default. In that event, the Down Payment
(and the cost of any work performed by or on behalf of Sponsor at
the request of Purchaser), will be retained by Sponsor as
liquidated damages.

Any amounts retained by the Sponsor as and for liqui-
dated damages will not exceed ten (10%) percent of the purchase
price plus the cost of any additional work which may have been
requested by the Purchaser. Upon the return or retention of the
Down Payment, the Purchase Agreement will be deemed cancelled and
of no further force or effect and Sponsor will have no further
obligation or liability to Purchaser under the Plan or the
Purchase Agreement.

Sponsor will fix dates for closing title to all Units,
as to which Purchase Agreements are outstanding, in accordance
with the provisions of the respective Purchase Agreements. Prior
to the first closing of title, the Declaration and By-Laws shall
be recorded and the Floor Plans filed in the Westchester County
Clerk’s Office.

The Plan will be abandoned unless it is declared
effective within twelve (12) months from the date of acceptance
for filing by the Department of Law and in the event of such
abandonment, no new Plan for conversion of such Buildings shall
be submitted for at least fifteen (15) months after such abandon-
ment. Prior to the date on which the Plan is declared effective,
the Plan may, at the option of Sponsor, be withdrawn in the event
of (a) the existence of one or more defects in title, violations
of record or work orders of insurers affecting any one or more
Units, that cannot be removed for 1/2 of 1% of the total selling
price in the aggregate (including counsel fees and expenses), as
reasonably estimated by Sponsor; (b) any damage to or destruction
of all or part of the Buildings by fire or other casualty that is
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not fully covered by the insurance proceeds received by Sponsor
(excluding any deductible), unless the Sponsor elects to repair;
or (c) a taking of all or part of the Property in condemnation
proceedings or by eminent domain. In no event, however, will
Sponsor be obligated to engage in litigation (or expend monies
with respect to title defects, violations or work orders of
insurers except to the extent of 1/2 of 1% of the total selling
price, in the aggregate) to remove or cure any title defects and
violations except those title defects, violations, work orders,
or determinations of an authority or regulatory association which
exist on the date the Plan is presented and are known to the
Sponsor or are a matter of public record. Sponsor shall not have
any responsibility, however, to remove or cure any title defects
or violations that result from the acts or omissions of any
tenants of the Buildings or are the responsibility of any tenants
of the Buildings to cure.

CIOSING OF TITLE

After this Plan is declared effective, Sponsor will,
from time to time, fix one or more dates for closing title to the
Units for which Purchase Agreements are in effect. The First
Unit Closing will be held no later than one hundred eighty (180)
days after the Plan is declared effective, unless adjourned.

The closing of title is the time when the Sponsor will
convey title to the Condominium Unit to the Purchaser by delt-
vering to the Purchaser a Bargain and Sale Deed with Covenants
Against Grantor’s Acts in the form set forth in Part II of this
Plan, in exchange for the payment of the Purchase Price.

All purchasers will be notified, in writing, at least
fifteen (15) days in advance of the time, date and place of
closing for the transfer of title to his Unit.

The risk of loss to the Unit by fire or other casualty
until the closing of title is assumed by Sponsor (unless and
until a non-tenant Purchaser has taken possession of the Unit, at
which time the risk of loss shall be assumed by such non-tenant
Purchaser), but without any obligation or liability upon Sponsor
to repair or restore the Unit, except that if Sponsor elects to
repair or restore the Unit, the Purchase Agreement shall continue
in full force and effect and Purchaser shall not have the right
to reject title or receive a credit against, or abatement in, the
Purchase Price. In that event, Sponsor shall be entitled to a
reasonable period of time in which to complete the repair or
restoration. Any proceeds received from insurance or in
satisfaction of any claim or action in connection with such loss
shall, subject to the rights of the Board of Managers and other
Unit Owners, belong entirely to Sponsor and if those proceeds are
paid to Purchaser, Purchaser shall promptly, upon receipt
thereof, turn them over to Sponsor.
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In the event Sponsor notifies Purchaser that it does
not elect to repair or restore the Unit or, if the unit Owners do
not resolve to make such repairs or restoration pursuant to the
By-Laws, the Purchase Agreement shall be deemed cancelled and of
no further- force or effect and Sponsor shall return to Purchaser
all sums deposited hereunder, together with accrued interest, if
any, less the cost of any work performed in the Unit by or on
behalf of Sponsor at the request of Purchaser, and, upon that
payment, neither Purchaser or Sponsor shall have any liability or
obligation under the Purchase Agreement and the Plan, except that
if Purchaser is then in default under said Agreement (beyond any
applicable grace period), Sponsor shall retain all such sums as
and for liquidated damages but in no event greater than ten (10%)
percent of the Purchase Price. Title to each Unit and its
appurtenant interest in the common elements will be conveyed at
closing free of all liens, encumbrances and title exceptions
other than those described in this Plan and the proposed Unit
deed. Such exceptions are set forth below.

Prerequisites to Closing Title

The closing to any condominium Unit will take place
only after or concurrently with the following events:

1. The Plan being declared effective by the Sponsor
and the filing of an amendment to the Plan which
is accepted for filing by the Department of ‘law.

2. The recording or filing, as required b& law, of
the Declaration, By-Laws and Floor Plans;

3. The recording of a release or satisfaction of the
liens of any existing mortgage which affects the
Unit to be closed and its appurtenant undivided
Common Interest as required by law;

4. Written notice of the closing was given to the
Purchaser, together with notice as to the date
when the Purchaser will commence being obligated
for the payment of his Common Charges.

5. Delivery by the Sponsor to the Purchaser of a
Bargain and Sale Deed with Covenants Against
Grantor’s Acts in the form set forth in Part II of
this Plan and subject to the following:

(a) The terms, conditions, covenants and provi-
sions of the Declaration of Condominium and
By-Laws.

(b) State of facts shown on a survey of the Land
and Buildings, provided such state of facts
would not render title unmarketable.



(c)

(d)

(e)

(£)

(9)

(h)

(1)

Zoning regulations and ordinances and any
amendments thereto, provided that neither the
Building nor its present use nor its use as
contemplated pursuant to this Plan are
prohibited thereby.

Consents by the Sponsor or any former owner
of the Property for the erection of any
structure on, under or above any street or
streets on which the Property may abut.

Revocability of license for vault space, if
any.

Easements in favor of the owners of the other
Units to use the pipes, wires, conduits,
public utility lines and other Common Ele-
ments, including those located in the Unit
itself or elsewhere on the Property serving
such other Units in accordance with present
use and present available facilities and
easements of necessity in favor of the other
Units and/or the Common Elements.

Easements for the continuance of encroach-
ments on the Unit and on the Common Elemgnts
by other Units or portions of the Common
Elements then existing by reason of the
construction of the Building or thereafter
occurring by reason of the repair and/or
restoration by the Board of Managers of the
Building or such other Units or such Common
Elements after damage by fire or other
casualty or after taking in condemnation or
eminent domain proceedings, or by reason of
any alterations or repair to the Common
Elements made by or with consent of the the
Board of Managers, so that any such encroach-
ments may remain as long as the Building
stands.

New York State Franchise Taxes of any corpora-
tion in the chain of title, provided that a
reputable title insurance company (which is a

' member of the New York Board of Title Under-

writers) is willing to insure that such taxes
will not be collected by foreclosure of the
lien relating thereto from the Property.

Current real estate taxes not yet due and

payable which shall be apportioned between
the Sponsor and the Purchaser.
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(j) Water charges (but the Sponsor shall be
obligated to pay all such charges through the
date preceding the first closing of title to

an apartment Unit).

(k) Sewer, water, electric, plumbing, heating,
gas, telephone and other utility easements
and consents, if any, then or thereafter
recorded, including but not limited to the
right to maintain and operate lines, wires,
cables, plpes, conduits, poles and distri-
bution boxes in, over, under and upon the
Property.

(1) Judgments, liens or encumbrances against the
Sponsor or any prior owner of the Property
provided that such lien or encumbrance will
be released against the Unit and its Common
Elements by a partial release duly recorded.

(m) Covenants contained in the Declaration and
recorded in the Westchester County Clerk’s
Office.

Counsel to the Sponsor has advised that in
its opinion none of the exceptions to title .
hereinbefore set forth is of a nature which Should
materially affect the use, enjoyment, lease or
sale of any Unit as a Condominium Unit. The
documents concerning these exceptions will be
available to purchasers or their attorneys for
examination at the Selling Agent’s Office.

The purchaser’s obligation for payment of the
Common Charges and expenses applicable to his Unit
will begin to accrue on the date on which the deed
is delivered to him.

If the Purchaser has requested title insurance,
the issuance to Purchaser (at Purchaser’s expense)
of a binder for title insurance from a reputable
title insurance company, (which is a member of the
New York Board of Title Underwriters) insuring
that the Purchaser has good and marketable fee
title to the Unit free and clear of all liens and
encumbrances except any mortgage which the
Purchaser executes as part of the purchase of the
Unit and that the condominium has been validly
created pursuant to Article 9B of the Real
Property Law of the State of New York, as amended.

The execution by the Purchaser of an instrument in
the form as set forth in Part II of this Plan,
designating the Board of Managers as his
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attorney-in-fact, coupled with an interest, for
the purpose of managing, selling, mortgaging,
leasing, voting or otherwise dealing with any
Units acquired by the Board of Managers in accor-
dance with any provisions of the By-Laws.

Closing Costs, Expenses and Adjustments*

The estimated closing costs, expenses and adjustments
to be borne by the Purchaser of a Unit will be as follows:

1. If a Purchaser elects to obtain fee title
insurance from Westchester Abstract Corp., 2 Lyon Place, White
Plains, New York 10601, or a title insurance company selected by
Purchaser, the Purchaser will pay the premium therefor which will
vary depending on the purchase price of the Unit.

The Purchaser may receive the benefit of a simultaneous
rate as the result of fee title insurance being issued
simultaneously with mortgage title insurance.

2. All recording fees in connection with the sale and
purchase of the Unit.

3. If a Purchase Money Mortgage loan is obtained by
the Purchaser from a Lender, the Purchaser will be responsible
for the payment of all mortgage recording tax (any mortgage tax
credit received pursuant to Section 339-ee of the New York Real
Property Law will inure to the benefit of the Sponsor) and
closing costs and expenses (which closing costs may include
lender’s counsel fees, recording charges, and mortgage title
insurance) in connection therewith in amounts determined by the

Lender.

4. Each Purchaser will be responsible for the fees
and expenses of his own attorney, if any.

5. The Purchaser will be required to pay to the Board
of Managers Common Charges allocable to his Unit monthly, in
advance, commencing with the closing date. The amount of the
Common Charges to be assessed against each Unit will be fixed by
the Board of Managers. It is estimated that the Common Charges
for the first year of operation will not exceed the respective
amounts as set forth in Schedule A of this Plan, but such amounts
may vary upward to the extent that the cost of services can
increase and/or the Board of Managers wishes to provide increased
services.

6. Insurance on the interior of a Unit or the con-
tents thereof is not included as part of the Common Charges.

*See also the section entitled "Purchaser Reserve for Working
Capital Contingencies."
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Purchasers desiring such insurance may purchase same at their own
expense.

7. The Purchaser will pay the cost of the New York
State Deed -tax stamps to be affixed to the deed which is
currently at the rate of $4.00 per $1,000.00 Purchase Price.
This obligation is generally paid by the seller of real property,
but by this Plan is imposed on the Purchaser.

8. If the Purchaser deals with any broker in connec-
tion with the purchase of his Unit other than the Selling Agent
or any broker engaged in writing by Sponsor, the Purchaser will
be required to pay the commission of that broker unless the
Sponsor specifically agrees otherwise to do so in writing.

9. Closings shall take place at the offices of
Cassin, Cassin & Joseph, 11 Elm Place, Rye, New York. A fee of
Three Hundred ($300.00) Dollars to Sponsor’s attorney will be
paid by Purchaser for services rendered in connection with the
preparation and review of all closing documents and as an
attendance fee with respect to such closing. If closing shall be
required to take place other than in the offices of Cassin,
Cassin & Joseph, an additional fee of $150.00 shall be incurred
with respect to attendance at such closing. No legal services
will be rendered to Purchaser by Sponsor’s counsel and Purchaser
is advised to obtain his own attorney. .

As an illustration, if a Purchaser buys a unit for
$100,000 and obtained a mortgage for $75,000 at 10% per annum and
the closing occurred on the 15th of the month, the following
illustrates the estimated closing costs exclusive of adjustments
with the Sponsor:

Title: Fee Insurance $299.00
Mortgage Insurance 249.00
Recordings 75.00
Mortgage Tax 537.50
Deed Stamps 400.00
Mortgage Fees: Short Interest 308.00
Tax Escrows 400.00 - 600.00
Bank Attorney 350.00 - 600.00

In addition, if the Purchaser obtains the services of
an attorney to handle the closing, the Purchaser will be
responsible for said attorney’s fee.

At Closing, adjustments will be made between Sponsor
and each Purchaser with respect to (a) any real estate taxes and
assessments, including without limitation, water charges, if
separately assessed on the basis of the period for which
assessed, (b) Common Charges for the month in which title closes
and (c) accrued rent and any other charges pursuant to any lease
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covering the Purchaser’s Unit. 1In the event that a Unit has not
been separately assessed for the then current fiscal year at the
time of closing of title, the apportionment of real estate taxes
shall be based on the assessment of the Property and the Common

Interest appurtenant to the Unit.

However, if units have not been separately assessed,
the Sponsor shall place in escrow, in the name of the Board of
Managers, an amount equal to the unpaid real estate taxes, which
will be levied against the parcel for the six month period
following the first unit closing. The Board of Managers will pay
the taxes from the escrow account when taxes are due and will be
entitled to reimbursement from the unit owners, until such units
are separately assessed.

Each Purchaser will be given a reasonable opportunity
to examine his Unit prior to the closing of title and is urged to
make a careful inspection.

The Security Deposit held by the Sponsor, with
interest, if any, of a tenant who purchases will be refunded to
him after the closing title. The security deposit of a
Non-Purchasing Tenant will be transferred, after the closing of
title, to the owner of the occupied Unit who will hold said
" deposit in accordance with the GOL.

The Purchase Agreement sets forth in detail the tefms
of sale with respect to each Unit and should be read carefully by
each prospective Purchaser and his counsel. -

From and after the closing of title to each Unit, the
purchaser will become obligated for the payment of Common
Ccharges, real estate taxes and assessments, including without
limitation, water charges if separately assessed, and all other
expenses with respect to his Unit whether or not Purchaser has
taken possession of the Unit.

There can be no assurance that the Unit Owner will be
able to sell his Unit for the Purchase Price paid or be able to
lease his Unit, since this will be determined by market
conditions in the future. Sponsor and its designee as owner of
Unsold Units reserve the right to offer Units for sale or lease
at prices or rents which may be less than prices or rents at
which any other Unit Owner may offer his Unit for sale or lease.
So long as Unsold Units are available, the resale price or rental
value of other Units may be limited by prices or rents of Unsold
Units.

OBLIGATIONS OF SPONSOR

1. The Sponsor will pay all expenses incurred prior
to the establishment of the Condominium in connection with its
operation and will bear and pay all costs and expenses whenever
such costs or expenses are incurred, or in connection with the
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sale of all of the Units held or owned by the Sponsor and will
pay, except as otherwise provided herein, all selling expenses,
including, but not limited to, advertising and printing costs,
architect’s fees, attorneys’ fees, organization costs, brokerage
commissions and engineers’ fees and costs.

2. The Sponsor will pay or cause to be paid all
Common Charges declared by the Board of Managers, taxes and other
expenses assessed to any Units owned by the Sponsor, so long as
Sponsor shall continue to own the same, and will convey title to
same, free and clear of all liens except a first mortgage, if
any, to be placed upon the Unit at the time of its initial conve-
yance. Sponsor has the financial resources necessary to meet its
obligations with respect to Unsold Units. Sponsor will cure any
existing violations prior to the initial closing. If this cannot
be accomplished, the Sponsor will escrow funds to cure any
outstanding violations based upon a cost estimate submitted by a
licensed engineer or architect. Sponsor is obligated to defend
any suits or proceedings arising out of its acts or omissions and
indemnifies the Board of Managers and the Unit owner agalnst any
liability which may arise as a result of such acts or omissions.

3. Immediately following the first Unit Closing,
Sponsor will assign to the Board of Managers and the Board of
Managers will assume on behalf of all Unit Owners, all assignable
service and maintenance contracts and agreements relating to the
Property. The Condominium will indemnify Sponsor against 411
claims and liability thereunder that relate to matters and events
occuring on or after the date of the first Unit Closing.
However, all representations and obligations under the Plan and
obligations pursuant to the GBL which are to be performed
subsequent to the closing, shall survive delivery of the deed.

4. The Sponsor shall cause to be held the first
meeting of the Board of Managers within ninety (90) days of the
closing of the initial 51% or more of the Units. At that time
the Board as it then exists shall resign and a new Board
elected. The Sponsor shall not have voting control of the Board
for more than two (2) years or upon the sale of 51% of the units,
whichever is sooner.

5. Until eleven (11) months after the transfer of
control of the Board of Managers to the Unit Owners, or eleven
(11) months after the closing of title to the last Unit, which-
ever is sooner, provided that the project is completed, the
Sponsor will not voluntarily assign, transfer or sell its
interest in the real property which is the subject of this
offering, except in accordance with the Plan.

However, the Sponsor may be liquidated at any time and
may distribute any of its assets at any time whenever such
distribution does not pertain to this offer or any distributed
assets other than in liquidation provided that the Sponsor’s
principals shall be responsible for the Common Charges, real
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estate taxes and any other expenses attributed to the Units owned
by the Sponsor. '

This paragraph shall in no way be deemed as a limita-
tion of the Sponsor’s obligation or any of the rights and reme-
dies of the Unit Owners, pursuant to law.

6. During the time that the Sponsor is in control of
the Board of Managers, the Sponsor shall direct the Managing
Agent to keep records of the actions of the Board or other
governing group of the condominium regime and of meetings of such
group or of owners of condominium interests, and of financial
records and books of account receipts and expenditures, an
account for each condominium interest which shall contain the
amount of each assessment of Common Charges thereon, dates when
due, the amounts paid thereon, and the balance due, copies of the
Declaration of Condominium ownership, (or other legal instrument
submitting the Property to condominium ownership), rules and
requlations and floor plans of apartments or other subdivisions,
and whether such will be held available for inspection by owners
of condominium interests and other agents. The Sponsor shall
guarantee that the duties of the Managing Agent are performed
without discrimination to any tenant. The Property will be
maintained in substantially the same condition and manner as on
the date of presentation.

The Sponsor makes no other representations or warran-
ties except as provided herein and none should be implied nor
will any survive delivery of the Deed except those contained in
Paragraph 1 through 6 above and any other representation made in
the Plan plus those representations set forth in Section 23A of
the General Business Law and any other under any local laws or
regulations.

The Sponsor will deliver at the initial closing, a
binder covering fire and liability insurance.

Each of the obligations of the Sponsor contained in
this section shall be enforceable by any Unit Owner as to his
Unit or by the Board of Managers on behalf of the Unit Owners as
to Common Elements. The Sponsor has no obligation to make any
repair to the Units or common elements except as set forth in
this Plan.

UNSOLD APARTMENT UNITS

Title to each Unsold Unit shall be held by the Sponsor
or a financially responsible designee until it is sold and a deed
delivered to the Purchaser. From and after the date of the first
closing of title to an Apartment Unit, the Sponsor shall be
responsible for and will pay the Common Charges and expenses
assessed against each Unsold Apartment Unit until sold to a bona
fide Purchaser for value. If the Sponsor fails to pay Common
Charges and expenses, the Board of Managers will have the same
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rights and remedies against it as against any other defaulting
Unit Owner.

Purchasers should be aware that Sponsor has the continu-
ing right to lease Unsold Units and therefore these Units may be
indefinitely occupied by tenants whose interest in the Property
is more transitory than that of Owners of Condominium Units.

Sponsor will have the right to sell his Unit without
restriction as to price (so that he may retain the entire
proceeds from the sale) if prior to or simultaneously with the
closing he satisfies any arrears in the payment of Common Charges
and expenses.

Sponsor has the right to mortgage Unsold Units without
restriction provided that the mortgage shall be substantially in
‘the form of the New York statutory form of mortgage (except for
such variations as may be necessary in order to permit a parti-
cular lending institution to make the loan).

The Board of Managers shall not prevent nor unreason-
ably impede or interfere with the sale or leasing of any Unsold
Unit. Prospective purchasers of Unsold Units and sales personnel
shall be given access to the public areas of the Property,
including without limitation, lobbies and hallways, for purposes
of ingress and egress, without being subject to any charge por fee
therefor. No discriminatory charge or fee may be imposed on any
Owner of an Unsold Unit.

Sponsor shall have the right to make alterations or
additions in or to its Unsold Unit (and to the fixtures and
equipment located therein); to change the size and/or layout of
its Unsold Unit; and to reallocate the percentage of the Common
Interest allocated to it, without obtaining the consent of the
Board of Managers, the then Managing Agent of the Condominium or
the other Unit Owners and without payment of any fee or charge.
Any reallocation of the Common Interests, however, must meet the
test set forth in Article 12 of the Declaration. 1In no event
shall the total amount of the Common Interest be changed as a
result of such reallocation.

The rights and obligations of Sponsor shall inure to
the benefit of and be binding upon his successors and assigns
(other than a bona fide purchaser for personal occupancy by
himself or members of his family).

PURCHASERS FOR INVESTMENT OR_RESALE

A purchaser, for investment or resale is a purchaser
who purchases three (3) or more units which units are not
purchased for occupancy by such purchaser or persons related by
blood, marriage or adoption to such purchaser. In connection
with the sale of such units, a purchaser for investment or resale
shall be obligated to:
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(1) register as a broker-dealer pursuant to GBL
Section 359-e (if not already registered);

(2) comply with the trust fund and escrow provisions
of GBL Sections 352-h and Section 352-e(2) (b):

(3) provide the following documents to a prospective
purchaser, at no cost to the purchaser, at least three (3)
business days before entering into a Purchase Agreement:

(i) a copy of the most recent financial statement
of the Condominium and a copy of the most recent budget of
projected expenses, if any.

(ii) a copy of the most recent notice from the
Board of Managers concerning changes in common charges, potential
assessments, and planned major improvements, if any.

(iii) copies of pleadings in pending lawsuits or
proceedings, the outcome of which may affect the offering of the
unit, the seller’s capacity to perform all of its obligations
under the Purchase Agreement or the rights of any existing tenant
of the unit, if any.

(iv) copies of the By-Laws of the Condominium, as

amended. .

(v) a copy of any notice of uncured violations of
record in the unit that are the responsibility of the.Unit Owner
to cure, if any.

A purchaser for investment or resale who singly or,
with other purchasers under common control, purchases a number
equal to or more than six units or ten (10%) percent of all
dwelling units in the building, whichever is greater, shall also
provide to the Department of Law all documents required pursuant
to the regulations promulgated by the Department of Law and
provide to all prospective purchasers, a copy of the offering
plan and all filed amendments.

SPONSOR_RESERVE AND WORKING CAPITAL FUND

The Sponsor will contribute $20,000 as a Reserve Fund
and $10,000 to the capital of the Condominium as a working capi-
tal fund ("Working Capital Fund") at the time of the fifteenth
closing of title, at which time, Sponsor shall apportion with the
Board of Managers the following items as of the date immediately
preceding the date of the first closing of title:

(a) Employee’s wages, vacation and severance pay,
pension and welfare benefits and all other pay-
ments or obligations relative to the employees of
the Buildings if any:;
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(b) Fees for assignable permits and licenses, if any:
(c) Cost of fuel (plus applicable sales tax):;

(d) Charges for electricity and gas for the Common
Elements;

(e) Payment under service, maintenance and concession
contracts;

(f) Water charges (unless and to the extent separately
. assessed to the individual Units);
(g) Cost of supplies on hand at Sponsor’s cost (plus
applicable sales tax):

(h) Premiums for transferable insurance policies; and
(i) Real estate taxes.

The Working Capital Fund will be used to pay the net
closing adjustments if in favor of Sponsor at the first closing
of title and the remainder may be held for working capital,
repairs and for any other purposes the Board of Managers shall
determine. If the net closing adjustments are in favor of
Sponsor at the first closing of title and exceed $10,000, payment
of the net closing adjustments in excess of $10,000 shall b¢ made
by the Board of Managers to Sponsor by delivery of unsecured
serial non-interest bearing promissory note(s) providing for
twelve (12) equal monthly installments commencing on the first
day of the second month immediately following the date of the
first closing of title. The reserve reflected in Schedule B may
be used by the Board of Managers to pay any additional monies to
the Sponsor. If the net closing adjustments are in favor of the
Board of Managers the aggregate amount will be added to the
Working Capital Fund.

The Board of Managers will be able to utilize the money
in the Working Capital Fund at any time and, accordingly, no
representation is made as to the exact amount of funds that will
be available at any specific time. In no event, however, shall
any portion of the Working Capital Fund be used to pay any Common
Charges attributable to Unsold Units or to pay any amount owed by
Sponsor to the Board of Managers in connection with its under-
taking with respect to Common Charges. The Reserve Fund may be
used at the discretion of the Board of Managers for long term
capital improvements and repairs.

NO REPRESENTATION IS MADE THAT THE WORKING CAPITAL FUND
OR RESERVE FUND WILL BE, OR IS INTENDED TO BE, ADEQUATE TO COVER
CURRENT OR FUTURE EXPENSES, INCLUDING REPAIRS OR REPLACEMENTS,
AND IF ADDITIONAL FUNDS ARE REQUIRED IN EXCESS OF THE WORKING
CAPITAL FUND AND THE RESERVE FUND IT MAY BE NECESSARY TO INCREASE
COMMON CHARGES.
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THE PROPERTY IS OFFERED IN ITS PRESENT CONDITION, AS
MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED IN THE INSPECTION REPORT SET FORTH IN
PART II, WITHOUT ANY OBLIGATION ON THE PART OF SPONSOR OR SELLING
AGENT TO MAKE ANY REPAIRS OR IMPROVEMENTS. NO GOVERNMENTAL
AGENCY HAS PASSED UPON THE ADEQUACY OF THE RESERVE FUND AND/OR
WORKING CAPITAL FUND OR UPON THE PHYSICAL CONDITION OF THE
PROPERTY.

PURCHASER RESERVE FOR WORKING
CAPITAL CONTINGENCIES

In addition to regular monthly payments of Common
Charges, at the closing of title the Purchaser of a Unit will be
required to pay an amount equivalent to two months’ Common
Charges to the Board of Managers, which sum shall be available
for working capital and future contingencies of the Condominium.
This is not an advance payment for Common Charges; and it shall
be in addition to the adjustments to be made with the Sponsor, as
hereinabove set forth. No representation is made that said funds
will be adequate for such reserves. Sponsor will not be required
to make any such payment toward the reserve funds. Until control
is turned over to the Unit Owners, the Board of Managers will not
utilize said reserve funds except for the payment of prepaid
expenses. Said funds shall not be used to reduce Sponsor’s
obligation to pay Common Charges for Unsold Units. Upon turnover
of control, an accounting of the reserve fund and expenditure
therefrom shall be made to the Board of Managers. :

INCOME TAX OPINION

The Sponsor has been advised by its counsel, Cassin,
Cassin & Joseph, 300 East 42nd Street, New York, New York 10017,
that. each Unit Owner will be entitled, under present law to
deduct from his gross income for Federal and New York State
income tax purposes, the real estate taxes assessed against his
apartment Unit and paid by him and interest on any mortgage
indebtedness covering his Unit.

In addition, the Sponsor has been advised by counsel
that some Unit Owners, such as Veterans of the United States
Armed Forces, may be entitled to exemptions covering part of the
real estate taxes otherwise assessed against their respective
Units.

The Sponsor has computed the maximum amount of the
estimated income tax deductions under present tax laws and
regulations applicable to each Unit and counsel to the Sponsor
has not passed upon the accuracy of such computations. The
actual amount of any income tax deduction may increase or de-
creéase as the amount of real estate taxes or mortgage interest
paid by the Unit Owner changes. The exact amount of any tax
saving to each Unit Owner will depend upon his income tax
bracket.
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No warranty can be made that the United States Treasury
Department or the Department of Taxation and Finance of the State
of New York will allow the income tax deductions referred to
herein, or that the tax law or the regulations issued thereunder,
or any judicial interpretation thereof, may not change so as to
disallow the deductions in whole or in part.

BALANCE OF THIS PAGE HAS BEEN LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY
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JOSEPH M. CASSIN
WitLiIAM F. CASSIN, JR.
CARQOL M. JOSEPH®

WILLIS H. STEPHENS, JR.

COUNSEL
CHARLES D. MOONEY**
GUY T. PARISI

LEGAL ASSISTANT
AVA ANDRUZ2!

CASSIN CASSIN & JOSEPH

300 EAST 42nN0 STREET

NEW YORK, N.Y. I00I7
212-972-6161
TELECOPIER
2i2-557-2952

"ALSO MEMBER OF NEW JERSEY ANO FLORIDA BARS

*EALSO MEMBER OF CONNECTICUT AND FLORIDA BARS

1 ELM PLACE
RYE, NEW YCRX 10580
914-969-15CS

324 ROYAL PALM WAY
SUITE 208
PALM BEACH, FLORIDA 33480

ONE OLD COUNTRY ROAD
SUITE 3i8
CARLE PLACE, NEW YORK 115i4

October , 1987

J & M Associates
11 Elm Place
Rye, New York 10580

Re: Offering Plan for Conversion to
Condominium Ownership of
100-110 Theodore Fremd Avenue
Rye, New York 10580 ("Plan")

Gentlemen:

You have requested our opinion concerning the
availability of certain deductions for Federal and New York State
income tax purposes to persons who purchase residential units
under the Plan and treatment for such income tax purposes of the
common charges paid or borne by residential unit owners.

In connection with rendering our opinion, we have
reviewed the Plan, relevant sections of the Internal Revenue Code
of 1954, as amended ("Code"), the New York State Tax Law, the
Regulations promulgated thereunder and such other materials as we
deemed relevant.

Each owner will receive a deed granting him legal title
to his unit and its appurtenant interest in the Common Elements
in fee simple. Accordingly, each residential unit will be taxed
as a separate tax lot for real estate taxes assessed with respect
to his unit. A residential unit owner may also mortgage his unit
and become individually liable for the payment of any finance
charges or interest on such mortgage indebtedness.

In our opinion, a residential unit owner will, for
Federal income tax purposes, be entitled to a deduction for real
estate taxes in the year paid or accrued and for mortgage
interest under Section 163 and 164 of the Code. It is assumed
that such taxes and interest are not prepaid and that such
interest is neither investment interest nor incurred to purchase
or carry tax-exempt securities. Under Section 461 (9) of the
Code, no deduction will be allowed to a cash basis taxpayer in
the year of payment for prepaid interest (other than points paid
in certain cases).
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It is also our opinion that each residential unit owner
will, for New York State income tax purposes, be entitled to the
same deduction which is allowed for Federal income tax purposes
for the mortgage interest and real estate taxes paid, in the case
of cash basis taxpayers or accrued, in the case of other
taxpayers during the taxable year. It should be noted, however,
that for New York State income tax purposes the deduction may be
reduced if the unit owner has more than a specified amount of tax
preference items.

Common charges will be borne by the unit owners and
assessed and collected by the Board of Managers ("Condominium
Board") .

Under Section 528 of the Code, some Condominium Boards
may be eligible to elect exemption from tax on common charges
collected from the unit owners, provided the requirements of
Section 528 are met. One of the requirements of the Section is
that sixty percent (60%) or more of the gross income of the
organization consist of dues, fees or assessments from owners of
residential units. Because of this and other tests for
qualification, it is not possible at this time for us to express
an opinion as to the applicability of Section 528 to this
Condominium.

The By-Laws provide that the Condominium Board will act
as the agent of the unit owners. Thus, the Condominium Board may
take the position that it is simply an agent and is not a
separate taxable entity. In such a case, the individual unit
owners would themselves be liable on any interest or similar
income which is earned from interim investments of the amounts
which are assessed and collected from the unit owners.

However, the Internal Revenue Service may contend that
for purposes of those matters administered through the
Condominium Board, such as the assessment and expenditure of
Common Charges, the unit owners, through the Condominium Board,
constitute an association taxable as a corporation. In such
event, the Board may be deemed liable for Federal corporate
income tax (and therefore to New York State corporate income tax)
on the portion of the Common Charges which is deemed to
constitute gross income of such association, to the extent that
such portion (together with income earned from other sources such
as interim investment of funds) exceeds current expenses paid or
incurred by the Condominium Board, which expenses would be
deductible for Federal income tax purposes. In this case, the
Condominium Board would similarly be subject to the New York
State Corporation Franchise Tax.

Notwithstanding the Condominium Board is treated as a
separate taxable entity, published rulings indicate that Common
Charges assessed by the Condominium Board should not constitute
gross income to the extent that they are designated for use
solely to make specified capital improvements and are maintained
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in a separate bank account, because either the Condominium Board
is deemed to receive and hold such funds as were collected (Rev.
Rul 75-370, 1975-2 Cum. Bull. 25) or because the assessed Common
Charges are -deemed to be nontaxable contributions to the capital
of the Board (Rev. Rul 75-371, 1975-2 Cum. Bull. 52). However,
if treated as contributions to capital, it should be noted that
when such amounts (together with any other funds accumulated by
the Condominium Board) are expended for capital improvements, the
Internal Revenue Service may contend that the capital
expenditures benefit the unit owners, and that each unit owner
should therefore be subject to tax on his pro-rata share of the
amount expended.

In the event that the Board is required to pay any
Federal or New York State income taxes, and an additional
assessment is made in order to meet such tax liability, the
additional amount collected through such assessment may itself be
subject to tax. Rev. Rul 74-75, 1974-1 Cum. Bull. 19.

We express no views as to any Federal or New York State
tax consequences or as to any aspects of the Plan other than
those consequences and aspects explicitly discussed in this
opinion, or as to any tax status of the Plan under laws of any
other United States or foreign jurisdiction.

This opinion does not address the tax consequences*
which might result from ownership of a unit by a foreign person,
or ownership of a unit in connection with the unit owner’s trade
or business. This opinion also does not deal with the tax
consequences which may arise if residential units are acquired
and/or leased by the Condominium Board. Each person
contemplating the purchase of a residential -unit is strongly
advised to consult his own tax advisor as to all tax matters (as
well as with respect to the tax matters addressed herein).

We make no warranty or representation that the Internal
Revenue Service or the New York State Department of Taxation and
Finance will accept any or all of the views stated above.
Moreover, the Federal and State tax laws and regulations (and the
rulings and decisions thereunder) may change and thereby affect
the views stated above in whole or in part.

We consent to the inclusion of this opinion, or a
reproduction thereof, in the Plan and to the reference to our
name under the caption "Counsel’s Tax Opinion."

Very truly yours,

Cassin, Cassin & Joseph
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SUMMARY OF THE PROVISIONS OF THE BY-LAWS

The Condominium Board of Managers

The affairs of the Condominium will be governed by the
Condominium Board of Managers which will consist initially of
three members designated by Sponsor. These members will be
chosen after the Plan is declared effective and prior to the
First Unit Closing and will, thereafter be identified in an
amendment to the Plan. Upon the sale of fifty-one (51%) percent
of the Units or within two (2) years from the Effective Date,
whichever is sooner, the three-member Board of Managers will
resign in favor of a new five-member Board of Managers to be
elected by all Unit Owners at the first meeting of all Unit
owners. Said meeting will be held within ninety (90) days after
control is no longer held by Sponsor. Each of the members of the
five-member Board of Managers will serve for a term of three (3)
years or until their successors are elected and qualified except
that the term of office of one-third of the Board of Managers
then elected shall be fixed at two (2) years or until their
successors are elected and the term of one-third of the Board of
Managers then elected shall be fixed at one (1) year or until
their successors are elected. At the expiration of the initial
term of office of each member of the Board of Managers, his
successor shall be elected to serve for a term of three (3)
years. As a result, the terms of one-third of the Board of;
Managers will expire each year or when their successors are
elected and qualified. )

Except for members designated or elected by Sponsor or
its designee, all members of the Board of Managers must be
either; (i) individual Unit Owner; (ii) individual mortgagees;
(1ii) officers, directors, shareholders, partners, principals,
employees, or beneficiaries of corporations, partnerships,
fiduciaries, or any other entities that are Unit Owners or
mortgagees; or (iv) adult family members of any of the
foregoing. Other than members designated as such by Sponsor or
its designee, no member will continue to serve on the Board of
Managers after he ceases to be a Unit Owner or an interested
party in a Unit Owner, as specified hereinabove.

Members of the Board of Managers are subject to
removal, without cause, by vote of the majority of Unit Owners
attending a meeting at which a quorum is present. The presence,
in person or by proxy, of a majority of all Unit Owners shall
constitute a quorum. Voting shall be calculated based upon one
vote per Unit. Voting rights do not commence until a purchaser
has closed title to his unit.

All members of the Board of Managers will serve without
compensation.
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Control by Sponsor

' Title to all Unsold Units will remain with Sponsor
until such Units shall thereafter be sold by or to Sponsor (such
sale does not require the approval of or a first offer to the
Board of Managers). Sponsor or its designee shall have the right
to vote for the Units owned by Sponsor.

The Sponsor will have voting control of the Board of
Managers until the transfer of title to fifty-one (51%) percent
of the Units or for no more than two (2) years from the date of
the first Unit Closing, whichever is sooner. Subsequent to this
control period, not more than two (2) members of the Board of
Managers may be elected by Sponsor or the then owner of the
Unsold Units, however, as long as Sponsor or its designee own at
least one (1) Unsold Unit, Sponsor or its designee will have the
right to elect one member of the Board of Managers.

The number of members of the Board of Managers may not
be increased without the consent of the Sponsor or its designee
for so long as Sponsor or its designee owns any Unsold Units.

Until Sponsor no longer elects a majority of the
members of the Board of Managers, Sponsor will, through its
control of the Board of Managers have control of the maintenance
and operation of, and the services to be provided by, the
Condominium and will indirectly determine the Common Charges to
be paid by all Unit Owners. Sponsor will not reduce services
during the period in which Sponsor has voting control of the
Board of Managers.

So long as the Sponsor or its designee shall continue
to own apartment Units representing 25% or more in Common
Interest or for no more than three (3) years, whichever is
sooner, the Board of Managers may not, without the Sponsor’s
prior written consent, (i) make any addition, alteration or
improvement to the Common Elements or to any Apartment Unit, (ii)
assess any Common Charges for the creation of, addition to or
replacement of all or part of a reserve, contingency or surplus
fund or (iii) hire any employee referred to in the Plan or (iv)
enter into any service or maintenance contract for work not
covered by contracts in existence on the date of the first
closing of title to an apartment Unit or (v) borrow money on
behalf of the Condominium. However, the Sponsor may not exercise
veto power over expenses in Schedule B or expenses required to
(i) comply with applicable law or regulation, (ii) remedy any
notice of violation or (iii) remedy any work order by an insurer.

Officers
' The Officers of the Condominium shall consist of the
President, the Vice-President, the Secretary and the Treasurer,

all of whom shall be elected by majority vote of the Board of
Managers at its annual meeting. None of the officers need be
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Unit Owners until the five-member Board of Managers is elected at
the first meeting of all Unit Owners. Thereafter the President
and Vice-President must be both members of the Board of Managers
and Unit Owners. Each Officer shall hold office at the pleasure
of the Board of Managers. The Board may appoint an Assistant
Treasurer and an Assistant Secretary and such other officers as
in its judgment may be necessary. All officers shall serve
without compensation.

Meetings and Votes of Unit Owners

The Unit Owners shall hold annual meetings on or about
the anniversary date of the first Unit Owner'’s meeting each
year. At each annual meeting the Unit Owners shall elect
successors to the members of the Board of Managers. In addition,
special meetings of Unit Owners may be held from time to time
pursuant to Section 2.8 of the By-Laws whenever necessary for the
affairs of the Condominium.

Each Unit Owner, upon obtaining title, will automati-
cally have one vote at all meetings of the Unit Owners for each
Unit owned by him. In the event of co-ownership of a Unit, each
co-owner shall be entitled to a fractional vote to be determined
by the number of co-owners divided into one. The presence in
person or by proxy, of at least fifty-one (51%) percent of all
Unit Owners will constitute a quorum at all meetings and unless
otherwise provided, the decision of Unit Owners casting a majo-
rity of the votes at a meeting at which a quorum is present, will
be binding upon all Unit Owners. -

Amendments to the Declaration and By-laws

Generally, subject to certain exceptions and provided
that any required consent of the Mortgage Representatives is
obtained, any provision of the Declaration, the By-Laws, or the
Rules and Regulations may be amended, modified, added to, or
deleted by the affirmative vote of two thirds (2/3) of all Unit
Owners, both in number and in Common Interests. However, for so
long as Sponsor or its designee is the owner of one or more
Units, the Declaration, the By-Laws and the Rules and Regulations
may not be amended, modified or added to or deleted so as to
adversely affect Sponsor or such designee without the prior
written consent of Sponsor or said designee.

Estimated Common Charges and Expenses

The Board of Managers shall prepare a budget for the
Condominium from time to time and at least once a year. Copies
of such budget shall be furnished to the Unit Owners. The Common
Charges payable by each Unit Owner shall be based upon such
budget. The expenses outlined in the budget shall be divided
among the Unit Owners in accordance with his or her appurtenant
interest in the Common Elements.
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In addition to the normal operating expenses of the
Condominium, the budget may, in the discretion of the Beoard of
Managers, provide for reserves, working capital and other sums
required for the affairs of the Condominium. Every Unit Owner
shall be advised promptly after the adoption of each budget of
the amount of Common Charges and expenses payable by him for the
period covered by such budget.

Liens for Non-Payment of Common Charges

Under the provisions of Section 339-z of the Real
Property Law of the State of New York, the Board of Managers on
behalf of the Unit Owners shall have a lien on each Unit for
unpaid Common Charges together with interest thereon. Such lien
shall be subordinate only to liens for real estate taxes on the
Unit and to any sums unpaid on a first mortgage of record on such
Unit. Any lien for unpaid Common Charges against a Unit shall 'be
effective from and after the filing of a notice thereof in the
office of the County Clerk, County of Westchester, Division of
Land Records, and until all sums secured thereby with the inte-
rest thereon shall have been fully paid or until six years from
the date of filing (unless foreclosure of such lien is started
within such six-year period), whichever may be earlier. Such
lien may be foreclosed by a suit brought in the name of the Board
of Managers acting on behalf of the Unit Owners in like manner as
the foreclosure of a mortgage on real property, or an action may
be brought by the Board of Managers to recover the unpaid Common
Charges without foreclosing the lien.

Termination of Liability of Unit Owners

The liability of each Unit Owner for the payment of the
Common Charges and expenses thereafter assessed or becoming due
against his Apartment Unit shall terminate upon a permissible
sale, transfer or other conveyance of such Unit made by him,
together with appurtenant interest in the Common Elements (as
defined in the By-Laws) in accordance with the applicable provi-
sions of the By-Laws. In addition, any Unit Owner may, subject
to the terms and conditions specified in the By-Laws convey his
Unit together with the said appurtenant interests to the Board of
Managers or its nominee on behalf of all other Unit Owners
without any compensation and in such event shall be exempt from
Common Charges and expenses assessed. A Purchaser of a Unit
shall be required by the Board of Managers to pay any unpaid
Common Charges and expenses assessed except that a mortgagee
acquiring title to the mortgaged Unit against his Unit prior to
his acquisition of such Unit or a Purchaser at a foreclosure sale
shall not be liable and the Unit shall not be subject to a lien
for the payment of the Common Charges and expenses assessed prior
to the acquisition of title to such Unit by a mortgagee or
Purchaser at a foreclosure sale, but such mortgagee or Purchaser
at a foreclosure sale shall be liable for payment of all Common
Charges and expenses after the acquisition of title. In the
event of a foreclosure by the Board of Managers of a statutory
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lien on any Unit for unpaid Common Charges and expenses, if the
proceeds of the foreclosure sale shall not be sufficient for the
payment of such unpaid Common Charges and expenses, Or if a Unit
is acquired by a mortgagee (other than the Sponsor) or Purchaser
in foreclosure, the unpaid balance shall be charged to all Unit
Oowners as a common expense.

Repairs

All maintenance of and repairs to any Unit, ordinary or
extraordinary, and to the doors (except painting exterior side of
Unit entrance door), windows (except painting exterior side of
windows), electrical and plumbing (except Common Elements) and
heating fixtures, Kitchen appliances, washers and air condi-
tioning within the Unit or belonging to the Unit Owner shall be
made by the Unit Owner at his own expense.

All maintenance, repairs and replacements to the Common
Elements and the painting and decorating of the exterior side of
Unit entrance door and windows shall be made by the Board of
Managers, who need not obtain the approval of the Unit Owners or
the mortgagees of Units and charged to all the Unit Owners as a
Common Expense, excepting to the extent that the same are neces-
sitated by the negligence, misuse or neglect of a Unit Owner, in
which case such expense shall be charged to such Unit Owner. The
repair and maintenance of outside parking spaces shall be the
responsibility of the Condominium.

Rights of Access

As more fully set forth in the By-Laws, the Board of
Managers, the Managing Agent, the superintendent and all other
persons authorized by the Board of Managers, will have a right of
access to any Unit and its appurtenant Common Elements for the
purposes, among others, of (i) making inspections of, or removing
violations of governmental laws or regulations against, any part
of the Property, (ii) curing defaults committed by the owner of
such Unit, or (iii) correcting any conditions originating in any
Unit and threatening another Unit, or any Common element.
Sponsor and its contractors, subcontractors, agents and employees
will have a right of access to each Unit and to all of the Common
Elements for purposes of certain alterations and repairs in or
about Unsold Units and in fulfilling Sponsor’s obligations under
the Plan.

Self-Help

In the event that any Unit Owner fails to maintain or
repair parts of the Building required to be maintained or
repaired by such Unit Owner, then, as set forth in the By-Laws,
the Board of Managers shall have certain rights to perform such
maintenance or repairs, or to cure such breach, at such Unit
owner’s expense.
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Insurance

The Board of Managers shall obtain and maintain, to the
extent obtainable and to the extent determined by the Board of
Managers to be appropriate or relevant: (1) fire insurance with
extended coverage, vandalism and malicious mischief endorsements
insuring the Building, including all of the Units (but not
including appliances or any furniture, furnishings, or other
personal property supplied or installed by Unit Owners or tenants
of Unit Owners) together with all service machinery contained
therein, covering the interests of the Condominium, the Board of
Managers and all Unit Owners and their mortgagees, as their
interests may appear in an amount equal to the full replacement
value of the Building without deduction for depreciation; (2)
boiler and machinery insurance; (3) water damage legal liability
insurance; and (4) such other insurance as the Board of Managers
may determine.

The proceeds of all policies of physical damage insu-
rance shall be payable to the Board of Managers if $25,000 or
less and to the Insurance Trustee if more than $25,000 in accor-
dance with the terms of the By-lLaws, to be applied for the
purpose of repairing, restoring, or rebuilding the Building
unless otherwise determined by the Unit Owners as hereinafter set
forth. No portion of the insurance proceeds shall be applied to
the payment of the mortgage indebtedness of any Unit Owner unless
the Unit Owners determine not to repair, restore or rebuild the
Building. ‘

All policies of physical damage insurance shall contain
waivers of subrogation and of any defense based on co-insurance
or on invalidity arising from any acts of the insured or of pro
rata reduction of liability, and shall provide that such policies
may not be cancelled or substantially modified without at least
ten (10) days’ prior written notice to all of the insured,
including all mortgagees of Units. Duplicate originals of all
policies of physical damage insurance and of all renewals
thereof, together with proof of payment of premiums, shall be
delivered to all mortgagees of Units at least ten (10) days prior
to expiration of the then current policies and each Unit Owner
shall receive a certificate of insurance.

The cost of all such insurance shall be paid by the
Board of Managers and shall constitute a Common Expense.

The Board of Managers shall also obtain and maintain to
the extent obtainable: (1) fidelity insurance covering all
officers, employees and agents of the Condominium who handle
Condominium funds; (2) Workmen’s Compensation Insurance; and (3)
Public Liability Insurance covering each member of the Board of
Managers, the Managing Agent, if any, and each Unit Owner in such
limits as the Board of Managers may deem proper, and covering all
claims for bodily injury or property damage arising out of any
occurrence in the Common Elements of the Units, except that such
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policy will not cover liability of a Unit Owner arising from
occurrences within his own Unit or within the limited Common
Elements exclusive to his Unit. The Board of Managers shall
review such limits once each year. The public liability insu-
rance shall also cover cross-liability claims of one insured
against another. Until the first meeting of the Board of
Managers elected by the Unit Owners, the public liability insu-
rance will be in a single limit of $1,000,000.00 coverage all
claims for bodily injury or property damage in respect of any one
occurrence.

The foregoing insurance does not cover damages or
liability within the Unit. Unit Owners are advised to obtain
insurance for these purposes. Unit Owners may carry insurance
for their own benefit at their own expense provided that such
policies contain waivers of subrogation and further provided that
the liability of carriers issuing insurance procured by the Board
of Managers shall not be affected or diminished by reason of any
other Unit Owner’s insurance.

Damage By Fire Or Other Casualty

Except as hereinafter provided, in the event the
Building or any part thereof is damaged or destroyed by fire or
other casualty, the Board of Managers shall arrange for the
repair and restoration of the Building, including any damaged
Units, but not including wall, floor or ceiling decorations or
coverings or furniture, furnishings, fixtures, appliances or
equipment contained therein. If the insurance proceeds are not
sufficient for the repair or restoration, the Board of Managers
may assess all of the Unit Owners for such deficit as part of the
Common Expenses. Any surplus insurance proceeds will be paid to
all Unit Owners in proportion to their respective Common
Interests, except that no payment will be made to a Unit Owner
until there has first been paid out of his share of the funds,
the amount necessary to reduce unpaid liens on his Unit in the
order of priority of such liens.

I1f seventy-five (75%) percent or more of all Buildings
are destroyed or substantially damaged and if seventy-five (75%)
percent or more of the Unit owners do not duly and promptly
resolve to proceed with repair or restoration thereof, the
Property will not be repaired and shall be subject to an action
for partition instituted by any Unit Onwer or lienor, as if owned
in common, in which event the net proceeds of the resulting sale,
together with the net proceeds of the insurance policies, shall
be divided among all of the Unit Owners in proportion to their
respective common interests, provided, however, that no payment
shall be made to a Unit Owner until there has first been paid out
of his share of such funds, all liens on his Unit, in the order
of the priority of such liens. If the Sponsor or its designee is
then a Unit Owner, it will have the right to vote at any meeting
of Unit Owners called for the purpose of deciding whether or not
to proceed with the repair and restoration of the Building.
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Restrictions on the Use and Occupancy of Units

As more fully set forth in the Declaration and in the
By-Laws, each Unit shall be used only as a residence and, if the
the consent of Sponsor (as to the initial purchasers of Unsold
Units) or the Board of Managers is obtained, any home occupation
permitted by law and the then existing Certificate of Occupancy
covering such Unit. Such consent, if obtained, shall be personal
to the Unit Owner and not transferable to subsequent owners.
However, Sponsor or its designee may, without obtaining the
consent of the Board of Managers or the other Unit Owners, allow
any one or more Unsold Units to be used for (a) a model unit and
sales and/or promotion office in connection with the sale and/or
rental of the Unsold Units or (b) for any other purpose, subject
only to compliance with the applicable laws and the then existing
Certificate of Occupancy. No nuisance or immoral, improper,
offensive or unlawful use shall be allowed in the Building or any
portion thereof.

Additions, Alterations and Improvements

Whenever in the judgment of the Board of Managers the
Common Elements shall require additions, alterations or improve-
ments costing more than $25,000.00 and the making of such addi-
tions, alterations or improvements shall have been approved by a
majority of the Unit Owners, the Board of Managers shall proceed
with such additions, alterations or improvements and shall assess
each Unit Owner his proportionate share of the cost thereof as
part of the Common Expenses. Any additions, alterations or
improvements costing $25,000.00 or less may be made by the Board
of Managers without approval of Unit Owners and the cost thereof
shall constitute part of the Common Expenses.

No Unit Owner may make any structural addition, altera-
tion or improvement in his Unit or any alterations to the Common
Elements without the prior written approval of the Board of
Managers. No application shall be filed with any governmental
authority for a permit covering an addition, alteration or
improvement to be made in an apartment Unit, unless approved and
executed by the Board of Managers. Upon consent by the Board of
Managers for any such alteration, the Unit Owner will be
responsible for the cost of performing such work including all
filing fees and such Unit Owner shall obtain his own insurance
which shall name the Condominium as an additional insured. The
provisions of this paragraph shall not apply to a Unit owned by
the Sponsor or its designee until a deed to such unit has been
delivered to a Purchaser thereof for value.

The Board of Managers will execute any application or
other document required to be filed with any governmental autho-
rity having or asserting jurisdiction in connection with any such
structural addition, alteration or improvement made by the
Sponsor or its designee to any Apartment Unit, provided, however,
that neither the Board of Managers nor the Unit Owners shall be
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subjected to any expense or liability by virtue of the execution
of the application or such other document.

Liability of Board of Managers
and Unit Owners

The members of the Board of Managers will have no
liability to Unit Owners for errors of judgment, negligence or
otherwise, except that individual members will be liable for
their own bad faith, willful misconduct or gross negligence. The
Board of Managers may contract or effect other transactions with
any member thereof, with any Unit Owner, with Sponsor or with any
affiliate of any of them at competitive rates without incurring
any liability for self-dealing.

Every contract made by the Board of Managers, by an
officer of the Condominium, or by the Managing Agent of the
Building will contain a statement (if obtainable) that (a) the
contract is made only as agent for all Unit Owners, and the
members of the Board of Managers or such officers, or Managing
Agent will have not personal liability thereon (except in their
capacities as Unit Owners) and (b) the liability of any Unit
Owner with respect to such contract will be limited to (i) such
proportionate share of the total liability thereunder as the
Common Interest of the Unit Owner bears to the aggregate Common
Interests of all Unit Owners and (ii) the Unit Owner’s ownerghip
interest in his Unit and its appurtenant Common Interest, unless
otherwise provided by law.

All Unit Owners will severally indemnify each member of
the Board of Managers against any liability or claim, contractual
or otherwise, except those arising out of the bad faith or
willful misconduct of such member or that are contrary to law or
the terms of the Declaration or the By-Laws. However, the
liability of any Unit Owner on account of such indemnification
will be limited to such proportionate share thereof as the Common
Interest of the Unit Owner bears to the aggregate Common Interest
of the Unit Owner bears to the aggregate Common Interests of all
Unit Owners and the Unit Owner’s ownership interest in his Unit
and its appurtenant Common Interest, unless otherwise provided by
law.

Compliance With Tenant Rights

The Condominium Board shall operate the Property at the
same level of services as on the date of recording the Declara-
tion in accordance with the leases in effect, except for those
services that are the obligation of Sponsor to provide to tenants
and the occupants of its Unsold Units pursuant to the Declaration
or the By-Laws. The Board of Managers shall not impose any
charge or fee against the tenants and occupants of the Unsold
Units for using the Common Elements or on account of any services
provided to those tenants and occupants unless permitted by law
or the Plan. The permitted charges, or fees, may be increased by
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the Board of Managers but only to the extent allowed under
applicable law. Except for those services and obligations to be
provided or performed by the Board of Managers as set forth in
the Declaration or the By-Laws, Sponsor shall provide and perform
all other services and obligations required by law to be fur-
nished to tenants and occupants of the Unsold Units.

EASEMENTS

As more fully set forth in the Declaration, each Unit
Owner will have, in common with all other Unit Owners; (a) an
easement to use, maintain, repair, alter and replace all pipes,
wires, ducts, vents, cables conduits, public utility lines and
other Common Elements located in the other Units or elsewhere on
the Property and serving such Unit; and (b) an easement for the
continuance of any encroachment by a Unit on any other Unit or on
any Common Elements existing, or that may come into existence, as
a result of (i) the settling or shifting of the Building; (ii)
any alteration or repair to the Common Elements made by, or with
the consent of, the Board of Managers or by Sponsor or its
designee in accordance with the terms of the Declaration; or
(iii) any repair or restoration of the Building (or any portion
thereof) or of any Unit after damage by fire or other casualty or
any taking by condemnation or eminent domain proceedings of all
or any portion of any Unit or the Common Elements, so that any
such encroachment may remain so long as the Building stands.
Each Unit will be subject to the aforesaid easements in favor of
all other Units. In addition, each Unit will have, and will be
subject to, easements of subjacency, support and necessity in
favor of such Unit or in favor of other Units and the Common
Elements.

Sponsor and prospective Purchasers and tenants of
Unsold Units will have an easement on and through the Common
Elements for all purposes relating to the sale and rental of such
Units, without being subject to any charge or fee therefor.
Sponsor may use its Units and the Common Elements (at any one or
more places designated by Sponsor) for sales, rental or display
purposes, including placing "for sale" or "for rent" signs and
other promotional and/or building materials of such size and
content as Sponsor in its sole discretion determines.

Each deed to a unit shall include and shall be subject
to the easement hereinabove described.

MECHANIC’S LIENS

Under the provisions of the Condominium Act, no lien of
any nature may arise or be created against the Common Elements
except with the unanimous consent of all Unit Owners. Liens may
arise or be created only against the several Units and their
respective Common Interests. A lien for labor performed on or
materials furnished to a Unit may be filed against the Unit of a
Unit Owner who expressly consented to or requested the same,
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except in the case of emergency repairs. No labor performed on
or materials furnished to the Common Elements shall be the basis
for a lien thereon, but all Common Charges received by the Board
of Managers shall constitute trust funds for the purpose of
paying the cost of the labor performed or materials furnished at
the request or with the consent of the Board of Managers or the
Managing Agent.

TERMINATION OF CONDOMINTUM

The Condominium shall continue (unless terminated by
casualty loss, or by condemnation or eminent domain as provided
in the By-Laws) until such time as the Property shall be with-
drawn from the provisions of the Condominium Act as a result of
the vote of at least eighty (80%) percent of the Unit Owners,
both in number and aggregate common interests, at which time the
Property shall be subject to an action for partition by any Unit
Owner or any lienor as if owned in common, and the net proceeds
of the sale resulting therefrom shall be divided among all Unit
owners in proportion to their respective interests in the Common
Elements, after first applying the share of the net proceeds of
such sale otherwise payable to each Unit Owner to the payments of
any liens on the Unit in the order of the priority of such liens.

The Unit Owners cannot bring an action to partition the
common areas of the Property including any Units acqulred by the
Board of Managers on behalf of all Unit Owners, unless in cdnnec-.
tion with the termination of the Condominium as above set forth.

MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT

It is presently contemplated that the Condominium will
be managed by the Ridgewood Management Corp., 300 East 42nd
Street, New York, New York. The principal shareholder of the
Managing Agent is also a principal of the Sponsor. Such
management will be pursuant to a two-year management contract at
a fee of $18,000 per year. Such fee will be paid by the Board of
Managers and charged to all Unit Owners as a Common Expense.
However, the Managing Agent will be entitled to collect from each
Unit Owner, other than the Sponsor, its designee or any other
owner of an Unsold Unit, a fee in the amount of Three Hundred
($300.00) Dollars, for the processing of each application for the
lease or sale of a Unit.

The duties and services to be rendered by the Managing
Agent under the direction of the Board of Managers shall be
performed without discrimination to any and all tenants and will
include:

1. Billing and collecting of Common Charges and other
charges if authorized by the Board of Managers;

2. Causing the Buildings to be maintained, repaired
and altered to the condition deemed advisable by the Board of
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Managers except that the approval of the Board of Managers will
be necessary for any expenditures of over $1,500.00 for any one
item of ordinary repairs or alterations (other than emergency
repairs);

3. Contracting for necessary services for the Build-
ings, such as electricity, gas, window cleaning, exterminator
service, elevator and fuel oil, but no contract shall be for a
term longer than two (2) years or require annual payments in
excess of $2,000.00 unless authorized by the Board of Managers.

4. Purchasing all supplies necessary to properly
maintain and operate the Building;

5. Checking all bills received in connection with the
operation of the Building and causing all such bills and, if
requested by the Board of Managers, other expenses to be paid.

6. Supervising, hiring and discharging employees,
which duty may be delegated by the Managing Agent to one or more
persons in its general employ:

7. Rendering quarterly statements of receipts and
disbursements to the Board of Managers;

. 8. Preparing payrolls and filing withholding tgx
statements for employees; and . )

_ 9. Preparing and submitting annually to the Board of
Managers an operating budget of the anticipated income and
expenses for the ensuing year.

The annual certified financial statement of the Board
of Managers will not be prepared by the Managing Agent. Such
statement will be prepared by an independent certified public
accountant engaged by the Board of Managers, who’s fees are to be
paid by the Board of Managers and charged to the Unit Owners as a
Common Expense. :

All expenses incurred by the Managing Agent in perfor-
mance of its duties shall be paid by the Board of Managers and
charged to the Unit Owners as a Common Expense. In addition, the
Board of Managers will indemnify the Managing Agent against any
claims or liability in connection with acts properly performed by
it pursuant to the Board of Managers’ instructions or for per-
sonal injury or property damage not resulting from the Managing
Agent’s willful negligence or failure to comply with its obliga-
tions under the Management Agreement. All the officers and
employees of the Managing Agent will be bonded during the term of
its contract in favor of the Condominium. The cost of the bonds
will be borne by the Board of Managers and charged to the Unit
Owners as a Common Expense.
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SPONSOR’S PROFIT

Sponsor is converting the Property to Condominium
ownership and is offering the Units for sale with the intention
and expectation of making a profit. The exact amount of profit
to be realized by Sponsor, however, cannot now be determined and
may vary significantly depending upon a number of variables,
including the Purchase Price at which each Unit is actually sold,
market conditions, length of time required to sell all of the
Units and disbursements arising out of the obligations assumed or
incurred by Sponsor under the Plan and other contingencies.

The Sponsor acquired the property in December, 1985.
Since acquiring the property, the Sponsor has made major repairs
and improvements with an aggregate cost of approximately $200,000
and expects to spend another $25,000 prior to the sale of any
Units. At the time of acquisition, the Sponsor had closing costs
of approximately $25,000. 1In addition, it is estimated that
conversion costs, including filing fees, sales commissions,
attorneys’ and engineers’ fees and advertising also should
aggregate approximately $200,000. This transaction is also
subject to state taxes on the transfer of the property as well as
state and federal income tax on any profit realized. The Sponsor

estimates its profit to be approximately $1,000,000.

IDENTITY OF PARTIES

Sponsor

The Sponsor of this conversion is J & M Associates, a
partnership formed in New York State in December, 1985,
consisting of the following two (2) general partners:

1. Joseph M. Cassin is a partner in the law firm of
Cassin, Cassin & Joseph, which has offices at 300 East 42nd
Street, New York, New York. He resides at 4 Ridgewood Drive,
Rye, New York.

2. Michael Grean is a partner in the law firm of Cook
& Grean which has offices at 15 Elm Place, Rye, New York. He
resides at Forest Avenue, Rye, New York.

Selling Agent

The selling agent, Ridgewood Management Corp., is a New
York corporation formed in 1986, whose sole stockholder and
officer is Joseph M. Cassin. It has offices at 300 East 42nd
Street, New York, New York 10017. The principal of the Selling
Agent is also a principal of the Sponsor.

Mr. Cassin has been involved in the sponsorship of a

conversion of Tappan Manour Condominium which closed in January,
1987.
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Ridgewood Management Corp. has performed and may or
will perform a number of services under this Plan in its capacity
as the Selling Agent such as: the review of the Schedule A,
"purchase Price and Other Financial Details for Each Apartment";
the review.of the Schedule B, "Estimated Income and Expenses for
the First Year of Operatlon as a Condominium"; the giv1ng of its
consent for any changes in the Purchase Price or the size or
layout of a Unit, and the re-allocation of Common Interests in
connection therew1th.

The Selling Agent will receive a fee upon the sales
effected.

Managing Agent

Ridgewood Management Corp., the sales agent, will also
manage the Property. It is currently an owner/management company
that operates 11 buildings with over 125 units throughout
Westchester County. The Managing Agent will receive a management
fee in accordance with the Management Agreement as described
herein. The principal of the Managing Agent is also a principal
of the Sponsor.

Sponsor’s Attorneys

The Sponsor has retained the firm of Cassin, Cassin &
Joseph, 300 East 42nd Street, New York, New York 10017, to *
represent the Sponsor in connection with this Plan and the sale
of the Property. Said firm has prepared the Plan, Counsel’s Tax
Opinion, Purchase Agreement, Declaration, By-Laws and related
exhibits and documents referred to herein. Said firm will
represent the Sponsor at closing.

Sponsor’s Engineer

The engineer, Vito Sinopoli, Jr., has examined the
physical condition of the Building and has rendered its report
thereof set forth in Document 2 in Part II of this Plan. The
engineer has no financial interest in the Property, the Sponsor,
the Managing Agent and Selling Agent or any other party
interested in this transaction, except for its fee for services
rendered in connection with such report.

RECORDATION OF.DOCUMENTS
After the Plan is presented and prior to the first con-
veyance of any Unit, the following documents will be recorded or
f;led in the Office of the County Clerk, County of Westchester,
Division of Land Records and elsewhere if required by law:
(1) Declaration of Condominium and By-Laws;

(2) Floor plans for the Building, showing the layout,
locations and approximate dimensions of each Unit,
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and of the Unit designation, certified by a
licensed engineer or architect as conforming to a
typical Unit and;

(3) Unit designations certified by the Assessor of the
County of Westchester as conforming to the offi-
cial tax lot number of each Unit.

GENERAL

Each Unit Owner shall be required to comply with and
abide by the Declaration and By-Laws of the Condominium and to
pay the Common Charges and expenses levied by the Board of
Managers, and each Unit Owner shall be required to comply with
the Rules and Regulations adopted pursuant thereto. Such obliga-
tions shall be enforceable by the Board of Managers by fore-
closure of the statutory lien against the Unit for the amount of
any such unpaid Common Charges or expenses oOr by suit to collect
the same by action for damages, by injunction or by other appro-
priate relief.

There are no contractual undertakings or obligations of
the Sponsor or other persons or bonds or other securities posted
to insure payment of any obligations or undertakings, which would
affect the ownership of Units by Purchaser.
a

In accordance with the provisions of the Laws of the
State of New York, the Sponsor represents that neither the
Sponsor nor any Selling Agent engaged by the Sponsor will discri-
minate against any person because of his or her race, creed,
color, sex, national origin or ancestry in the sale of Units
offered by the Plan or in the leasing of any Unit in the
Building.

The Plan does not knowingly omit any material fact or
contain any untrue statement of any material fact. The Plan does
not contain a full summary of all the provisions of the various
documents referred to herein. Statements made as to the provi-
sions of such documents are qualified in all respects by the
contents of such documents and, in the case of any such documents
executed by or with the written consent of the Purchaser to this
Plan, any rider or separate agreement changing or adding provi-
sions to such documents.

In accordance with Section 352-(e) (9) of the General
Business Law, copies of this Plan and all exhibits or documents
referred to herein shall be available for inspection without
charge and copying at a reasconable cost by prospective Purchasers
and by any person who shall have purchased Units offered by this
Plan or who shall have participated in the offering of such
Units, at the office of Ridgewood Management Corp., 11 Third
Street, Rye, New York, and said copies will remain available for
inspection for six years from the first closing of a Unit.
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As of the date of the presentation of this Plan,
neither the Sponsor, nor any representative or agent thereof has
received funds or made any preliminary offering or binding
agreement to or with tenants, sub-tenants or non-resident prospec-
tive purchasers with respect to Units in the Building.

All Unit Owners will be entitled to receive annually
from the Condominium at its expense copies of the following:
(1) an annual audited financial statement prepared by an
independent certified public accountant, to be received annually
within four months after the end of the fiscal year, and (ii)
notice of the holding of an annual Unit Owners meeting for the
purpose of electing a Board of Managers to be received annually
not less than ten (10) days before the meeting.

There are no lawsuits or other legal proceedings
pending or any judgments outstanding, that could materially
affect this offering, the Purchasers of Units, the Property, the
Condominium or the operation thereof.

Unless the context otherwise requires, words used in
the singular in Part I of this Plan include the plural and vice
verse, and a reference to any one gender, masculine, feminine or
neuter, includes the other two. :

No person has been authorized to make any statemgpt or
representation or furnish any information not expressly contained
herein. Any information, data or representations not contained
herein or in the documents and exhibits referred to herein must
not be relied upon. The Plan may not be changed or modified

orally.

STATEMENT OF PRESENT BUILDING CONDITION

The Sponsor adopts the description of the buildings and
statement of their condition (the "Report") and represents that
to the best of its knowledge the Report hereinafter set forth in
Part II accurately states the condition of the building and its
equipment as of the date of the inspection. The Report was
prepared in consultation with Vito Sinopoli, Jr., P.E. having an
office at 315 Travers Avenue, Mamaroneck, New York.

The Sponsor further represents that it does not know of
any material defect or need for material repairs to the Property
except as set forth in the Report or included in the First Year'’s
Budget. Any and all claims based on the Owner’s representations
are contained in the preceding paragraph and this paragraph shall
be made and enforced only by the Board of Managers on behalf of
all the Unit Owners and not by a Unit Owner or Owners indivi-
dually.

The entire Property, including the apartment Units and

fixtures and appliances contained therein, is offered in its
current condition as set forth herein. No government agency has
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passed upon the physical condition of the Building. The Sponsor
will cure or cause to be cured, without expense to the Condomi-
nium Association any violations of record against the Building
existing on the date of the closing under this plan (except for
those violations caused by the Tenant and which it is the
Tenant’s obligation to cure) and eliminate the dangerous or
hazardous condition of which the Sponsor has actual notice, and
comply with all work orders from mortgagees and insurance
carriers within ninety (90) days after the Closing Date. Funds
to cure these violations will be escrowed from the proceeds at
closing with the amount to be based upon an estimate furnished by
Sponsor’s engineer. The current use of the Property conforms
with the use permitted under the certificate of occupancy.

PROSPECTIVE PURCHASERS OF THEIR REPRESENTATIVES MAY INSPECT THE
PREMISES PRIOR TO SIGNING A PURCHASE AGREEMENT DURING BUSINESS
HOURS, UPON WRITTEN REQUEST MADE TO THE SPONSOR, PROVIDED SUCH
REPRESENTATIVES ARE REGISTERED ARCHITECTS OR PROFESSIONAL
ENGINEERS LICENSED TO PRACTICE IN THE STATE OF NEW YORK.

Asbestos (ACM)

A report is contained in Part II which discloses the
extent of asbestos presence in the premises. The Sponsor assumes
the obligation to perform the repairs necessary pursuant to said

report.
[
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PART II
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DOCUMENT NUMBER 1

PURCHASE AGREEMENT
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THE RYEVIEW CONDOMINIUM
100-110 Theodore Fremd Avenue
Rye, New York 10580

PURCHASE AGREEMENT

(To be executed in triplicate)

Date:
Unit No:
Garage No:
Common
Interest:

Purchaser(s):

Address:

Purchaser(s) Social Security Number(s):

Purchase Price: S

Downpavyment:

($1,000.00 for tenants:;
10% of Purchase Price
for non-tenants): $

Balance Due: S

Information for non-tenant purchaser(s) of occupied Units:*

(a) Existing lease expires: , 198 :

OR

(b) Monthly Rent under Existing Lease or Tenancy: $

*Delete if inapplicable
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AGREEMENT, made as of , 198__ , between
J & M ASSOCIATES ("Sponsor"), a New York partnership having an
office at 11 Elm Place, Rye, New York and
("Purchaser"), having an address at

The undersigned Sponsor agrees to sell and the under-
signed Purchaser agrees to purchase Unit Number (the
"Unit") and/or Garage Number (the "Garage") in the Ryeview
Condominium (the "Condominium”) located at 100-110 Theodore Fremd
Avenue, Rye, New York (the "Property" which includes the Land and
the Buildings) upon all of the terms and conditions set forth
herein, for the Purchase Price shown on the first page of this
Agreement.

1. The Plan. Purchaser acknowledges having received
and read a copy of the Plan and all amendments thereto filed with
the Department of Law of the State of New York (collectively,
"pPlan") at least three (3) full business days prior to the date
of this Agreement.* The Plan as may be amended, is incorporated
in this Agreement by reference and made a part of this Agreement
with the same force and effect as if set forth at length. 1In the
event of any inconsistency between the provisions of this Agree-
ment and the Plan, the Plan shall govern. Purchaser acknowledges
having had full opportunity to examine all documents, and
investigate all statements made herein and in the Plan.

[N

2. Definitions. Terms used in this Agreement which
are also used in the Plan shall have the same meanings in this
Agreement as in the Plan unless the context otherwise requires.

3. Purchase Price. (a) The Purchase Price set forth
on the first page of this Agreement (exclusive of closing costs
and adjustments), is payable as follows:

(i) The above stated Down Payment is due on Purcha-
ser’s signing and submitting this Agreement and is to be paid by
Purchaser’s personal check to the order of "Ryeview Special
Account", receipt of which is hereby acknowledged by Sponsor
subject to collection:

(ii) The above stated Balance is due on the date of
closing of title which will not be earlier than fifteen (15) days
after written notice to Purchaser of said closing of title.

The balance will be paid by Purchaser’s personal
certified check or by an official bank check drawn on or by a
member of the New York Clearing House Association, to the order

*or seven (7) business days from this date to rescind this
Agreement if the Offering Plan is given simultaneously.
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of "Ryeview Special Account" or as otherwise directed by Sponsor,
and will be delivered to Sponsor.

(b) The payment of the Balance and acceptance of deed
to the Unit- by Purchaser will constitute Purchaser’s recognition
that Sponsor has satisfactorily performed those obligations
stated in the Plan and this Agreement to be performed by Sponsor
prior to closing. However, nothing contained herein will limit
the rights given to Purchaser under New York General Business Law
(the "GBL") in the event of fraud or will excuse Sponsor from per-
forming those obligations (if any) expressly stated herein or in

the Plan to be performed subsequent to closing.

(c) Purchaser is not required to pay the Balance or
accept title to the Unit unless concurrently with, or prior to,
closing there has been compliance with all the prerequisites set
forth under "Prerequisites to Closing Title" in Part I of the
Plan.

4. Agreement Contingent Upon Financing.

(a) A Recognized Lender will mean (i) a commercial
bank, savings bank, savings and loan association, or insurance
company, doing business in the State of New York.

(b) This Agreement will be contingent upon the
issuance to Purchaser within thirty (30) days from the date*
hereof, of a mortgage loan commitment by a Recognized Lender for
a loan in an amount equal to percent* of the
Purchase Price (or such lesser sum as Purchaser may approve) ,
secured by a first mortgage on the Unit, bearing interest at the
then prevailing rate structure charged by such Recognized Lender
(the "Commitment").

(c) Purchaser will promptly apply for the loan, within
ten (l10) business days after Sponsor sends to Purchaser a
fully-executed counterpart of this Purchase Agreement. Purchaser
will complete, sign and submit to a Recognized Lender a mortgage
loan application (on the form provided by such Recognized Lender)
consistent with the loan terms set forth in subparagraph (b)
above and containing accurate and complete financial and other
information on Purchaser and members of Purchaser’s family as
required by the Recognized Lender. Thereafter, Purchaser will
cooperate fully with such Recognized Lender and promptly furnish
it with such additional information as may be required. Purcha-
ser will promptly notify Sponsor when the application is sub-
mitted to such Recognized Lender.

‘ (d) Purchaser will promptly (i) accept any Commitment
complying with the terms of subparagraph (b) above, if issued;

*Tenants up to 80%; Non-Tenants up to 75%.

- 82 -



(ii) pay any application, appraisal, commitment or other fees in
respect of the loan; and (iii) comply with the requirements of
the Commitment. Purchaser will either deliver a copy of the
Commitment to Sponsor within five (5) days after its issuance or
notify Sponsor in writing of Purchaser‘’s failure to obtain same
within five (5) days after expiration of the thirty (30) day
period within which same was to be obtained, as the case may be.

(e) In the event the Recognized Lender refuses or
fails to issue, within thirty (30) days from the date of the
Purchase Agreement, a Commitment in favor of Purchaser for a loan
on the terms set forth in subparagraph (b) above, then (i)
Sponsor may cancel this Agreement by written notice to the
Purchaser or (ii) Purchaser, if and only if Purchaser has acted
in good faith and complied with all of Purchaser’s obligations
under subparagraphs (c) and (4) of this Paragraph 4, may cancel
this Agreement by written notice to Sponsor. Sponsor may not so
cancel, if prior to exercising its right to cancel, Purchaser
waives satisfaction of this condition and Purchaser’s right to
cancel, unless Purchaser is in default under this Agreement
beyond any applicable grace period.

(f) In the event Purchaser obtains the Commitment and
it expires prior to the Closing Date, Purchaser shall have a
limited right to cancel the Purchase Agreement provided; (i)
Purchaser has made a good faith effort to extend the Commitment;
(ii) Sponsor is in actual receipt of Purchaser’s written notédce
of cancellation within five (5) days after the expiration of the
Commitment. .

(g) In the event this Agreement is cancelled pursuant
to subparagraph (e) or (f) above and provided Purchaser has acted
in good faith and complied with Purchaser’s obligations as set
forth in subparagraphs (c), (d), and (f) above, Sponsor will
instruct Carol M. Joseph, Esq., (the "Escrow Agent") to refund to
Purchaser within fifteen (15) days after such cancellation all
monies deposited hereunder together with interest earned thereon,
if any. It is not anticipated that any interest will be earned.
Upon such refund being made, Sponsor and Purchaser will be
released and discharged of all further liabilities and obliga-
tions hereunder and under the Plan. Purchaser’s failure to
comply with all Purchaser’s obligations under subparagraph (c),
(d), and (f) of this paragraph 4 will constitute a waiver by
Purchaser of the provisions of the preceding subparagraph (b)
(conditioning this Agreement upon obtaining the financing
described in such subparagraph) and of Purchaser’s right to
cancel.

(h) Purchaser hereby irrevocably authorizes and
instructs the Recognized Lender to pay directly to Sponsor at
closing of title the proceeds of the mortgage loan towards the
Balance of the Purchase Price. In confirmation of such
authorized payment, Purchaser will sign such further written
authorization at Closing as the Recognized Lender may request.
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5. Deposit Monies Held in Trust. All monies received
from Purchaser hereunder will be deposited with and shall be held
in trust in a special account until the Unit is transferred to
the Purchaser or the Purchase Agreement is cancelled in accor-
dance with its terms. All monies received with respect to the
Down Payment will be deposited with the Escrow Agent in a special
account at The Bank of New York, Rye, New York in the name of
"Ryeview Special Account". The funds so deposited will not be
disbursed unless authorized in writing by the Escrow Agent, and
only in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement and the
Plan. In the event the Plan is abandoned or withdrawn, such
monies will be returned to Purchaser with interest, if any,
earned thereon. Sponsor and the Selling Agent will not be liable
to Purchaser for the amount of such interest or the payment
thereof, except to the extent of any amount received from the
depository. It is not anticipated that any interest will be
earned, and nothing contained herein will obligate Sponsor to
place any monies received in an interestbearing account. If,
however, at the time the Plan is abandoned or withdrawn,
Purchaser is in default hereunder and has failed to cure such
default within the applicable grace period or if this Agreement
has been previously cancelled due to Purchaser’s uncured default,
then Sponsor will retain as liquidated damages the sum of money
discussed in paragraph 15 below. All funds received under this
Purchase Agreement will be handled in accordance with Sections
352-e¢(2) (b) and 352-h of the GBL.

6. Agreement Subject to Plan Being Declared

Effective. The performance of the respective obligations of
Purchaser and Sponsor under this Agreement are contingent upon
the Plan being declared effective in accordance with its terms as
same may be amended from time to time. The Plan may be withdrawn
or abandoned by Sponsor only under certain conditions and at
certain times, as set forth in the Plan. See the Section enti-
tled "Effective Date of Plan". Sponsor will notify Purchaser, in
writing, or by duly filed amendment to the Plan, when the Plan
becomes effective or is abandoned. Provided Purchaser is not
then in default under this Agreement beyond any applicable grace
period, if title to the Unit does not close within the time set
forth in the Plan for any reason other than Purchaser’s default,
this Agreement shall be deemed cancelled and, not later than
thirty (30) days thereafter, Sponsor shall return to Purchaser
all sums deposited hereunder, together with accrued interest, if
any, and, upon making that payment, neither party shall have any
further rights, obligations or liability to or against the other
or the Selling Agent and the parties shall be released and
discharged from all obligations and liability under this
Agreement and the Plan.

[

7. Closing of Title.

(a) The closing of title shall be held on a date and
at such place and at such hour as Sponsor may designate to
Purchaser on not less than fifteen (15) days’ prior notice.
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Sponsor will have the right, from time to time, to adjourn such
date and time for Closing on written notice to Purchaser, which
notice shall fix a new date, hour and place for the closing of
title. Sponsor will give Purchaser not less than five (5) days
notice of the newly scheduled Closing. In the event Purchaser
requests an adjournment of the Closing Date, Sponsor shall have
the remedies set forth in Paragraph 15 hereof.

(b) The closing of title shall occur only after or
concurrently with the compliance with the prerequisites as set
forth under "Prerequisites to Closing of Title" in Part I of the
Plan.

(c) The terms "Closing Date" or "closing of title" or
words of similar import, whenever used herein, shall mean the
date designated by Sponsor on which the deed to the Unit is
delivered to Purchaser or any adjourned date fixed by Sponsor
pursuant to subparagraph (a) above.

8. Delivery of the Deed and Power of Attorney to_ the
Condominium Board.

(a) At the closing of title, Sponsor shall deliver to
Purchaser a Bargain and Sale Deed with Covenants Against
Grantor’s Acts conveying fee simple title to the Unit to Purcha-
ser. The deed shall be prepared by Sponsor and will be substan-
. tially in the form set forth in Part II of the Plan and shal}l be
executed and acknowledged by Sponsor and Purchaser, in form for
recording.

(b) At the closing of title and simultaneously with
the delivery of the deed conveying the Unit to Purchaser, Purcha-
ser shall execute and acknowledge a Power of Attorney to the
Board of Managers prepared by Sponsor and substantially in the
form set forth in Part II of the Plan.

(c) The executed Deed and Power of Attorney to the
Board of Managers shall be delivered immediately to the represen-
tative of the title company insuring Purchaser’s title (or, if no
such representative is present, to Sponsor’s attorney) for
recording in the Westchester County Clerk’s Office ("County
Clerk’s Office"). After being recorded, the Deed shall be
returned to Purchaser and the Power of Attorney shall be deli-
vered to the Board of Managers. Purchaser agrees to pay all
recording charges for said Deed and Power of Attorney.

9. Marketable Title. At the closing of title,
Sponsor shall convey to Purchaser good and marketable title in
fee simple to the Unit, free and clear of all encumbrances other
than those set forth in the Plan, Schedule A and mortgages, if
any, affecting the Unit, which Purchaser assumes. Any encum-
brances to which title is not to be subject shall not be an
objection to title if (a) the instrument required to remove it of
record as against the entire Property or the Unit and its
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percentage interest in the common elements is delivered to the
representative of Purchaser’s title insurance company (or, if
none, to Purchaser’s attorney) or (b) Purchaser’s title insurance
company will insure Purchaser that it will not be collected out
of the Unit if it is a lien, or will not be enforced against the
Unit if it is not a lien.

10. Title Company Approval. Sponsor will give, and
Purchaser will accept, such title as any title insurance company
which is a member of the New York Board of Title Underwriters
will approve and insure, provided the only liens, encumbrances
and conditions affecting title will be those set forth in the
Plan.

11. Sponsor’s Inability to Convey Title to the Unit.
If Sponsor is unable to deliver title to the Unit to Purchaser in
accordance with the provisions of this Agreement and the Plan,
Sponsor shall not be obligated to bring any action or proceeding
or otherwise incur any cost or expense of any nature whatsoever
in excess of five hundred ($500.00) dollars to cure such inabi-
lity and, in that event, if Sponsor notifies Purchaser of its
refusal to cure such inability and if Purchaser is not in default
under this Agreement, Purchaser shall have the option to (a) take
title to the Unit subject to such title defect (without any
abatement in, or credit against, the Purchase Price, or any claim
or right of action against Sponsor for damages or otherwise) or
(b) terminate this Agreement by written notice to Sponsor. AIf
Purchaser elects to terminate this Agreement, Sponsor shall,
within fifteen (15) days after receipt of notice of termination
from Purchaser instruct Escrow Agent to return to Purchaser all
sums deposited hereunder, together with accrued interest, if any,
and, upon making that payment, this Agreement shall be null and
void and neither party shall have any further rights, obligatiocns
or liability to or against the other and the parties shall be
released and discharged from all obligations and liability under
this Agreement and the Plan. The foregoing option must be
exercised by Purchaser in writing sent to Sponsor within ten (10)
days after the giving of Sponsor’s notice of refusal to cure such
title defect. Failure to do so shall be conclusively deemed as
an election by Purchaser to acquire title subject to such title
defect.

12. Closing Costs and Adjustments

(a) Purchaser will pay the closing costs and expenses
referred to in the section of the Plan entitled "Closing Costs,
Expenses and Adjustments".

(b) Real estate taxes, if any, will be adjusted
between Purchaser and Sponsor from the midnight preceding the
date of the closing through the end of the tax payment period
within which the closing date occurs, provided, however, that
Sponsor will be reimbursed by Purchaser for the cost of any real
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estate taxes which Sponsor would not otherwise have had to pay
but for an unauthorized delay in closing of title by Purchaser.

(c) The Purchaser will be required to pay to the Board
of Managers monthly Common Charges allocable to his Unit in
advance. Common Charges assessed during the month in which title
closes will be adjusted with the Sponsor as of the midnight
preceding the closing date, provided, however, that Sponsor will
be reimbursed by Purchaser for the cost of any Common Charges
which Sponsor was obligated to pay to the Board of Managers as a
result of any unauthorized delay in closing of title by Purcha-
ser. The amount of such Common Charges to be assessed against
each Unit will be fixed by the Board of Managers.

(d) In the event a mortgage recording tax credit
becomes available pursuant to Section 339-ee(2) of the New York
Real Property Law, it is specifically understood that such credit
shall inure to the benefit of the Sponsor. Accordingly, at
closing, a Purchaser who elects mortgage financing will pay the
full amount (but not in excess thereof) of the mortgage recording
tax chargeable on the entire amount being financed. Sponsor at
closing will be reimbursed to the extent of any mortgage tax
credit allowed.

(e) Rent or other charges which were prepaid by any
tenant of a Unit to the Sponsor will be adjusted as of midnight
on the day prior to the closing of title to the Unit and an$ such
amounts attributable to the period following midnight of such day
will be credited to Purchaser. If such Purchaser is in arrears
with respect to the payment of rent or other charges, if any,
Purchaser understands that he will be obligated to pay to Sponsor
any such arrearages at the closing of title.

13. Return of Rent Security Deposit. If Purchaser is,
or hereafter becomes, a tenant of the Unit, Purchaser’s unapplied

rent security deposit, if any, will be refunded to Purchaser,
together with any interest earned thereon, within thirty (30)
days following the closing, provided Purchaser is not in default
under Purchaser’s lease and tenancy obligations. If the Unit is
occupied by other than Purchaser, then the unapplied security
deposit (if any) of the tenant or occupant will be transferred at
closing to Purchaser, who will, upon receipt, sign and deliver to
Sponsor an agreement acknowledging the amount received, indemni-
fying Sponsor from all liability in connection therewith and
agreeing to hold such security deposit in trust and to deposit it
in an interest-bearing account pursuant to the provisions of
Section 7-103 of the New York General Obligations Law (such
agreement to be in form and substance satisfactory to Sponsor).
In either event, Sponsor will have the right to deduct from any
tenant’s security deposit the amount of any rent arrearage owing
to Sponsor and to the extent such rent security is insufficient,
Purchaser will be required to pay such deficit to Sponsor at
closing.
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14. Aqreement Subject to Mortgage. No encumbrances
shall arise against the Property as a result of this Agreement or
any monies deposited hereunder. In furtherance and not in
1imitation of the provisions of the preceding sentence, Purchaser
agrees that- the provisions of this Agreement are and shall be
subject and subordinate to the lien of any mortgages on the
Property made before or after this Agreement and any payments or
expenses already made or incurred, pursuant to the terms thereof,
or incidental thereto, or to protect the security thereof, to the
full extent thereof without the execution of any further legal
documents by Purchaser. Sponsor shall, at its option, either
satisfy such mortgages or obtain a release of the Unit and its
undivided interest in the Common Elements from the lien of such
mortgages on or prior to the Closing Date unless Purchaser
assumes such mortgages. The existence of any mortgage or mort-
gages encumbering the Property, or portions thereof, other than
the Unit and its undivided interest in the Common Elements, shall
not constitute an objection to title or excuse Purchaser from
completing payment of the Purchase Price or performing all of his
or her other obligations under this Agreement or be the basis of
any claim against, or liability of, Sponsor.

15. Default by Purchaser. (a) The time for the
payment of the balance of the Purchase Price and the performance
of Purchaser’s other obligations hereunder, is of the essence of
this Agreement. If Purchaser fails to make such payment when
required as herein provided or fails to perform any of Purcha-
ser’s other obligations hereunder, Sponsor may give notice to
Purchaser of such default. If such default shall not be cured
within thirty (30) days thereafter, Sponsor may, at its option,
(i) cancel this Agreement by notice of cancellation to Purchaser
and retain the downpayment (but not more than ten (10%) percent
of the Purchase Price) as liquidated damages; or (ii) bring an
action against Purchaser for specific performance. Notwith-
standing the foregoing, in the event a Purchaser fails to close
title on the designated date and Sponsor does not elect either of
the remedies set forth in the preceding sentence, Sponsor shall
also have the right to approve a request from Purchaser to
adjourn the Closing Date and in such event (a) Purchaser shall
pay Sponsor interest equal to the prime rate of Citibank, N.A. on
the unpaid balance of the purchase price computed from the
original Closing Date until this transaction is actually closed,
(b) all apportionments between Sponsor and Purchaser shall be
made as of the original Closing Date and (c¢) Purchaser shall
reimburse Sponsor for any additional costs incurred by Sponsor as
a result of Purchaser’s delay. If Sponsor elects to cancel this
Agreement pursuant to paragraph (i) above, this Agreement shall
be terminated and neither party shall have any further rights,
obligations or liability to or against the other and the parties
shall be released and discharged from all obligations and
liability under this Agreement and the Plan and Sponsor may sell
the Unit to any third party as though this Agreement had never
been made (without any obligation to account to Purchaser for any
part of the proceeds of such sale).
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(b) If Purchaser is or becomes a tenant of the
Building and Purchaser fails to pay rent or to otherwise comply
with Purchaser’s lease or tenancy obligations, or Purchaser
removes from or abandons the leased premises, then such failure,
removal or abandonment (as the case may be) will constitute a
default hereunder entitling Sponsor, at its sole option, to
cancel this Agreement, pursuant to subparagraph (a) above.
However, in no event will Purchaser be released or excused from
paying and performing Purchaser’s lease or tenancy obligations,
and notwithstanding anything contained in this Agreement to the
contrary, Sponsor will be entitled to collect from Purchaser all
damages, losses, costs, expenses, and all other lawful sums to
which Sponsor is entitled (including, but not limited to, legal
fees and costs of collection) due to Purchaser’s failure to pay
rent or otherwise comply with Purchaser’s lease or tenancy
obligations.

(c) Neither Purchaser’s failure to pay rent as due nor
the pendency of eviction proceedings nor his vacating or abandon-
ment of the apartment, however, will give Purchaser any rights to
any extension under this Agreement.

(d) A Purchaser who is or becomes a tenant or occupant
of the Building must continue to pay rent under his lease (or
other tenancy) as a condition precedent to the Sponsor’s obliga-
tions to convey title to a Unit pursuant to this Agreement, and
the Purchaser specifically waives any right of offset with .
respect to such rent.

16. Acceptance of Condition of Property. Purchaser
represents to Sponsor that Purchaser has examined the Unit and

agrees that the signing of this Agreement shall constitute
Purchaser’s acceptance of the Property including the Common
Elements and the Unit and all fixtures, machinery, equipment,
furnishings, appliances, installations and other personal pro-
perty contained therein, in their present "as is" condition on
the date of this Agreement, subject to reasonable use, wear and
tear and natural deterioration between the date hereof and the
closing of title. Purchaser shall be given a reasonable oppor-
tunity to examine the Unit prior to the closing of title and
shall make a careful inspection of the Unit at such time.

17. Existing Tenancies.*

The following provisions are applicable only if, at the
time of signing this Purchase Agreement, the Unit is occupied by,
or under lease to, one other than Purchaser.

(a) Purchaser understands that Purchaser is purchasing
the Unit subject to the rights of the existing tenant or occu-

*Delete if inapplicable.
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pants, as explained more fully in the Plan under the section
entitled "General Rights of Existing Tenants".

(b) Purchaser acknowledges that no representation or
statement has been made (and if made, Purchaser knows it is
unauthorized and has not relied thereon) as to the length of time
that may elapse before Purchaser gains possession of the Unit or
that Purchaser, in fact, will obtain possession of the Unit.

(c) Upon acquiring title to a Unit occupied by
another, Purchaser will become the landlord of the tenant or
occupant thereof and the latter will become such Purchaser’s
tenant. The relationship between the two parties will be
governed primarily by the terms, covenants and conditions
contained in the lease or other occupancy agreement then in
effect with such tenant or occupant or the statutory and/or
implied covenants of any month to month tenancy. Further, the
Purchaser will be subject to any rights and duties required
pursuant to Section 352eee of the General Business Law and the
Applicable Rent Laws. Purchaser will succeed to and assume all
of Sponsor’s rights and obligations as the landlord of such
tenant or occupant, including, but not limited to, Sponsor’s
right to receive the rents reserved in the lease or occupancy
agreement and Sponsor’s obligation to perform all of the duties
of the landlord under such lease or occupancy agreement or month
to month tenancy. Such duties may include, but are not limited
to, the obligations to maintain, repair and replace any pldmbing
fixtures, refrigerator, dishwasher, lighting fixtures and other
fixtures, equipment and appliances in his Unit and to. paint the
Unit periodically. The Purchaser will be obligated to perform
these duties as the landlord of such tenant or occupant even
though the rents reserved under the lease or occupancy agreement
or month to month tenancy may be insufficient to pay the cost of
such performance. In addition, such Purchaser will be required
to pay all Common Charges assessed against him by the Board of
Managers, regardless of whether such Common Charges are more or
less than the rent payable by the tenant or occupant and
regardless of whether such rent is received.

At the closing, Sponsor and Purchaser will sign and
deliver to each other an agreement (in form and substance
satisfactory to Sponsor) in which Sponsor assigns to Purchaser
all of its rights under the then existing lease for the Unit and
Purchaser assumes full responsibility for, and indemnifies
Sponsor from, all obligations under such lease to be performed
from and after the closing.

(d) Purchaser will be required to irrevocably appoint
the Condominium’s Managing Agent and its successors as his agent
to provide to the non-purchasing tenant(s) or occupants all ser-
vices and facilities required by Law. The Managing Agent will
bill Purchaser a management fee equal to the greater of (a) five
(5%) percent of the annual rent charged by Purchaser for such
apartment or (b) three hundred ($300.00) dollars in addition to,
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in either case, its reasonable disbursements for the services
and/or materials so supplied.

(e) Purchaser Agreements for Units occupied by
non-purchasing tenants will be deemed to include an agreement by
Purchaser to deposit with the Managing Agent at the closing an
amount not less than than two-months’ Common Charges to be used
as working capital to furnish services required under the non-
purchasing tenant’s lease and pursuant to Law. Upon notice from
the Managing Agent that the deposit has been diminished, the fund
shall be replenished by the Unit Owner within thirty (30) days of
such notice. The failure of the Unit Owner to replenish the fund
in a timely fashion will result in the Condominium having a lien
against the Unit. Interest, if any, earned on the fund shall be
the property of the Unit Owner. The provisions of this Paragraph
will not apply to Sponsor or Owner(s) of Unsold Units.

(f) From and after delivery of the deed, Purchaser
alone will bear the entire costs and expenses of owning the Unit
(including but not limited to, any legal fees and litigation
expenses for enforcing the lease and obtaining possession of the
Uunit).

(g) If after Purchaser signs this Agreement the
existing tenant or occupant timely exercises such tenant’s
exclusive right to purchase the Unit during the period granted
under the Plan or at such later date as may be permitted under .
applicable law (or an administrative or judicial interpretation
thereof), then this Agreement will be deemed cancelled and within
thirty (30) days thereafter, all monies deposited will be
returned to Purchaser, with interest, if any, earned thereon. It
is not anticipated that any interest will be earned. Upon such
refund being made, Purchaser, Sponsor, Selling Agent, and all
other persons involved in the Plan will be (and hereby are)
released and discharged of all liabilities and obligations
hereunder and under the Plan.

(h) If any lease under which Purchaser may occupy the
Unit or Purchaser’s right to continue to occupy the Unit is
terminated by reason of Purchaser’s failure to fulfill his or her
obligations under such lease or applicable law, this Agreement
may be terminated by Sponsor on notice to Purchaser, in which
event all amounts paid by Purchaser hereunder and interest if
any, earned thereon shall be fully ret%rned.

18. Damage to the Unit. If between the date of this-
Agreement and the closing of title, the Unit is damaged by fire
or other casualty, the following shall apply:

(a) The risk of loss to the Unit by fire or other
casualty until the closing of title is assumed by Sponsor (unless
and until Purchaser has taken possession of the Unit, at which
time the risk of loss shall be assumed by Purchaser except where
Purchaser is a bona fide tenant in occupancy), but without any
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obligation or liability upon Sponsor to repair or restore the
Unit, except that if Sponsor elects to repair or restore the
Unit, this Agreement shall continue in full force and effect and
Purchaser shall not have the right to reject title or receive a
credit against, or abatement in, the Purchase Price. In that
event, Sponsor shall be entitled to a reasonable period of time
in which to complete the repair or restoration. Any proceeds
received from insurance or in satisfaction of any claim or action
in connection with such loss shall, subject to the rights of the
Board of Managers and other Unit Owners, belong entirely to
Sponsor and if those proceeds are paid to Purchaser, Purchaser
shall promptly, upon receipt thereof, turn them over to Sponsor.
The provisions of the preceding sentence shall survive the
closing of title.

(b) In the event Sponsor notifies Purchaser that it
does not elect to repair or restore the Unit or, if the Unit
owners do not resolve to make such repairs or restoration
pursuant to the By-Laws, this Agreement shall be deemed cancelled
and of no further force or effect and Sponsor shall return to
Purchaser all sums deposited hereunder, together with accrued
interest, if any, and the cost of any work performed in the Unit
by or on behalf of Sponsor at the request of Purchaser, and, upon
that payment, neither Purchaser or Sponsor shall have any liabi-
lity or obligation under this Agreement and the Plan, except that
if Purchaser is then in default under this Agreement (beyond any
applicable grace period), Sponsor shall retain all such sums as
and for liquidated damages. . '

19. No Representations. Purchaser acknowledges that
Purchaser has not relied upon any architect’s plans, sales plans,
selling brochures, advertisements, representations, warranties,
statements or estimates of any nature whatsoever, whether written
or oral made by Sponsor, Selling Agent, or others including
without limitation, any relating to the description or physical
condition of the Property, the Buildings or the Unit, or the size
or the dimensions of the Unit or the rooms therein or any other
physical characteristics thereof, the services to be provided to
Unit Owners, the estimated Common Charges allocable to the Unit,
the estimated real estate taxes on the Unit, the right to any
income tax deduction for any real estate taxes or mortgage
interest paid by Purchaser, or any other data, except as specifi-
cally set forth in this Agreement or in the Plan; Purchaser
having relied on his or her own examination and investigation.
No person has been authorized to make any statements, warranties
or representations on behalf of Sponsor, except as specifically
set forth in this Agreement and the Plan. No oral statements,
warranties or representations shall be considered a part of this
Agreement. Purchaser agrees (a) to purchase the Unit without
offset or any claim against, or liability of, Sponsor, whether or
not any layout or dimension of the Unit or any part thereof, or
of the Common Elements, as shown on the floor plan, is accurate
or correct, provided the layouts and dimensions conform substan-
tially to the Floor Plans, and (b) Purchaser shall not be
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relieved of any of Purchaser’s obligations under this Agreement
by reason of any minor inaccuracy or error. The provisions of
this Article 19 shall survive the closing of title.

20. Broker. Purchaser represents to Sponsor that the
Selling Agent, Ridgewood Management Corp., is the only broker or
sales agent with whom Purchaser has dealt in connection with this
transaction, and Sponsor agrees to pay any commission earned by
such broker pursuant to separate agreement. Purchaser agrees
that should any claim be made against Sponsor for commissions by
any other broker or sales agent, on account of any acts of
Purchaser or Purchaser’s representatives, Purchaser will
indemnify and hold Sponsor harmless from and against any and all
liability and expenses in connection therewith, including without
limitation, reasonable legal fees. The provisions of this
Article 20 shall survive the delivery of the closing of title.

21. Agreement May Not Be Assigned. Purchaser shall
have the right to assign this Agreement only in strict accordance

with the terms of the Plan. Any purported assignment by
Purchaser in violation of the Plan will be void.

22. Binding Effect. This Agreement shall not be
binding on Purchaser or Sponsor until a fully executed copy has
been furnished by Sponsor to Purchaser. If this Agreement is not
accepted by Sponsor within thirty (30) days from the date hereof
by -the furnishing to Purchaser of a fully executed copy, this
Agreement shall be deemed to have been rejected and cancelled and
the downpayment, together with accrued interest, if any, shall be
promptly returned to Purchaser. '

23. Notices. Any notice, request or other communica-
tions desired or required to be given under this Agreement or the
Plan shall be in writing and sent, postage prepaid, by registered
or certified mail, return receipt requested, to Purchaser at the
address given at the beginning of this Agreement, and to Sponsor
at the address given at the beginning of this Agreement, with a
copy to the attorneys, Cassin, Cassin & Joseph, 300 East 42nd
Street, New York, New York 10017, Attn: Carol M. Joseph, Esg. or
to such other address as either party may hereafter designate to
the other in writing in accordance with this Article. Unless
otherwise provided herein, the date of mailing shall be deemed to
be the date of the giving of notice, except that the date of
actual receipt shall be deemed to be the date of the giving of
any notice of change of address.

24. Joint Purchasers. The term "Purchaser" shall be

read as "Purchasers" if more than one person are purchasing, in
which case, their obligations shall be joint and several.

25. Liability of Sponsor.

(a) Sponsor shall not have any liability to any
Purchaser with respect to any of Sponsor’s obligations under this
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Agreement or the Plan or otherwise in excess of the net proceeds
paid to Sponsor from the sale of all Urisold Units after payment

of, or the creation of a reserve for, any liabilities of Sponsor
arising out of the consummation of the transactions contemplated
in the Plan.

(b) Sponsor will be excused from performing any obli-
gation or undertaking provided for in this Agreement for so long
as such performance is prevented, delayed or hindered by an act
of God, fire, flood, explosion, war, riot, sabotage, inability to
procure or general shortage of energy, labor, equipment, facili-
ties, materials or supplies in the open market, failure of trans-
portation, strike, lock-out, action of labor unions or any other
cause (whether similar or dissimilar to the foregoing) which is
not within the reasonable control of Sponsor. Sponsor’s time to
perform such obligation or undertaking will be tolled for the
length of the period during which such performance is excused.

26. Further Assurances. Either party shall execute,
acknowledge and deliver to the other party such instruments and
take such other actions, in addition to the instruments and
actions specifically provided for in this Agreement, as such
other party may reasonably request in order to effectuate the
provisions of this Agreement or of any transactions contemplated
herein or to confirm or perfect any right to be created or
transferred hereunder or pursuant to any such transaction. ,

27. Severability. If any provisions of this Agreement
or the Plan is invalid or unenforceable as against any person or
under certain circumstances, the remainder of this Agreement or
the Plan and the applicability of such provision to other persons
or circumstances shall not be affected thereby. Each provision
of this Agreement or the Plan, except as otherwise specifically
set forth herein or in the Plan, shall be valid and enforced to
the fullest extent permitted by law.

28. Strict Compliance. Any failure by Sponsor to
insist upon the strict performance by Purchaser of any of the
provisions of this Agreement shall not be deemed a waiver of any
other provision of this Agreement and Sponsor, notwithstanding
any such failure, shall have the right thereafter to insist upon
the strict performance by Purchaser of any and all provisions of
this Agreement to be performed by Purchaser.

29. Governing Law. The provisions of this Agreement
shall be governed by, construed and enforced in accordance with
the laws of the State of New York.

30. Waiver of Jury Trial. Except as prohibited by
law, the parties shall, and they hereby do, expressly waive trial
by jury in any litigation arising out of, or connected with, or
relating to, this Agreement, or the relationship created hereby.
With respect to any matter for which a jury trial cannot be
waived, the parties agree not to assert any such claim as a
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counterclaim in, nor move to consolidate such claim with, any
actions or proceedings in which a jury trial is waived.

31. Entire Agreement. This Agreement, together with
the Plan, as the Plan may be amended from time to time, consti-
tutes the entire Agreement and supersedes any and all prior and
contemporaneous understandings and agreements between the
parties. ‘

32. Certain References. A reference in this Agreement
to any one gender, masculine, feminine, or neuter, includes the
other two; and the singular includes the plural, and vice versa,
unless the context otherwise requires. The terms "herein",
"hereof" or "hereunder" or similar terms used in this Agreement
refer to this entire Agreement and not to the particular
provision in which the term is used. Unless otherwise stated,
all references herein to Articles, Sections or other provisions
are references to Articles, Sections or other provisions of this
Agreement.

33. Captions. The captions in this Agreement are for
convenience and reference only and in no way define, limit or
describe the scope of this Agreement or the intent of any
provision hereof.

34. Successors and Assigns. Subject to the provisions
of Article 21 herein, the provisions of this Agreement shal? bind
and enure to the benefit of the Purchaser and Purchaser’s heirs,
legal representatives, successors, and permitted assigns and
shall bind and enure to the benefit of Sponsor and its successors
and assigns.

35. No Discriminatory Agreements. The Purchaser
certifies that he has agreed in good faith to purchase the

condominium unit without discriminatory repurchase or other
discriminatory inducement.

36. No Oral Changes. This agreement cannot be changed
or terminated orally. ANY CHANGE OR ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS MUST
BE SET FORTH IN A RIDER ATTACHED TO THIS AGREEMENT OR IN A
SEPARATE WRITTEN AGREEMENT SIGNED BY THE PARTIES OR BY AMENDMENT
TO THE PLAN.

37. Rule of Construction. There shall be no presump-
tion of construction against the draftsman of this Agreement.

38. Acceptance of Purchase Agreement

(a) If Purchaser is an existing tenant, this Agreement
will be accepted by Sponsor on condition that:

(1) Purchaser signs and returns this Agreement,

together with the requisite Down Payment, within ninety (90) days
from the date the Plan is presented;
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(ii) The Purchase Price is in accordance with the price
for this Unit set forth in the Plan; and ’

(b) If Purchaser is not an existing tenant of the
Property, then on or prior to Purchaser’s signing this Agreement,
Purchaser will complete, sign and deliver to the Selling Agent an
application form furnished by Sponsor. Such application will be
used to determine Purchaser’s qualification to purchase and own
the Unit, but does not constitute a reservation or binding
obligation on either the applicant or Sponsor.

) (c) The submission to Sponsor of this Agreement or the
application referred to in subparagraph (b) does not constitute a
binding obligation on either Purchaser or Sponsor. No such
binding obligation will arise until duplicates of this Agreement
are executed by, and delivered to, both Purchaser and Sponsor (or
Sponsor’s duly authorized agent). If within thirty (30) days
after the Selling Agent receives this Agreement signed by
Purchaser a duplicate of this Agreement signed by Sponsor or its
authorized agent is not sent or delivered to Purchaser, then it
will be deemed rejected and of no force or effect, and all monies
paid by Purchaser shall be promptly refunded, without interest.
Upon such refund being made, neither party will have any further
rights, obligations or liabilities hereunder with respect to the
other or any other party connected with the Plan. Sponsor has
the right, without incurring any liability, to reject this Agree-
ment without cause or explanation to- Purchaser. This Agreement
may not be rejected due to Purchaser’s sex, race,creed, color,
national origin, ancestry or other ground proscribed by law.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this
Agreement as of the date first above written.

PURCHASER

PURCHASER

ADDRESS:

DATED:

SPONSOR: J & M ASSOCIATES

BY:
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AFFIDAVIT OF GOOD FAITH PURCHASE

The undersigned verifies that his purchase of
Unit at 100-110 Theodore Fremd Avenue, Rye, New York, has
been made in good faith, pursuant to the terms of the Offering
Plan of the RYEVIEW CONDOMINIUM without fraud or duress, and with
no discriminatory repurchase agreement, or other discriminatory
inducement. The use of the Unit will be for the personal use of
the undersigned.

Purchaser

Second Purchaser (if more
than one)

STATE OF NEW YORK )
+ Ss.:
COUNTY OF WESTCHESTER)

being duly sworn deppses
and says that he is the Purchaser of the Unit above described;
that he has read the foregoing Affidavit of Good Faith Purchase

and knows the contents thereof and that the same is true to his
own knowledge.

Purchaser

Second Purchaser (if more
than one)

Sworn to before me this
day of , 1987.

NOTARY PUBLIC
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TP-581 (8/84) |
New York State For Departmental 'Usa On

New York State REAL PROPERTY TRANSFER GAINS TAX

.. . Department ot . .

% TAXATION

(FH] TAXATION & Questionnaire

TRANSFEREE

NOTE: See Instructions (TP-581-1), Section B before completing this form.

PLEASE PRINT Name Sociat Security Number
! {Transferee) ! !
Address Zip Code Federali Empiloyer identification Numt
]
Name Social Security Number
(Transferorj___J & M Associates s |
Address Zip Code Federal Empiloyer Identification Numt
11 Third Street, Rye, New York 10580 |

e Type of Interest to be Acquired Leasehold Assignment

(Check Applicable Box) & Fee O tLeasehold Grant [ or Surrender I Stock in Co-op
O Option Grant (J Option Assignment or Surrender ' [ Development Right
TJ Controlling Interest (] contract Assignment CJ Other (attach explanation)
® Date of Anticipated Transfer ® Percentage of Interest to be Acquired _______ %
Day Month Year
a

LOCATION OF PROPERTY TO BE TRANSFERRED (List each lot separately)

Address County

100-110 Theodore Fremd Avenue, Ryve, New York 10580 Westchester

COMPLETE LINES 1, 2AND 3

1 Consideration to be Paid to Transferor By Transferee !

....................................................................................

2 Brokerage Fees to be Paid by Transferee to Transferor

...............................................................................

W

Brokerage Fees to be Paid by Transferee to Broker 3

AFFIDAVIT OF TRANSFEREE

| swear (or attirm) under penaity of perjury that this questionnaire inciuding the accompanying schedules or statements has been examined by me anc
to the best of my knowledge and baelief, a true and compiete return, made in good faith, pursuant to Article 31-8 of the New York State Tax Law.

Sworn to and subscribed to before me this day of
Name(s) of Transferee(s)
.19 -
Signature(s) ot owner(s), partner, otficer ot corporation, etc,
Signature ot atticer aaministering oath Title



ASSIGNMENT AND ASSUMPTION OF PURCHASE AGREEMENT

Premises: 100-110 Theodore Fremd Avenue, Rye, New York

ASSIGNOR:
Address:

ASSIGNEE:
Address:

PURCHASE AGREEMENT DATED: , 198

APARTMENT (the "Apartment"):

a

In Consideration of Ten ($10.00) Dollars in hand paid,
the receipt and adequacy of which is hereby acknowledged, and for
other good and valuable consideration, the Assignor hereby assigns
unto the Assignee all of the Assignor’s right, title and interest
in the Purchase Agreement for the Apartment, pursuant to the Offer-
ing Plan to convert the Premises to Condominium ownership (the
"pPlan").

The Assignor agrees that the Assignor has no further
right or claim or right to purchase the Apartment and releases the
"Sponsor" from any right or claim or right that the Assignor may
have arising out of, or in connection with, the Plan, including,
without limitation, any further obligation to accept a Purchase
Agreement for such shares from the Assignor.

The Assignee hereby accepts the foregoing assignment and
assumes all of the obligations of the Assignor under the Purchase
Agreement.

The parties agree that the Down Payment under the

Purchase Agreement shall be increased to ten (10%) percent of the
purchase price.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Assignor and the Assignee have
duly executed this Assignment as of the day and year set forth
below.

In Presence of: ASSIGNOR:

Dated: , 198
Rye, New York

ASSIGNEE:

J & M ASSOCIATES
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DOCUMENT NUMBER 2

DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY
AND BUILDING CONDITION

and

ASBESTOS REPORT

- 101 -



THIS PAGE HAS BEEN LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY

- 102 -



VITO SINOPCLY, JR,, P.E.
C.;ruu[éing :ﬂugmu‘:

315 TRAVERS AVENUE
MAMARONECK, N.Y. 10543

314/698-5585

January 17, 1987

Ms. Carol M. Joseph
Cassin, Cassin & Joseph
300 East 42nd Street

New York, New York 10017

Re: 100 Theodore Fremd Avenue
City of Rye, New York '
Original Inspection August 23, 1986
Reinspection Date January 17, 1987

A reinspection was made at the above location of the two
buildings and separate garage on January 17, 1987 by me,
and the buildings and garage were found to be in the same
condition as reported in detail in my earlier inspection *
report dated September 21, 1986.

This inspection report does not represent an offer on the
part of Vito Sinopoli, Jr., P.E. to purchase or to guarantee
the inspected premises, its contents, or surrounding property.

All statements and judgements are the result of a visual in-
spection of readily accessible areas of the premises.

This report of findings 1s attested by me and submitted this
17th day of January, 1987.

Vito Sinopoli, Jr., P.E.

s
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VITO SINOPOLI JR., PE.

. o L.
Lonsulting Znainzzt

315 TRAVERS AVENUE
MAMARONECK. N.Y. 10543

914/638-5585

September 21,-1986

Ms. Carol M. Joseph
Cassin, Cassin & Joseph
300 East 42nd Street

New York, New York 10017

Re: 100 Theodore Fremd Avenue
City of Rye, New York
Section 146.06 Block 2 Lot 29
zZzoning RA-3 2,500 S.F.
Inspection Date: August 23, 1986

1. General Description

The property consists of two buildings which are located one behind
the other on the site. The property abuts Theodore Fremd Avenue, a
main roadway in the area. There is also a separate one story six car
garage at the rear of the property. The buildings are convenifent to
the railroad station, shopping area, and the New England Thruway, a
major north-south roadway.

The buildings were constructed in 1955 and are served by the City of
Rye for all services including water, sewage, garbage collection and
fire protection. Con Edison provides electrical and gas service and
New York Telephone provides telephone service.

The overall appearance of the apartment units and exterior of the
buildings 1s good.

2. Building Sizes

There are two two-story buildings on the site. The front building is
Building "A" and is 100 feet wide, 55 feet deep and 20 feet high.

The front elevation of this building extends to the basement level
and contains apartment units in the basement level.

The rear building is Building "B" and is 74 feet wide, 41 feet deep,
and 21 feet high.

The property is 150 feet wide along the front at Theodore Fremd
Avenue, 238 feet deep along the easterly property line, 290 feet deep
along the westerly property line and 158 feet wide along the rear
property line. The property contains .9 acres. The site and other
properties immediately surrounding it are zoned RA-3, 2,500 S.F.
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100 Thecdore Fremd Avenue
Page 2

3. Structural System

The exterior foundation walls are of concrete blocks. The floor
joists, roof rafters, and interior partitions are of wood frame
construction. The basement floor is of concrete. The walls are
plaster with hollow metal doors and frames. The floors are generally
oak wood strips and the exterior is of red common brick. The roof
consists of a flat composition roofing material.

The exterior brick work is generally tight and sound. There is a
minor diagonal crack along the rear elevation of Building "A" at the
first story level and along the window and door lintels on the
easterly elevation. There are also cracks along the lintels above
the windows and doors on the east elevation on Building "B".

There are a limited number of deteriorated bricks on Building "A"
along the west elevation. Some joint pointing is required on each
building.

In general, the brick appear tight and sound with no signs of leaks
at the interior of the building. : :

4. Foundation 7 .

The exterior walls appear tight and sound with no indication of
leaks. Some leaks do appear at the rear elevation of Building "A" at
the vent openings where surface water appears to run down into the
areaway and thru the vent.

5. Windows

All the windows on both buildings have been recently replaced with
white insulated aluminum windows with screens by Jasco. The windows
have been caulked and the steel lintels are in good condition.

The window sills are of precast concrete and in need of caulking at
some locations. In general the windows are in excellent condition.

6. Exterior Entrances

Building "A" has a main front entry at the first floor level and a
rear entry. There is also a side entrance to a storage room on the
east elevation and doors to the balconies along the front elevation
of the building on the first and second floor level.

Building "B" has a main front entry and two side apartment entry
doors on the first floor east elevation to serve the two apartment
units on that side of the building. All the doors and frames are of
painted wocd and in good condition.
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100 Theodore Fremd Avenue
Page 3

6. Exterior Entrances (cont’d)

The overhead wood canopies at the front entries are in fair condition
and are due for replacement. The entrance foyers contain newly
installed aluminum mail boxes for each apartment unit by Bommer
Landaum Industries, Inc.

The floor in Building "B" is of ceramic and the walls and ceilings
are of painted plaster. The entrance foyers are generally in good
condition. The sidewalk along the front of the property on Theodore
Fremd Avenue is of concrete and in good condition.

7. Basement

Each building contains a basement area. In Building "B" the basement
contains a boiler room, small laundry room with electric meters, and
a gas meter room. Building "A" contains a boiler rcom, storage room,
gas meter room and a laundry room.

The basement interior walls are of concrete block. The walls have a
plaster finish in the corridors. The floors are of concrete and are
painted in the corridor areas. The doors and frames are hollow
metal. Lighting is either pullchain porcelain fixtures or fl8rescent
fixtures.

The basement area is generally in good condition.
8. Roofs

The roof is constructed of ‘a composition mineral covered felt on
Building "A" and "B" and also the garage. All the roofs appear to be
as originally installed and are at the end of their useful life. The
roofs are in need of a new replacement at all locations. The roofs
contain metal drip edging and no parapets.

9. Balconies

There are balcony areas for the first and second floor front
apartment units in Building "A". The decks have newly replaced
painted wooden clapboard perimeter walls at railing height around the
perimeter. The balconies are in very good condition.

10. Gutters and Leaders

Gutters and leaders are located along the rear of both buildings.
They are made of painted galvanized metal and appear in fair to good
condition.

- 106 -



100 Theodore Fremd Avenue
Page 4

11. Parking

Parking is provided by a one story attached garage and outside
parking spaces. There is a black top paved parking lot with spaces
for thirty three cars and one separate garage building with parking
for six cars.

The black top pavement and driveway are in good condition. The six
car garage is constructed of concrete block and common brick, with
wood roof joists and a concrete floor. There are wooded overhead
rollup doors.

A number of the brick require replacement and the rear garage wall
has been damaged and is in need of repair or replacement along the
middle section of the wall where it is bowed out and cracked. The
wood fascia along the rear of the roof is rotted and in need of
replacement. The roof is flat and in need of a new roof covering.
There is no electrical service to the garages and therefore no
lights.

12. Landscaping

The yard area along the front of the property at Building "A" i
grassed and in good condition. There is a privit hedge along the
front of the property which is in good condition.

The grassed area in front of Building "p" ig fair. The grassed area
along the east side of the buildings is in need of some improvement
and the large tree in front of Building "B" is in need of pruning and
trimming.

The front walks to the buildings are of concrete with some cracks 1in
the entry platform at Building "B". The Building "A" entry platform,

concrete steps, and wrought iron railing are in good condition.

There is a flagstone patio area at the rear entry to Building "A"
which is in good condition.

13. Yards and Courts

There are no yards and courts other than those areas discussed under
Landscaping.

14. Elevators
There are no elevators in either building.

15. Fire Escapes

There are no fire escapes on either building.
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16. Air Conditioning

Individual apartments are served with a number of window units of
varying size and manufacture. There is no central air conditioning
systems.

17. Ventilation

There is no central ventilation system in either building. There ar
brick vent louvers to provide cross ventilation between the ceiling
joists and the roof joists on the upper floor of the building. Ther
also are roof ventilators on the roof. The venting system is in goo«
condition. .

18. Television

Reception is provided by individual antennas as needed. Cable
television is available in the complex and used as desired by the
tenants.

19. Recreational Facilities

There are no recreational facilities as part of the building gomplex

20. Interior Stairways

The interior stairway extends from the basement to the second floor
in both buildings. The stairs are constructed of wood with rubber
threads and risers. The walls and ceilings are painted plaster.
There are wooden handrails and overhead florescent fixtures which
have been recently installed. The floors are covered with vinyl
floor tile. The stairways are in very good condition.

21. Laundry Rooms

There is a small laundry area adjacent to the boiler room in the
basement of Building "B". The area contains a coin operated Maytag
gas dryer and a Maytag electric washing machine. The room is vented
by the room door and the walls are of concrete block with a cement
plaster finish. Lighting is with florescent fixtures and the floor
1s concrete. The area is in good condition.

The laundry room in Building "A" contains two Maytag coin operated
gas dryers and two Maytag coin operated electric washing machines.
The dryers are vented thru a window in the room. The room is
ventilated by a window and doorway to the room. Lighting is by
florescent fixtures. The walls are painted concrete blocks, the
ceiling is of painted sheetrock, and the floor is of concrete. The
room is in good condition.
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22. Plumbing and Drainage

The plumbing in the complex consists of copper piping for hot and
cold water and cast iron waste piping. All appear tight and sound
with no signs of leaks. The fixtures tried provided good water
pressure in the apartment units. There are no roof drains and no
drainage piping in the building.

23. Refuse Disposal

There are no incinerators or compactors in use in the buildings.
Garbage on the site is collected in garbage pails supplied by the
owner.

The building was originally constructed with an incinerator in
Building "A" which is no longer in use. The incinerator chimney
which extends above the roof line is constructed of red common brick
which is in need of mortar joint pointing throughout.

24. Heating

The heating systems are oil fired hot water systems centrally
controlled in each building. The boiler room is located in th
basement of each building. A new hot water tank, boiler, burner unit

and chimney breeching, were installed in 1983 in Building "B". )

The boiler is manufactured by Weil McLain boiler size BL576SW, 2.95
GPH, maximum water pressure 50 p.s.i.

The oil burner unit is a Carlin Burner Model 701 CRD, firing range
6.0 - 13.2 GPH. O0il is supplied thru a 2000 gallon buried tank
located in the lawn area at the front of the building.

A Petrometer gauge type 114 is located in the gas meter room.

The heating sequence is controlled by a Honeywell Chronotherm
thermostat located near the front foyer. Hot water is provided by an
electrically operated separate hot water tank as manufactured by
Amtrol Inc., Model WH7C 41 gallon capacity 150 p.s.i. working
pressure controlled through Honeywell Aquastats.

The flue breeching is galvanized steel and all new piping installed
is of copper. The original heating piping is insulated black ircn
pipe. Some of the insulated material is in need of repair. The
heating system is in very good condition.

There is a sump pump in the boiler room also which was cycled on and
off and is in good working condition. The boiler room walls are in
need of painting. The heating system is generally in very good
condition and adequate for the building. )
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24. Heating jcont'd)

The boiler room equipment for the heating system in Building "A" was
also replaced in 1983 with a new hot water tank, boiler, burner unit,
and breeching. The boiler is manufactured by Weil McLain boiler size
BL686SW, 30 p.s.i. maximum working pressure. The oil burner is a
Carlin Burner Model 100 CRD firing rate .5 - 2.25 GPH. Number 2 oil
is used for all oil burners. O0il is supplied thru a 3000 gallon
buried tank located in the lawn area at the front of the building.

The heating sequence is controlled by a Honeywell Chronotherm
thermostat located near the front foyer. Hot water is provided by ar
0il fired hot water tank as manufactured by Ford Products Corp.,
valley Cottage, New York, Model FG8522, 85 gallon capacity and a 150
p.s.i. working pressure.

The original heating pipe is insulated black iron and the new piping
is of copper. The boiler room walls, ceiling and floor are in good
condition. The heating is in very good condition.

The chimneys for both boilers extend thru the roof and are
constructed of red common brick with concrete caps. The chimneys
require some pointing and concrete cap patching. .

25. Electrical System

Each building is served by a separate service which is located in
the basement area. The Building "A" service connection is located ir
a corner of the storage room and is a Vacu-break Safety Switch Cat.
No. JN424, 200 amp service, 240 ac maximum volts.

There are nineteen (19) separate electric meters for the building.
Eighteen (18) meters are for apartment units and one meter is for the
owner. Each apartment unit is separately fused with 30 amp fuses.

The wiring is non-metallic sheathed copper cable. The steel conduit
to the safety switch shows signs of allowing water to enter as there
is rusting inside the switch back box. This condition is in need of
repair.

The electric service to Building "B" is located in the laundry room
area. The main switch is by Walker Electrical Co., Cat. No. 1405-3S,
100 amps, 125-250 AC volts. There are nine (9) separate electric
meters for the building. Eight (8) are for apartment units and one
is for the owner. Each apartment unit is separately fused with 20 oz
30 amp fuses. The wiring is non-metallic sheathed copper cable.

Apartment unit lighting is by incandescent lighting fixtures and
there are sufficient wall outlets throughout the units.
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25. Electrical System (cont 'd)

Exterior lighting is provided by newly installed sodium vapor lamps
and metal conduits which are located generally at the corners of the
building exterior. There are controlled by Tork Timers located in
the basement near the electrical equipment.

26. Gas Service

Gas service is provided to the complex for kitchen gas stoves and

the meters are located in separate gas rooms in the basement.
Building "A" contains nineteen (19) meters, one for each unit and one
for the owner. The room is of concrete and cinder block, a painted
concrete floor and a cement plaster ceiling. The lighting is by
incandescent bulb in a porcelain pull chain fixture. The door and
frame is of hollow metal. The room is in good condition. The gas
room in Building "B" contains nine (9) gas meters, one for each unit
and one for the owner. The room construction is similar to the room
in Building "A".

The piping is black iron and appears tight and sound throughout both
buildings.

[
27. Smoke Alarms

Smoke alarms were installed in each apartment unit and in the
hallways and basement areas in 1982. The alarms in the apartments
are battery operated and the others are electrically wired in.

28. Apartment Units

The apartment units are divided as follows:

Amount Apartment Unit
Building A
18 1a, 18, 1lc, 1p, 1lgE, 1F, 1G, 1H

2a, 2B, 2C, 2D, 2E, 2F, 2G, 2H,
Patio A, Patio B

Building B
8 1A, 1B, 1lC, 1D, 2A, 2B, 2C, 2D
26 Total Units
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27. Apartment Units (cont 'd)

In order to ascertain the general physical condition of individual
apartment units, a representative number of apartments were inspected
as follows:

Building "B"

Unit 1B - This apartment is a three and one-half room unit containing
a kitchen, living room, bedroom and a bath. The kitchen contains a
stainless steel sink, four burner gas stove, refrigerator, wooden
wall and base cabinets, painted plaster walls and ceiling, linoleum
floor and incandescent light. The entire kitchen has been newly
remodelled, except for the wall cabinets which are existing.

The living room has plaster painted walls and ceiling with oak strip
wood flooring. The bedroom contains painted walls and ceiling with
and oak strip wood floor and closets. The bathroom has a tub with
shower, vanity sink, and a watercloset. The walls are ceramic tile
with plaster above. The floor is ceramic tile.

There are wood doors with metal frame throughout the apartment unit.
The entire apartment is newly painted and in very good condition.
. a

Unit 1A - This apartment is a three and one-half room unit
containing a kitchen, living room, bedroom and a bath. The kitchen
contains a stainless steel sink, four burner gas stove, refrigerator,
wooden wall and base cabinets, painted plaster walls and ceiling,

and a linoleum floor. The entire kitchen is as originally installed.

The living room has plaster painted walls and ceiling with oak strip
wood flooring. The bedroom contains painted walls and ceiling with
and oak strip wood floor and closets. The bathroom has a tub with
shower, vanity sink, and a watercloset. The walls are ceramic tile
with plaster above. The floor is ceramic tile.

The apartment contains closets, metal frame, and wood doors. - The
entire apartment in newly painted and in good condition.

Unit 1C - This apartment is a three and one-half room unit containing
a kitchen, living room, bedroom and a bath. The kitchen contains a
stainless steel sink, four burner gas stove, refrigerator, wooden
wall and base cabinets, painted plaster walls and ceiling, linoleum
floor and incandescent light. The entire kitchen has been newly
remodelled. There is a side kitchen entrance door to the grassed
patio area.
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27. Apartment Units (cont 'd)

Unit 1C (cont’d) - The living room has plaster painted walls and
ceiling with oak strip wood flooring. The bedroom contains painted
walls and ceiling with oak strip wood floor and closets. The
bathroom has a tub with shower, vanity sink, and a watercloset. The
walls are ceramic tile with plaster above. The floor is ceramic
tile.

The apartment is in very good condition.

Building "A"

Although not seen during the inspection there are eight fireplaces in
the first and second floor units which face the front of the building
There are two separate four flue chimneys of red brick which are in
good condition.

Patio Unit A Basement - The apartment is a four -room two bath unit
containing a kitchen, living room, two bedrooms, and two baths. The
kitchen contains a stainless steel sink, four burner gas stove,
refrigerator, wall and base cabinets, painted plaster walls and
ceilings, ceramic tile floor and an incandescent ceiling light. The
entire kitchen has been remodelled.

[

The living room has plaster painted walls and ceiling and oak strip
wood on the floor. The two bedrooms contain painted plaster walls and
ceilings with oak strip wood flooring. There are closets throughout
the apartment. One bathroom has a tub with shower, vanity sink and a
‘watercloset. The second bathroom contains a walk-in shower stall,
water closet, and vanity. Both baths contain ceramic tile wainscot
and floors and painted plaster walls and ceilings.

There are wood doors with metal frames throughout the apartment unit.
The entire apartment is in very good condition.

28. Building Violations

A visit to the City of Rye Building Department and a check of their
records indicates that there are no housing or building violations of
record for the complex.
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This inspection report does not represent an offer on the part of
Vito Sinopoli, Jr., P.E. to purchase or to guarantee the inspected
premises, its contents, or surrounding property.

All statements and judgements are the result of a visual inspection
of readily accessible areas of the premises.

This report of findings is attested by me and submitted this 21st day
of September 1986.

Vito Sinopoli, Jr. P.E.

Zgzy/ﬁ;cense 05:363
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J & M Associates

c/o Ridge Wood Management
300 E. 42nd Street

New York, New York 10017

Attention: Carol Joseph

AMERICA
BUILDIN
INSPECTOF

REPORT NO. 1447

——

ASBESTOS REPORT

100-110 Theodore Fremd Avenue

Rye, New York

September 23, 1987

Cahners Plaza, 999 Summer Street, Stamtord, CT 06905 (203) 348-1737
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September 24,1987

AMERIC
BUILDII

INSPECTC

American Building Inspectors, located at 999 Summer Street, Stamford, CT., has

been in business for 15 years.

The Company performs pre-sale building inspections for potential buyers, as
well as building inspections for present owners of real estate.

Besides structural inspecting for:

An asbestos inspection is done:

John H. Garrick:

plumbing, heating, electrical, interior
and exterior deficiences, we check for
evidence of asbestos, formaldahyde and
radon gases in each property.

(1) visually, (2) securing samples of
suspicious material, and (3) analyses by
a licensed laboratory, which issues a
written report. I[f any material is
proven to be of hazardous level (1.0),
we make recommendations for its fufure
disposition.

The principal in American Building
Inspectors performs these inspections
himself and/or supervises inspections
done by other qualified persons.

Mr. Garrick, a graduate architect, has
thirty  years' experience in the
construction field. He has been in the
inspection business for 15 years.

Cahners Plaza, 999 Summer Street, Stamford, CT 06905 (203) 348-1737
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GENERAL: 2 Buildings containing 26 apartments on 2 floors. Two separate
furnaces.
2 laundry rooms, 3 utility rooms, 1 storage area, stairwells,
halls. Approximate age 25 years.

INSPECTION: 29% of the apartments were checked as follows:

Patio Apartment

< w ™

N et —a
1

oo

None of the apartments have any asbestos (ACM)
2 Laundry Rooms - No Asbestos (ACM)

Gas meter room - No Asbestos

Hall and stairwell - No Asbestos

Boiler room 1. Has asbestos and one section, approximately 36" should be
encapsulated.

Boiler room 2. Has also asbestos heat pipe wrappings and eleven (11) ends
should be encapsulated. .
The electric meter room has two exposed elbows (heating pipes), they should be
encapsulated. .

We do not recommend removal.

The above mentioned utility rooms are kept under lock and key (Tocks were
recently replaced).

We do recommend that all above menticned areas be encapsulated in the
following manner:

Apply A-B-C Lag-Kloth.

Description:

A-B-C Lag-Kloth has a built-in adhesive, completely @norganic, that
impregnates the fabric throughout. The adhesive materials are water
dispersible and the inorganic composition reduces chances of fire to
practically zero.

There are no additional areas in need of encapsulation.
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The 0 and M abatement program should include the following:
Records of the location of all ACM in the building.
The building occupants and workers should be informed of the ACM
locations and also the method with which to cut down the asbestos
disturbance.

There should be a training program for employees who through their work
may come in contact with ACM.

Initial cleaning and periodic cleaning should be outlined.

Review of any renovation, maintenance and construction requests to be
sure that safety procedures will be adhered to.

Semi-Annual inspections of the ACM and the findings should be reported to
the 0 and M coordinator, the owner and the consultant.

Procedures should be coordinated for any fiber release or damage.

Records should be kept for all written documents regarding these points
above.

" We will reinspect after repairs were made.

INSPECTORS, INC.

JHG/jt
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AMERICA?
BUILDING
INSPECTOR:

September 24, 1987

Ms. Carol Joseph .

J&M Associates

c/o Ridge Wood Management
300 E. 42nd Street

New York, New York 10017

Dear Ms. Joseph:

We do recommend that all the above mentioned areas be encapsulated in the
following manner:

Apply A-B-C Lag Kloth.

Description:

A-B-C Lag-Kloth has a built-in adhesive, completely inorganic, that
impregnates the fabric throughout. The adhesive materials are water
dispersible and inorganic composition reduces chances of fire to practically
zero.

There are no additional areas in need of encapsulation.

The 0 and M abatement program should include the following: .
Records of the location of all ACM in the building. .
The building occupants and workers should be informed of the ACM
locations and also the method with which to cut down the asbestos
disturbance.

There should be a training program for employees who through their work
may come in contact with ACM.

Initial cleaning and periodic cleaning should be outlined.

Review of any renovation, maintanence and construction requests to be sure
that safety procedures will be adhered to.

Semi-Annual inspections of the ACM and the finds should be reported to the
0 and M coordinator, the owner and the consultant.

Procedures should be coordinated for any fiber release or damage.

Records should be kept for all written documents regarding these points
above.

An estimate to encapsule the exposed ACM material is $325.00

Cahners Plazg, 999 Summer Street, Stamford, CT 06905 (203) 348-1737
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DOCUMENT NUMBER 3

RYEVIEW CONDOMINIUM DECLARATION
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DECIARATION

Establishing a Plan for Condominium Ownership of the

premises known as 100-110 Theordore Fremd Avenue, Rye, New York,
pursuant to Article 9-B of the Real Property Law of the State of

New York.
NAME : RYEVIEW CONDOMINIUM
SPONSOR: J & M ASSOCIATES

11 Elm Place

Rye, New York 10580
DATE OF
DECLARATION: , 1987
PREPARED BY: Cassin, Cassin & Joseph

Attorneys for Sponsor

300 East 42nd Street

New York, New York 10017
(212) 972-6161

The land affected by the within instrument lies in the

City of Rye, County of Westchester and State of New York.
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DECLARATION OF THE RYEVIEW CONDOMINIUM

(Pursuant to Article 9-B of the Real
Property Law of the State of New York)

J & M ASSOCIATES, a New York partnership having an office at
11 Elm Place, Rye, New York, hereinafter referred to as the
"Sponsor", does hereby declare as follows:

ARTICLE 1

Submission of the Property

The Sponsor hereby submits the land more particularly
described on Schedule A attached hereto and made a part hereof,
together with the buildings and improvements thereon erected ‘
(hereinafter called the "Building") owned by the Sponsor in fee
simple absolute (the Land and the Buildings hereinafter collec-
tively called the "Property"), to the provisions of Article 9-B
of the Real Property of the State of New York.

ARTICLE 2

Name of Condominium

This condominium shall be known as RYEVIEW CONDOMINIUM.
ARTICLE 3
The Land

The Land, which is located in the City of Rye, County of
Westchester, and is more particularly described in Exhibit A
annexed hereto, is owned by J & M Associates in fee simple
absolute.

ARTICLE 4

The Buildings

The Buildings are known as and located at 100-110 Theodore
Fremd Avenue, Rye, New York.

ARTICLE 5
The Units

(a) Each Unit consists of the area measured horizontally
from the Unit side of the walls and partitions separating such
Unit from the corridors, stairs, and other mechanical equipment
spaces and where walls and partitions separating such Unit from
other Units, to the side of such walls and partitions facing such
unit; vertically each Unit consists of the space between the top
of the wooden floor and the underside of the ceiling.
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(b) Each Unit includes: (i) the front entrance door and any
other entrance doors to such Unit; (ii) the interior walls,
partitions and floor coverings and plastered ceilings affixed,
attached or appurtenant to such Unit; (iii) all windows, (inclu-
ding, without limitation, their panes, casements and frames)
located within, or opening from, such Unit; (iv) all equipment
and fixtures (including, without limitation, heating and cooling
equipment, plumbing facilities, sinks, bathtubs, waterclosets)
affixed, attached, or appurtenant to such Unit and (v) all other
Facilities affixed, attached, or appurtenant to such Unit and
benefiting only that Unit.

(c) Notwithstanding anything contained in this Article 5 to
the contrary, each Unit Owner will have the right, exercisable at
any time, and from time to time, to install, at such Unit Owner’s
sole cost and expense, such decorations and fixtures and cover-
ings (including, without limitation, painting, finishing, wall’
papering, carpeting, pictures, mirrors, shelving and lighting
fixtures) on the surface of the walls, ceilings and floors that
fact the interior of such Unit Owner’s Unit and to a depth of one
inch behind such surfaces for the purposes of installing nails,
screws, bolts and the like, provided that no such installation
shall impair the structural integrity of such Unit or of the
Building.

ARTICLE 6

Use of Buildings and Units

(a) As more particularly set forth in the By-Laws each of
the Buildings and Residential Units are to be used only for
residential purposes or such other home occupation as permitted
by law, by the Unit Owner thereof or their permitted lessees,
their immediate families, their guests, and their invitees. Any
Unit may be used for professional purposes, or for any other
lawful purposes, subject, however, to (1) the terms and condi-
tions of the then existing certificate of occupancy for such
Unit, (2) the Law, (3) the use of such Unit not adversely affec-
ting the use and enjoyment of neighboring or adjacent Units for
residential purposes, and (4) the prior written permission of
Sponsor, or, when there are no longer any Unsold Units, the Board
of Managers, which permission can only be given upon an affirma-
tive finding that the conditions in (1) through (3) above have
been met. The Units may only be leased in accordance with the
By-Laws and the Rules and Regulations.

(b) Notwithstanding the foregoing or anything to the
contrary contained herein, in the By-Laws or the Rules and
Regulations, Sponsor may, without the permission of the Board of
Managers, (1) grant permission for the use of any Unsold Unit (as
hereinafter defined) as a professional office or for any other
purpose, provided such use is permitted by Law, does not violate
the then existing certificate of occupancy or any other govern-
mental regulations, (2) use any Unsold Units as models and sales
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and/or promotion offices in connection with the sale or rental of
the Units or for any other purpose, subject only to compliance
with Law and (3) lease any Unsold Units to third parties for
their occupancy.

ARTICLE 7
The Common Elements

The Common Elements consist of the entire Property,
including all parts of the Building other than the apartment
Units, and including, without limitation, the following:

(a) The land on which the Building is erected and all
other land within the boundaries of the Property; together with
all easements, rights and privileges appurtenant thereto.

(b) All foundations, columns, girders, beams, sup-
ports, and bearing walls;

(c) All exterior walls of the Buildings not including
the portions thereof on the Unit side of the masonry of such
walls; all walls and partitions separating Units from corridor
and mechnical equipment spaces, other than the portions thereof
between the Unit side of such walls and partitions and the
masonry of all walls and partitions; the masonry of all walls and
partitions separating Units and containing masonry; the porttons
of the sheet rock partitions separating Units between the Unit
side of the sheet rock or other partition on each side of such
partitions; all concrete floors and concrete ceilings;

(d) All roofs, hallways, corridors, stairs, stairways
and entrances to and exits from the Building;

(e) All basements, cellars, yards, gardens, and other
areas used in connection therewith, all outdoor parking and
driveway areas, and all storage spaces, (but excluding porches
adjacent to the Units and storage areas limited to the use of a
particular Unit Owner):;

(f) All central and appurtenant installations and
facilities for services such as power, light, telephone,
television, hot and cold water, heat and compacting (including
all pipes, ducts, wires, chutes, cables, and conduits used in
connection therewith, whether located in common areas or in
Units) and all other mechanical and electrical equipment spaces
to the extent that the same are not expressly included as part of
a Unit pursuant to the terms of Article 5 hereof;

(g) All sewer pipes;
(h) All pedestrian walkways, easements and rights

appurtenant thereto intended for the common use of all Unit
owners;
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(i) All other parts of the Property and all apparatus
and installations now existing or hereafter constructed in the
Building or on the Property for common use of Unit Owners or
Units or necessary for, or convenient to, the existence, mainte-
nance or safety of the Property.

ARTICLE 8

Determination of Percentage of Interest In Common Elements

The percentage of Common Interest allocated to each Unit is
based upon floor space, subject to the location of such space and
the additional factors of relative value to other space in the
Condominium, the uniqueness of the Unit, the availability of
Common Elements for exclusive or shared use, and the overall
dimensions of the particular Unit. These allocations are made
pursuant to the terms of Article 9-B of the Real Property Law of
the State of New York (the "Condominium Act"). The aggregate
Common Interest of all Units equals one hundred (100%) percent.

ARTICLE 9
Encroachments

If any portion of the Common Elements now encrocaches upon
any Unit, or if any Unit now encroaches upon any other Unit or
upon' any portion of the Common Elements, as a result of tha
construction of the Building, or if any such encroachment shall
occur hereafter as a result of settling or shifting of the
Building, or by reason of the repair and/or restoration by the
Board of Managers of the Building, any Unit or the Common Ele-
ments, a valid easement for the encroachment and for the mainte-
nance of the same so long as the Building stands, shall exist.

In the event the Building, Unit, adjoining Unit, or any adjoining
Common Element, shall be partially or totally destroyed as a
result of fire or other casualty or as a result of condemnation
or eminent domain proceedings, and then rebuilt, encroachments of
parts of the Common Elements upon any Unit or of any Unit upon
any other Unit or upon any portion of the Common Elements, due to
such rebuilding, shall be permitted, and valid easements for such
encroachments and the maintenance thereof shall exist so long as
the Building shall stand.

ARTICLE 10

Easements

Each Unit Owner shall have an easement in common with the
owners of all other Units to use in accordance with present use
and present available facilities all pipes, wires, ducts, cables,
conduits, public utility lines and other Common Elements located
in any of the other Units and serving its Unit. Each Unit shall
be subject to an easement in favor of the owners of all other
Units to use in accordance with present use and present available
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facilities the pipes, ducts, cables, wires, conduits, public
utility lines and other common elements serving such other Units
and located in such Unit. The Board of Managers shall have a
right of access to each Unit to inspect the same, to remove
violations therefrom and to maintain, repair or replace the
Common Elements contained therein or elsewhere in the Building.

The user of any easement granted herein shall have the
responsibility of repairing any damage resulting therefrom.

ARTICLE 11

Alterations to Units

(a) Except as otherwise permitted in the By-Laws or
Declaration, no Owner may make any alteration, improvement or
repair in and to the Common Elements without the prior written
approval of the Board of Managers.

(b) Each Owner may, at any time and from time to time,
at its expense, make or have made such alterations, additions,
installations, substitutions, improvements and decorations
(collectively, "Changes") in and to its Unit as such Owner may
desire, provided that those Changes do not adversely affect the
use of any other Unit without the consent of the Unit’s Owner and
further provided: .

(i) The consent of any mortgagee of the Unit is
first obtained to the extent required by the provisions of any
mortgage constituting a lien upon the Unit;

; (ii) Structural alterations shall be permitted
only under the circumstances described in subparagraph (c):

(iii) The outside appearance of the Building, or
the strength of the Building or any of its exterior walls,
supporting beams, columns, floor slabs, foundations or elevator
systems are not adversely affected;

(iv) No part of the Building outside of such Unit
is adversely affected;

(v) Such Owner shall, within fifteen (15) days
after the making of any Change other than a Change involving only
decorations and substitutions, submit to the Board of Managers
detailed plans showing such Change; and

(vi) If any Change, under the applicable
governmental building code in effect at the time such Change is
made, would require an alteration permit or building notice or
governmental authorization for which approval of the Board of
Managers is required, such Owner shall, prior to the commencement
of such Change, have obtained consent thereto from the Board of
Managers which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld.
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(c) Owners shall be permitted to make structural
changes only if the structural integrity of the Building is not
thereby affected and the prior written consent of the Board of
Managers is obtained.

ARTICLE 12

Alterations to Unsold Units

Except to the extent prohibited by Law, Sponsor or its
designee will have the right, without the consent or approval of
the Board of Managers, the Unit Owners, the Selling Agent, the
Managing Agent, or the Mortgage Representatives, if any, to:

(i) make alterations, additions, or improvments,
whether structural or non-structural, interior or exterior,
ordinary or extraordinary, in, to, and upon Unsold Units;

(ii) change the layout of or number of rooms in any
Unsold Units:;

(iii) change the size and/or number of Unsold Units by
(A) subdividing one or more Unsold Units into two or more sepa-
rate Units, (B) combining two or more separate Unsold Units
(including, without limitation, those resulting from such sub-
division or otherwise) into one or more Units, (C) alterinqg the
boundary walls of any Unsold Units, or (D) otherwise; and

(iv) if appropriate, reapportion among the Unsold Units
affected by such change in size or number pursuant to the prece-
ding clause (iii) their respective Common Interests; provided,
however, that, with respect to any such alteration, addition,
improvement or change in, to, of, or upon an Unsold Unit:

(1) no physical modification will be made to any
other Unit, and the Common Interest or interior dimensions of any
other Unit will not be changed by reason therof, unless the Owner
of such other affected Unit consents thereto;

(2) Sponsor or its designees (as the case may be)
will comply with Law.

(3) Sponsor or its designee (as the case may be)
will agree to hold the Board of Managers and all other Unit
Owners harmless from any liability arising therefrom; and

(4) such alteration, addition, improvment or
change will not jeopardize the soundness or structural integrity
of any part of the Building or the safety of any tenant or other
persons at the Property. Notwithstanding the foregoing, however,
the aggregate amounts of the Common Interests of all the Units
will always remain at 100%, and no reapportionment of the Common
Interest appurtenant to any Unsold Unit will be made unless there
is first delivered to the Board of Managers a written
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certification stating the new Common Interest of the affected
Unit has been based upon the factors set forth in Article 8
hereof. The certification referred to in the preceding sentence
will be delivered, at Sponsor’s election, by Sponsor, or its
designee, the Selling Agent, the Managing Agent or any other
person reasonably acceptable to the Board of Managers. The
provisions of this Article 12 may not be added to, amended,
modified or deleted without the prior written consent of the
Sponsor or its designee.

ARTICLE 13

Acquisition of Units by Board of Managers

In the event a Unit Owner shall surrender his Unit,
together with (1) the undivided interest in the Common Elements
appurtenant thereto; (ii) the interest of such Unit Owner in any
other Units acquired by the Board of Managers or its designee on
behalf of all Unit Owners or the proceeds of the sale or lease
thereof, if any; and (iii) the interest of such Unit Owner in any
other assets of the Condominium (hereinafter collectively called
the "Appurtenant Interests"),pursuant to the provisions of
Section 339-x of the Real Property Law of the State of New York,
or in the event the Board of Managers shall purchase from any
Unit Owner who has elected to sell the same, a Unit, together
with the Appurtenant Interests, title or the leasehold estate, as
the case may be, in and to any such Unit, shall be held by the
Board of Managers or its designee, corporate or otherwise, on
behalf of all Unit Owners, in proportion to their respective
Common Interests. The lease covering any Unit leased by the Board
of Managers, or its designee, corporate or otherwise, shall be
held by the Board of Managers, or its designee on behalf of all
Unit Owners, in proportion to their respective Common Interests.

ARTICLE 14

Power of Attornevy to Board of Managers

(a) Each Unit Owner by acceptance of a deed or
otherwise succeeding to title to a Unit will be deemed to have
irrevocably nominated and appointed the persons who shall from
time to time constitute the Board of Managers, power of attorney,
coupled with an interest, and power of substitution, to acquire
title to or lease any Unit whose owner desires to surrender, sell
or lease the same, or which may be the subject of a foreclosure
or other judicial sale in the name of the Board of Managers or
its designee, corporate or otherwise, on behalf of all Unit
owners, and to convey, sell, lease, mortgage, vote the votes
appurtenant thereto or otherwise deal with any such Unit so
acquired or to sublease any Unit so leased by the Board of
Managers.

(b) In confirmation of the foregoing power of
attorney, each Unit Owner upon the request of the Board of
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Managers, will duly ex=cute, acknowledge and deliver to the Board
of Managers, for recording in the register’s office, a Unit
owner’s Power of Attorney.

ARTICLE 15

Termination of Condominium

The Condominium will continue until terminated by (i)
casualty loss, condemnation or eminent domain, as more particu-
larly provided in the By-Laws, or (ii) withdrawal of the Property
from the provisions of the Condominium Act by a vote of at least
eighty (80%) percent of all Unit Owners, both in number and in
aggregate Common Interests. No such vote under clause (ii) in
the preceding sentence will be effective without the written
consent of the Mortgage Representatives, if any, which consent
will not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. Sponsor will not
vote the aggregate Common Interests appurtenant to the Unsold
Units for such withdrawal unless at least eighty (80%) percent,
both in number and in aggregate Common Interests, of all other
Unit Owners so elect for such withdrawal, at which time Sponsor
may choose to vote either in favor of or against withdrawal from
condominium ownership, as it sees fit. 1In the event that such
withdrawal is so authorized, the Property shall be subject to an
action for partition by any Unit Owner or lienor as if owned in
common, in which event the net proceeds of sale will be divided
among all Unit Owners in proportion to their respective Common
Interests; provided, however, that no payment will be made to a
Unit Owner until there has first been paid, out of such Unit
Owner’s share of such net proceeds, all liens on the Unit Owner’s
Unit, in the order of priority of such liens.

ARTICLE 16

Units Subject to Declaration,
By-Laws And Rules And Regulations

All present and future Unit Owners, tenants, and occupants
of Units shall be subject to and shall comply with the provisions
of this Declaration, the By-Laws and the Rules and Regulations,
all as they may be amended from time to time. The acceptance of
the deed or conveyance or the entering into of a lease or the
entering into occupancy of any Unit shall constitute an agreement
that the provisions of this Declaration, the By-Laws and the
Rules and Regqgulations, all as they may be amended from time to
time, are accepted and ratified by such Owner, tenant or occu-
pant, and all of such provisions shall be deemed and taken to be
covenants running with the land and shall bind any person having
at any time any interest or estate in such Unit, as though such
provisions were recited and stipulated at length in each and
every deed or conveyance of lease thereof.
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The administration of the Condominium described herein
shall be in accordance with the provisions of this Declaration
and with the provisions of the By-Laws which are made a part of
this Declaration and are attached hereto, and in accordance with
the Rules arid Requlations of the Condominium.

ARTICLE 17

Amendment of Declaration

(a) Subject to the provisions contained herein or in
the By-Laws with respect to amendments, modifications, additions
or deletions affecting Sponsor or its designee or any Unsold
Units, any provision of this Declaration may be amended, modi-
fied, added to or deleted by the vote of at least sixty-six and
two thirds (66-2/3%) percent of all Unit Owners, both in number
and in aggregate Common Interests, taken in accordance with the
provisions of the By-Laws. Subject to the provisions contained
herein or in the By-Laws with respect to amendments, modifica-
tions, additions or deletions affecting Sponsor or its designee
or any Unsold Units, no amendment, modification, addition or
deletion pursuant to the preceding sentence will be effective
without the written consent of the Mortgage Representatives, if
any, which consent will not be unreasonably withheld or delayed.
No such amendment, modification, addition or deletion will be
effective until recorded in the Register’s Office. Subject fo
the provisions contained herein or in the By-Laws with respect to
amendments, modifications, additions or deletions affecting
Sponsor or its designee or any Unsold Units, any such- amendment,
modification, addition or deletion will be executed by the Board
of Managers as attorney-in-fact for the Unit Owners, which power
will be deemed to be coupled with an interest, and the Board of
Managers is hereby authorized by the Unit Owners to so act as
their attorney-in-fact. Nothwithstanding any provision contained
herein to the contrary, no amendment, modification, addition or
deletion of or to this Declaration will be effective in any
respect against Sponsor or its designee, or any Unsold Unit
unless or until Speonsor, and/or such designee (as the case may
be) will consent thereto in writing. Additionally, there shall
be no amendment to the Declaration which is not in compliance
with Article 9-B of the Real Property Law.

(b) Sponsor or its designee will have the right, at
its sole cost and expense and without the vote or consent of any
other Unit Owners, the Board of Managers or the Mortgage Represen-
tatives, if any, to execute, acknowledge and record (or, at
Sponsor’s or such designee’s sole option, to require the Board of
Managers or any other Unit Owners to execute, acknowledge and
record) in the Register’s Office and elsewhere, if required by
Law, one or more amendments to this Declaration together with
such documents, plans and maps as Sponsor and such designee deems
appropriate to so effectuate:

- 135 -



(1) any changes in Unsold Units and/or the
reapportionment of the respective Common Interests of the affec-
ted Unsold Units resulting therefrom made by Sponsor or such
designee in accordance with the terms of Article 12 hereof; or

(ii) requirements by (A) an institutional lender
designated by Sponsor to make a loan secured by a mortgage on any
Unit, (B) an governmental agency having regulatory jurisdiction
over the Condominium, or (C) any title insurance company selected
by Sponsor to insure title to any Unit,provided, however, that
any amendment made pursuant to the terms of subparagraph (i) or
(ii) of this paragraph will not (1) change the Common Interest of
any Unit other than a Unit owned by Sponsor or Sponsor’s desig-
nee, (2) require a material, physical modification of any Unit
other than a Unit owned by Sponsor, or (3) adversely affect the
priority or validity of the lien of any purchase money mortgage
or any mortgage held by an Institutional Lender unless the owner
of such affected Unit (in the event described in subparagraph (1)
or (2) of this paragraph) or the holder of such mortgage (in the
event described in subparagraph (3) of this paragraph) will
consent thereto by joining the execution of such amendment.

(c) Any amendment to this Declaration may be executed:
(i) if on behalf of Sponsor pursuant to the terms of paragraph
(b) hereof, by any officer of Sponsor or (ii) if on behalf of the
Unit Owners or the Board of Managers, by the President or Vice
President and the Secretary or an Assistant Secretary of thé
Condominium. If the amendment requires the approval of a speci-
fied percentage of Unit Owners pursuant to the terms of this
Declaration or the By-Laws, then there will be attached to such
amendment an original executed Secretary’s Certificate, certi-
fying that the requisite number and percentage of Unit Owners
approved the amendment at a duly' constituted meeting or (when
permitted in this Declaration or the By-Laws) in writing without
a meeting, in which Certificate will be described the number and
percentage of Unit Owners so consenting and (if voted upon at a
meeting) the date and time of the meeting.

(d) Notwithstanding anything contained in the Condomi-
nium Documents to the contrary, but subject to any limitation
imposed by the Condominium Act, no amendment to the Condominium
Documents will be adopted for so long as Sponsor or its designee
owns any Unit if it would (i) unreasonably interfere with the
sale, lease or other disposition of a Unit owned by Sponsor or
such designee, (ii) abridge, modify, suspend, eliminate or
otherwise affect any right, power, easement, privilege or benefit
reserved to Sponsor or such designee; (iii) impose any charge or
fee against Sponsor or such designee.

(e) The provisions of this Article 17 may not be

mgdified, amended, added to or deleted, in whole or in part,
without the consent of Sponsor or its designee.
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ARTICLE 18

Invalidit

(a) If any provision of this Declaration or of the
By-Laws is invalid under, or would cause this Declaration and the
By-Laws to be insufficient to submit the Property, to the provi-
sions of the Condominium Act, such provision will be deemed
deleted from this Declaration or the By-Laws as the case may be,
for the purpose of submitting the Property to the provisions of
the Condominium Act, but will nevertheless be valid and binding
upon and will inure to the benefit of the owners of the Property
and their heirs, executors, administrators, legal representa-
tives, successors, and assigns, as covenants running with the
Land and with every part thereof and interest therein under other
applicable Law to the extent permitted under such applicable Law
with the same force and effect as if, immediately after the '
recording of this Declaration and the By-Laws, all Unit Owners
had signed and recorded an instrument agreeing to each such
provision as a covenant running with the Land. If any provision
that is necessary to cause this Declaration and the By-Laws to be
sufficient to submit the Property to the provisions of the
Condominium Act is missing from this Declaration or the By-Laws,
then such provision will be deemed included as part of this
Declaration or the By-lLaws, as the case may be, for the purposes
of submitting the Property to the provisions of the Condomin%um
Act. :

(b) Subject to the terms of paragraph (a) of this
Article 18, if this Declaration and the By-Laws are insufficient
to submit the Property to the provisions of the Condominium Act,
the provisions of this Declaration and the By-Laws will neverthe-
less be valid and binding upon, and will inure to the benefit of,
the owners of the Property and their heirs, executors, administra-
tors, legal representatives, successors and assigns, as covenants
running with the Land and with every part thereof and interest
therein under other applicable Law with the same force and effect
as if, immediately after the recording of this Declaration and
the By-Laws, all Unit Owners has signed and recorded an
instrument agreeing to each such provision as a covenant running
with the land.

ARTICLE 19

Person_to Receive Service
Notice of process in any action which may be brought against
the Condominium shall be served upon the President of the Board
of Managers at the office of the Condominium, 100-110 Theodore
Fremd Avenue, Rye, New York.
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ARTICLE 20

Covenants and Restrictions

The use of the Unit by the Unit Owner or other occupant
shall be subject to the Rules, Regulations and provisions of this
Declaration, By-Laws, and Rules and Regulations of the Board of
Managers and the following covenants and restrictions:

(a) The Unit and area restricted to the Unit Owner’s
use shall be maintained in good repair and general appearance.

: (b) No structural alterations to the exterior of the
Unit or other alterations which would impair the structural
soundness of the Building may be made without the written consent
of the Board of Managers. Consent may be requested through the
Managing Agent, if any, or through the President of the Board of
Managers, if no Managing Agent is employed. The Board of Managers
shall have the obligation to answer within thirty (30) days and
failure to do so within the stipulated time shall mean that there
is no objection to the proposed modification or alteration.

(c) Any Unit Owner who mortgages his Unit shall notify
the Board of Managers providing the name and address of his
mortgagee.

(d) The Board of Managers shall, at the request Hf the
mortgagee of the Unit, report any unpaid common charges, assess-
ments or other charges due from the Unit Owner of such Unit and
the mortgagee shall agree to inform the Board of Managers of any
default by the Unit Owner under such mortgage.

(e) No nuisance shall be allowed upon the property nor
shall any use or practice be allowed which is a source of
annoyance to residents or which interferes with the peaceful
possession and proper use of the property by its residence.

(f£) No immoral, improper, offensive or unlawful use
shall be made of the property nor any part thereof and all valid
laws, zoning ordinances and regulations of all governmental
bodies having jurisdiction thereof shall be observed.

(g) Regulations promulgated by the Board of Managers
concerning the use of the property shall be observed by the Unit
owners, provided, however, that copies of such regulations are
furnished to each Unit Owner prior to the time the same become
effective.

ARTICLE 21
Waiver

No provision contained in this Declaration shall be deemed
to have been abrogated or waived by reason of any failure to
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enforce the same, irrespective of the number of violations or
breaches which may occur.

ARTICLE 22

Successors and Assigns

The rights and/or obligations of Sponsor as set forth herein
shall inure to the benefit of, and shall be binding upon, any
successor or assignee of Sponsor or, with consent of Sponsor, any
transferee of all of the then Unsold Units. Subject to the
foregoing, Sponsor shall have the right, at any time, in its sole
discretion, to assign or otherwise transfer its interest herein,
whether by merger, consolidation, distribution, lease, assignment
or otherwise.

_ARTICLE 23

Consents and Sponsor

Wherever the consent, approval, satisfaction, or permission
of Sponsor or its designee is required under this Declaration or
the By-Laws, such consent, approval, satisfaction, or permission
will not be required when Sponsor or such designee no longer owns
any Unsold Units.

A

ARTICLE 24
Gender

A reference in this Declaration to any one gender, mascu-
line, feminine or neuter, includes the other two, and the
singular includes the plural, and vice-versa, unless the context
otherwise requires.

ARTICLE 25

Captions

The index hereof and the captions herein are inserted only a
a matter of convenience and for reference, and in no way define,
1imit or describe the scope of this Declaration nor the intent of
any provision hereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Sponsor has caused this Declaration to
be executed as of the day of , 1987.

J & M ASSOCIATES
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STATE OF NEW YORK

A T I g

COUNTY OF WESTCHESTER

On the day of , 1987, before me
personally came , to me known and known to me
to be the individual who executed the foregoing instrument, and
who, being duly sworn by me, did depose and say that he is a
member of J & M ASSOCIATES, a New York partnership and that he
executed the foregoing instrument in the partnership name and
that he had authority to sign the same, and acknowledge that he
executed the same as the act and deed of said partnership.

NOTARY PUBLIC
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EXHIBIT A

TO THE DECLARATION OF THE RYEVIEW CONDOMINIUM

Description of the Land

ALL that certain plot, piece or parcel of land, with the
buildings and improvements thereon erected, situate, lying and
being in the City of Rye, County of Westchester and State of New
York, shown and designated and described as Lots 89 and 90 on a
certain map entitled, "Map of Land belonging to Robert S.
Hayward, being part of the late James D. Halsted Farm, situated
in the Town of Rye, Westchester County, NY," made by J.A. Kirby,
June 11, 1889 and filed in the Westchester county Clerk’s Office,
Division of Land Records on June 22, 1889 as Map No. 910, being
bounded and described as follows:

BEGINNING at a point on the northwesterly side of Theodore
Fremd Avenue distant 210.40 feet southwesterly as measured along
the same from the corner formed by the intersection of the
northwesterly side of Theodore Fremd Avenue and the southerly
side of Locust Avenue;

thence along the southwesterly side of Theodore Fremd Avenue
South 38 degrees 57’ 00" West 150.00 feet to a point and the,
division line of Lots 88 and 89 on said map;

thence along said division line North 51 degrees. 03’ 00"
West 290.50 feet to a point and lands now or formerly of the New
York, New Haven and Hartford Railroad;

thence along said last mentioned lands North 58 degrees 01’
00" East 158.70 feet to a point and the division line of lots 90
and 91 on said map;

thence along said last mentioned division line South 51

degrees 03’ 00" East 238.66 feet to the northwesterly side of
Theodore Fremd Avenue at the point or place of BEGINNING.
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BY-LAWS
OF
RYEVIEW CONDOMINIUM

ARTICLE I
General

Section 1.1 Purpose. The purpose of these By-Laws is
to set forth the rules and procedures concerning the conduct of
the affairs of the Condominium known as Ryeview Condominium. The
property which is located at 100-110 Theodore Fremd Avenue, Rye,
New York has been submitted by J & M Associates ("Sponsor") to
the provisions of Article 9-B of the Real Property Law of the
State of New York by the recording of the Declaration, to which
these By-Laws are annexed, in the Office of the County Clerk,
Westchester County, State of New York.

Section 1.2 By-Laws Applicability. The provisions of
these By-Laws are applicable to the Condominium and to the use
and occupancy thereof. The term "condominium" as used hereby
shall include the land and all buildings and improvements thereon
including the Condominium Units (hereinafter referred to as
"Units"), and the Common Elements and the use and occupancy
thereof. The term "Building(s)" as hereinafter used shall be
defined as the exterior walls and roof of a number of Units all
of which are constructed under a continuous roof. .

Section 1.3 Personal Application. All present or
future Unit Owners, mortgagees and lessees, oOr their employees or
any other person that might use the facilities of the Condominium
in any of the Units or the mere act of occupancy of any of said
Units will signify that these By-Laws, the Declaration and the
Rules and Requlations as from time to time may be amended, are
accepted, ratified, and will be complied with.

Section 1.4 Principal Office. The office of the
condominium and the Board of Managers shall be at the Property or
at such other place as may be designated by the Board of
Managers.

ARTICLE II

BOARD OF MANAGERS

Section 2.1 Number and Term. The affairs of the
Condominium shall be governed by the Board of Managers. Until
the first annual meeting of the Unit Owners held pursuant to the
terms of Section 3.8 hereof, the Board of Managers will consist
of three (3) individuals to be designated from time to time by
Sponsor. From and after the first annual meeting of the Unit
Owners, the Board of Managers will consist of five (5) indivi-
duals to be elected by Unit Owners pursuant to the terms of
Section 3.3 hereof. Until succeeded by the Managers elected at

- 149 -



the first annual meeting of Unit Owners, Managers need not be
Unit Owners; thereafter, all Managers shall be Unit Owners. The
Managers shall hold office for a term of one (1) year and until
their successors have been elected and hold their first meeting.

Section 2.2 Vacancy and Replacement. If the office of
any Manager or Managers becomes vacant by reason of death,
resignation, dlsquallflcatlon, removal from office or otherwise,
a majority of the remaining Managers, though less than a quorum,
at a special meeting of Managers duly called for this purpose,
shall choose a successor or successors who shall hold office for
the unexpired term in respect to which such vacancy occurred. In
the event that the entire Board of Managers resigns, dies or is
removed from office, a special meeting shall be held on the fifth
day following, for the purpose of electing a new Board of
Managers, which election shall follow the manner of election as
set forth above for the first annual meeting.

Section 2.3 Removal. Managers may be removed for any
reason by an affirmative vote of a majority of the Unit Owners.
No manager shall continue to serve on the Board if, during his
term of office he shall cease to be a Unit Owner.

Section 2.4 Powers and Duties of the Board of
Managers. The Property and business of the Condominium shall be

managed by its Board of Managers, which may exercise all spch
powers of the Condominium and do all such lawful acts and things
as are not by Statute or by the Declaration or by these By-Laws,
directed or required to be exercised or done by the unit owners
personally. These powers shall specifically include, but not be
limited to the following items:

a. To determine and levy monthly assessments ('"Common
Charges") to cover the cost of common expenses, payable in
advance. The Board of Managers may increase the monthly assess-
ments or vote a special assessment in excess of that amount, 1if
requlred to meet any additional necessary expense, but sald
increase can only be assessed among the unit owners on a pro-rata
basis according to their Common Interests.

b. To collect, use and expend the assessments collec-
ted to maintain, care for and preserve the Condominium Units,
Buildings and other Common Elements or create a reserve fund;

c. To make repairs, restore or alter any Units or the
Common Elements after damage or destruction by fire or other
casualty or as a result of condemnation or eminent domain procee-
dings. ‘

d. To enter into and upon the Condominium Units when
necessary and at as little inconvenience to the Unit Owner as
possible in connection with the maintenance, care and preserva-
tion of the Property.
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. e. To open bank accounts on behalf of the Condominium
and to designate the signatories to such bank accounts.

f. To insure and keep insured the Common Elements and
Units in accordance with Article VII of these By-laws;

g. To collect delinquent assessments by suit or
otherwise, to abate nuisances and to enjoin or seek damages from
the Unit Owners of the Property for violations of the house rules
and regulations herein referred to; '

h. To Purchase any Condominium Unit either at a
foreclosure sale on behalf of all the Unit Owners or from a Unit
Owner pursuant to Article XI of these By-lLaws;

i. To make reasonable rules and regulations and to
amend the same from time to time, and such rules and regulations
and amendments shall be binding upon the Unit Owners when the
Board has approved them in writing. A copy of such rules and all
amendments shall be delivered to each Condominium Unit;

j. To employ managing agents, workmen, janitors and
gardeners and to purchase supplies and equipment, to enter into
contracts, and generally to have the power of Manager in connec-
tion with the matters hereinabove set forth. The Board of
Managers shall perform such duties and services as the Board of
Managers ‘shall authorize, including, but not limited to the
duties listed in subdivisions (a) through (j) of Section 2.4 of
this Article II. The Board of Managers may delegate to the
Manager or Managing Agent, all of the powers granted to the Board
of Managers by these By-Laws other than the power set forth in
subdivision a, e, £, h, i, and j of Section 2.4 of this Article
TT.

k. To bring and defend actions by or against more than
one Unit Owner and pertinent to the operation of the Condominium;

1. To acquire Condominium Units in foreclosure or as a
result of abandonment and to take any and all steps necessary to
repair or renovate any Condominium Unit so acquired and to vote
as Unit Owner (except as specifically excluded by these By-Laws),
offer such Unit for sale or lease or take any other steps regard-
ing such Condominium Unit as shall be deemed proper by the Board
of Managers.

m. Selling, léasing, mortgaging (but not voting the
votes appurtenant to), or otherwise dealing with Units acquired
by, and subleasing units leased by the Board of Managers or its
designee, corporate or otherwise, on behalf of all Unit Owners.

n. Organizing corporations to act as designee of the

Board of Managers in acquiring title to or leasing of Units on
behalf of all Unit Owners;
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o. The Board of Managers, may by resolution or
resolutions, passed by a majority of the whole Board, designate
one or more committees, each of such committees to consist of at
least three (3) members or Unit Owners one of whom shall be a
Manager, which, to the extent provided in said resolution or
resolutions, shall have and may exercise the powers of the Board
of Managers in the management of the business and affairs of the
Condominium and may have power to sign all papers which may be
required, provided the said resolution or resolutions shall
specifically so provide. Such committee or committees shall have
such name or names as may be determined from time to time by
resolution adopted by the Board of Managers. Committees
established by resolution of the Board of Managers shall keep
regular minutes of their proceedings and shall report the same to
the Board as required.

Section 2.5 Certain Limitations on The Powers of the
Condominium Board of Managers. (a) Notwithstanding anything to
the contrary contained in these By-Laws, as long as Sponsor or
its designee, or both, continues to own collectively at least
twenty-five (25%) percent of the Units during the three (3) years
following the First Unit Closing, the Board of Managers may not,
without the Sponsor’s or such designee’s prior written consent,
do any of the following:

(i) make any addition, alteration or improvement to the
Common Elements or to any Unit, unless required by Law or
necessary for the health or safety of the residents of the
Building: .

(ii) assess any Common Charges for the creation or
replacement of, or the addition to, all or any part of a reserve,
contingency or surplus fund in excess of five (5%) percent in the
aggregate of the estimated Common Expenses for any one (1) fiscal
year of operation, provided the same does not violate the Law.

(iii) increase the number or change the type of employees
from that described in "Schedule B - Income and Expenses for
First Year of Condominium Operation" set forth in the Plan;

(iv) enter into any service or maintenance contracts for
work not covered in the schedule referred to in subparagraph
(iii) hereinabove; or

(v) borrow money on behalf of the Condominium.

Sponsor’s written consent is not necessary to perform any
function or take any action described in items (i) through (v)
above if, and only if, the performance of such function or the
carrying out of such an action is necessary to enable the Board
of Managers to comply with Law and no other alternative is
available.
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(b) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained
in these By-Laws, the Board of Managers will not take any of the
actions set forth below as items (i) through (iii) unless all
members thereof so approve in writing or by vote at a duly
constituted meeting called for such purpose. However, in no
event will any member selected by Sponsor or its designee as of
right under these By-Laws be permitted to vote against any of the
following actions subsequent to three (3) years after the First
Unit Closing;

(i) to increase the number or change the type of
employees from those hired at the time of recording the Declara-
tion;

(ii) to provide for new or additional services, apart
from those being provided at the time of recording the Decla-
ration;

(iii) to impose any Common Charge for the purpose of
making any capital or major improvement, alteration or addition
to the Common Elements or to any Unit, unless required by Law or
' necessary for the health or safety of residents of the Buildings
(provided, however, that nothing contained herein will restrict
the rights and obligation of the Board of Managers to maintain
and repair the Common Elements); or

(c) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained
in these By-Laws, Sponsor or any of its designees shall not be
obligated to pay any transfer fee or service fee to the

Condominium or the Managing Agent with respect to its lease, in
whole or part, or sale of any Unsold Unit.

, Section 2.6 Repairs and Maintenance. All maintenance,
repairs and replacement to the Common Elements of the Property
including but not limited to exterior walls, courtyard floors and
fences, roof and roof members as well as all maintenance, repairs
" and replacements to pipes, wires, conduits and public utility
lines, any portion of which is located in one Unit and services
another Unit or more than one Unit or so much of any pipes,
wires, conduits, cable television, and public utility lines as
are located in the Common Elements but serve one or more Units
shall be made by the Board of Managers and the cost thereof shall
be a Common Expense. All maintenance (including painting and
decorating of the Units), repairs and replacements to the Units
including windows, doors (except painting of the exterior surface
of windows and doors which open from a Unit which painting is
performed by the Board of Managers), stairs and storage rooms
(except exterior walls, windows and doors of storage rooms which
are maintained by the Board of Managers) abutting a Unit or
limited to the use of a particular Unit Owner and repairs to
pipes, wires and conduits located in and servicing the same Unit,
other than as set forth above, shall be made by the respective
Unit Owners at their own expense.
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; All irrevocably restricted Common Elements shall be
maintained and repaired by the Unit Owners to whom such Common
Element is restricted in use, except for structural repairs and
painting to porches and terraces. However, the Board of Managers
shall repair and replace any pipes, wires, conduits and public
utility lines located underground or overhead of any irrevocably
restricted Common Element except where such repair or replacement
is necessitated because of the negligence or misuse or neglect of
the Unit Owner to which the Common Element is restricted in use,
in which event such Unit Owner shall make such repairs or
replacements at his own expense. The Board of Managers shall
repair all plumbing stoppages and electrical repairs occurring in
the Common Elements. The Board of Managers shall have a right of
access to any Unit and to all portions of the Common Elements for
the purpose of carrying out any of its obligations under these
By-Laws or the Declaration of the Condominium. The Board of
Managers will provide or make arrangements for snow removal from
the sidewalks and driveways on the property.

Section 2.7 Compensation. Managers and officers, as
such, shall receive no compensation for their services.

Section 2.8 Meetings.

a. The first meeting of each Board newly elected by
the Unit Owners shall be held immediately upon adjournment of the
meeting at which they were elected, provided a quorum shall then
be present, or as soon thereafter as may be practicable. The
annual meeting of the Board of Managers shall be held at the same
place as the Unit Owner’s meetings, and immediately after the
adjournment of same, at which time, dates, places and times of
regularly scheduled meetings of the Board shall be set.

b. Regularly scheduled meetings of the Board may be
held without special notice.

c. Special meetings of the Board may be called by the
President on two (2) days notice to each Manager either
personally or by mail or telegram. Special meetings shall be
called by the President or Secretary in a like manner and on like
notice on the written request of at least three (3) managers.

d. At all meetings of the Board, a majority of the
Managers shall be necessary and sufficient to constitute a quorum
for the transaction of business, and an act of the majority of
the Managers present at any meeting at which there is a quorum
shall be the act of the Board of Managers, except as may be
otherwise specifically provided by statute or by the Declaration
or by these By-Laws. If a quorum shall not be present at any
meeting of Managers, the Managers present thereat may adjourn the
meeting from time to time, without notice other than announcement
at the meeting, until a quorum shall be present.
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e. Before or at any meeting of the Board of Managers,
any Manager may, in writing, waive notice of such meeting and
such waiver shall be deemed equivalent to the giving of such
notice. Attendance by a Manager at any meeting of the Board
shall be a waiver of notice by him of the time and place
thereof. If all the Managers are present at any meeting of the
Board, no notice shall be required and any business may be
transacted at such meeting.

Section 2.9 Annual Statement. The Board of Managers
shall furnish to all Unit Owners, their mortgagees and the
Department of Law of the State of New York and shall present
annually and, when called for by a vote of the Unit Owners, at
any special meeting of the Unit Owners, a full and clear state-
ment of the business conditions and affairs of the Condominium,
including a balance sheet, a profit and loss statement verified
by an independent public accountant, a statement regarding any
taxable income attributable to the Unit Owner and a notice of the
holding of the annual Unit Owners meeting.

Section 2.10 Fidelity Bonds. The Board of Managers
shall require that all officers and employees of the Condominium
handling or responsible for Condominium funds shall furnish
adequate fidelity bonds. The premiums on such bonds shall be a
Common Expense.

Section 2.11 Liability of the Board of Managers ahd
Unit Owners.

Any contract, agreement or commitment made by the Board
of Managers shall state that it is made by the Board of Managers
as agent for the Unit Owners as a group only and that no member
of the Board of Managers nor individual Unit Owner shall be
liable for such contract, agreement or commitment. The Unit
Owners shall be liable as a group under such contract, agreement
or commitment, but the liability o each Unit Owner shall be
limited to such portion of the total liability thereunder as his
Common Interest bears to the Common Interest of all Unit Owners.
The Board of Managers shall have no liability to the Unit Owner
in the management of the Condominium except for willful
misconduct or bad faith and the Unit Owner shall severally
indemnify all members of the Board of Managers against any
liabilities or claims arising from acts taken by a member of the
Board of Managers in accordance with his duties as such member
except acts of willful misconduct or acts made in bad faith.

Such several liability of the Unit Owners shall, however, be
limited to such proportion of the total liability thereunder a
such Unit Owner’s Common Interest bears to the Common Interest of
all Unit Owners.
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ARTICLE III

VOTING, QUORUM, PROXIES AND WAIVERS

Section 3.1 Voting. The Owner or Owners of each Unit
(including the Sponsor and the Board of Managers, if the Sponsor
or Board of Managers shall then hold title to one or more Units)
or some person designated by such Owner or Owners to act as proxy
on his or their behalf and who need not be an Owner, shall be
entitled to cast the votes appurtenant to such Unit at all
meetings of Unit Owners. The designation of any such proxy shall
be made in writing to the Secretary, and shall be revocable at
any time by written notice to the Secretary by the Owner or
owners so designating. Any or all of such Owners may be present
at any meeting of the Unit Owners and (those constituting a group
acting unanimously) may vote or take any other action as a Unit
Oowner either in person or by proxy. In the event of co-ownership
of a Unit, each Co-Owner shall be entitled to a fractional vote
to be determined by the number of Co-Owners divided into one.

The Board of Managers as an Owner of a Unit or Units, shall not
cast any of its votes for the election of any member to the
Board.

Section 3.2 Quorum. So many Unit Owners as shall
represent at least 51% of the total authorized votes of all Unit
owners present in person or represented by written proxy shall be
' requisite to and shall constitute a quorum at all meetings ‘*of the
Unit Owners for the transaction of business, except as otherwise
provided by Statute, by the Declaration, or by these By-Laws. If
however, such quorum shall not be present or represented at any
meeting of the Unit Owners, the Unit Owners entitled to vote
thereat, present in person or represented by written proxy, shall
have power to adjourn the meeting from time to time, without
notice other than announcement at the meeting, until a quorum
shall be present or represented. At such adjourned meeting at
which a quorum shall be present or represented, any business may
be transacted which might have been transacted at the meeting
originally called.

Section 3.3 Vote Required to Transact Business. When
a quorum is present at any meeting, the vote of a majority of the

Unit Owners present in person or represented by written proxy
shall decide any question brought before such meeting and such
vote shall be binding upon all Unit Owners, unless the question
is one which, by express provision of the Declaration, Statute,
or of these By-Laws, a different vote is required, in which case
such express provision shall govern and control the decision in
question.

Section 3.4 Right to Vote. At any meeting of Unit
Owners, every Unit Owner having the right to vote shall be
entitled to vote in person, or by proxy. Such proxy shall only
be valid for such meeting or subsequent adjourned meetings
thereof.
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Section 3.5 Proxies. All proxies shall be in writing
and shall be filed with the Secretary prior to the meeting at
which the same are to be used. The proxy shall be revocable at
any time by written notice to the Secretary by the owner(s). A
notation of such proxies shall be made in the minutes of the
meeting.

Section 3.6 Waiver and Consent. Whenever the vote of
the Unit Owners is required or permitted at a meeting by any
provision of the Declaration, Statutes or of these By-Laws to be
taken in connection with any action of the Condominium, the
meeting and vote of Unit Owners may be dispensed with if all Unit
owners who would have been entitled to vote upon the action if
such meeting were held, shall consent in writing to such action
being taken.

Section 3.7 Place of Meeting. Meetings shall be held
at such suitable place convenient to the Unit Owners as may be
designated by the Board of Managers.

Section 3.8 Annual Meetings. Within ninety (90) days
from the closing of the initial 35% or more of the Units or the
second anniversary of the conveyance of title to the first Unit
or conveyance of title to 50% of the Units, whichever first
occurs, or such earlier time as Sponsor deems to be in the best
interests of the parties, the Sponsor shall call the first apnual
Unit Owner’s meeting.. At such meeting the Board of Managers
shall resign and a new Board shall be elected by the Unit
owners. - Thereafter, annual meetings shall be held on. or about
the anniversary of such date each succeeding year. At such
meetings there shall be elected by ballot of the Unit Owners a
Board of Managers in accordance with the requirements of Article
II of these By-Laws. The Unit Owners may also transact such
other business of the Condominium as may properly come before
them.

Section 3.9 Special Meetings. It shall be the duty of
the President to call a special meeting of the Unit Owners as
directed by the Board of Managers or upon a petition signed by
25% of the Unit Owners and having been presented to the
Secretary.

Section 3.10 Notice of Meetings. It shall be the duty
of the Secretary to mail a notice of each annual or special
meeting, stating the purpose thereof as well as the time and
place where it is to be held, to each Unit Owner of record, at
least ten (10) but not more than thirty (30) days prior to such
meeting. The mailing of a notice in the manner provided in these
By-Laws shall be considered notice service.

Section 3.11 Order of Business. The order of business
at all meetings shall be as follows;

(a) Roll call

- 157 -



(b) Proof of notice of meeting or waiver of notice

(c) Reading of minutes of preceding meeting or waiver
thereof

(d) Report of officers and/or Board of Managers

(e) Report of committees

(f) Election of inspectors of election (in the event
there is an election)

(g) Election of managers (in the event there is an
election)

(h) Unfinished business

(i) New business

ARTICLE IV
OFFICERS

Section 4.1 Elective Officers. The officers of the
Condominium shall be chosen by the Board of Managers and shall be
a president, a vice president, a secretary and a treasurer. The
Board of Managers may also choose one or more assistant secre-
taries and assistant treasurers and such other officers as in
their own judgment may be necessary. All officers must be Unit
Owners. Two or more offices may not be held by the same person.

Section 4.2 Election. The Board of Managers at its
first meeting after each annual Unit Owners’ meeting shall elect
a president, a secretary and a treasurer. Only the pre51dent and
secretary must be members of the Board.

Section 4.3 Appointive Offices. The Board of Managers
may appoint such other officers and agents as it shall deem
necessary, who shall hold their offices for such terms and shall
exercise such powers and perform such duties as shall be deter-
mined from time to time by the Board of Managers.

Section 4.4 Term. The officers shall hold office
until their successors are chosen and qualify in their stead.
Any officer elected or appointed by the Board of Managers may be
removed, with or without cause, at any time, by the affirmative
vote of a majority of the whole Board of Managers. If the office
of any officer becomes vacant for any reason, the vacancy shall
be filled by the Board of Managers.

Section 4.5 The President. The President shall be the
chief executive officer of the Condominium; he shall preside at
all meetings of the Unit Owners and Managers, shall be an
ex-officio member of all standing committees, shall have general
and active management of the business of the Condominium, and
shall see that all orders and resolutions of the Board are
carried into effect.

Section 4.6 The Vice-President. The Vice-President
shall take the place of the President and perform his duties
whenever the President shall be absent or unable to act.
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Section 4.7 The Secretary. The Secretary and/or
Assistant Secretary shall attend all sessions of the Board and
all Unit Owners’ meetings and record all votes and the minutes of
all proceedings in a book to be kept for that purpose and shall
perform like duties for the standing committees when required.
He shall give, or cause to be given, notice of all Unit Owners’
meetings and special meetings of the Board of Managers, and shall
perform such other duties as may be prescribed by the Board of
Managers or by the President, under whose supervision he shall
be.

Section 4.8 The Treasurer. The Treasurer shall have
the custody of the Condominium funds and shall keep full and
accurate chronological accounts of receipts and disbursements in
books belonging to the Condominium including the vouchers for
such disbursements, and shall deposit all monies and other
valuable effects in the name and to the credit of the Condominium
in such depositories as may be designated by the Board of
Managers.

He shall disburse the funds of the Condominium as he
may be ordered by the Board of Managers, making proper vouchers
for such disbursements, and shall render to the President and
Managers, at the regular meeting of the Board or whenever they
may require it, an account of all his transactions as Treasurer

and of the financial condition of the Condominium.

He shall keep detailed financial records and books of
account of the Condominium, including a separate account for each
condominium Unit which, among other things, shall contain the
amount of each assessment of Common Charges against such Unit,
the date when due, the amounts paid thereon and the balance
remaining unpaid.

‘Section 4.9 Agreements, etc. All agreements, con-
tracts, deeds, leases, checks and other instruments of the
Condominium shall be executed by such other person or persons as
may be designated by the Board of Managers.

ARTICLE V

NOTICES

Section 5.1 Definitions. Whenever under the provi-
sions of the Declaration or of these By-Laws, notice is required
to be given to the Board of Managers, any Manager or Unit Owner,
it shall not be construed to mean personal notice; but such
notice may be given in writing, by mail, by depositing the same
in a post office or letter box in a postpaid sealed wrapper,
addressed to the Board of Managers, such Manager or Unit Owner at
such address as appears on the books of the Condominium.
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Section 5.2 Service of Notice - Waiver. Whenever any
notice is required to be given under the provisions of the Decla-
ration, or of these By-Laws, a waiver thereof, in writing, signed
by the person or persons entitled to such notice, whether before
or after the time stated therein, shall be deemed the equivalent
thereof.

ARTICLE VI
FINANCES

Section 6.1 Checks. All checks or demands for money
and notes of the Condominium shall be signed by the President and
Treasurer, or by such other officer or officers or such other
person or persons as the Board of Managers may from time to time
designate. i

Section 6.2 Assessments. The Board of Managers shall,
from time to time, but at least annually, fix and determine the
budget representing the sum or sums necessary and adequate for the
continued operation of the Condominium and shall send a copy of
the budget and any supplement to the budget to every Unit Owner
and mortgagee. They shall determine the total amount required,
including the operational items such as insurance, repairs,
reserves, betterments, maintenance of the Common Elements and
other operating expenses as well as charges to cover any deficits
from prior years. The total annual requirements shall be assessed
as a single sum against all Condominium Units and prorated against
each of said Units according to the respective Common. Interests
appurtenant to such Units. This proration of assessments shall
remain constant regardless of the percentage of the building
square footage included in each Unit or the Common Elements
restricted to the use of the Unit Owner of said Condominium Unit.
Said assessments shall be payable in advance as ordered by the
Board of Managers.

Special assessments, should such be required, shall be
levied and paid in the same manner as hereinabove provided for
regular assessments. The Common Expenses or special assessments
may also include such amounts as may be required for the purchase
or lease by the Board of Managers or its designee, corporate or !
otherwise, on behalf of all Unit Owners, of any Unit whose owner
has elected to sell or lease such Unit or of any Unit which is to
be sold at a foreclosure or other judicial sale. The Unit Owner
agrees to pay promptly when due monthly any and all special
assessments assessed against his own Unit. Any Unit Owner wo
failes to pay the monthly assessment imposed by the Condominium to'
meet any Common Expense shall be liable for any expenses incurred
by the Condominium in collecting such monthly assessment including
such late charges as may be assessed by the Board of Managers from
time to time and reasonable attorneys’ fees. The Board shall take
action to collect any Common Charges due from any Unit Owner which
remains unpaid thirty (30) days from its due date by way of %
foreclosure of the lien on such Unit in accordance with Section
339 of the Real Property Law or otherwise.
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No Unit Owner shall be liable for any Common Charges
which accrue against his Unit subsequent to a sale, transfer or
other conveyance by him of his Unit in accordance with these
By-Laws and the Declaration. A purchaser of a Unit (other than a
mortgagee or a purchaser at a foreclosure sale) shall be liable
for the payment of all Common Charges assessed against the Unit
and unpaid at the time of the purchase.

Section 6.3 Foreclosure of Liens for Unpaid Common
Charges. The Board shall have the power to purchase any Unit at

a foreclosure sale resulting from any action brought by the Board
to foreclose a lien on the Unit because of unpaid Common

Charges. In the event of such purchase, the Board shall have the
power to hold, lease, mortgage, vote, sell or otherwise deal with
the Unit. A suit to recover a money judgment for unpaid Common
Charges shall also be obtainable separately without waiving the
lien on the Unit.

Section 6.4 Statement of Common Charges. Upon the
written request of any Unit Owner or his mortgagee, the Board of
Managers shall promptly furnish such Unit oOowner or his mortgagee
with a written statement of the unpaid Common Charges due from
such Unit Owner.

Section 6.5 Liability for Water, Electricity and
Refuse Removal. Refuse removal and all water consumed in the
Units and on the Common Elements shall be a Common Expense, as
shall all electricity consumed on the Common Elements. Electri-
city consumed in each Unit shall be paid for by the individual
Unit Owners.

Section 6.6 Operating Account. There shall be
established and maintained a cash deposit account to be known as
the "Operating Account", into which shall be deposited the
operating portion of all monthly and special assessments as fixed
and determined for all Units. Disbursements from said account
shall be for the general needs of the operation including, but
not limited to, wages, repairs, betterments, maintenance and
other operating expenses of the Common Elements and for the
purchase, lease, sale or other expenses resulting from the
purchase or lease of Units.

Section 6.7 Other Accounts. The Board shall maintain
any other accounts it shall deem necessary to carry out its
purposes including, but not limited to, an account for a reserve
for capital improvements or replacements.

ARTICLE VII

INSURANCE_AND INSURANCE TRUSTEE

Section 7.1 Insurance to be carried by the Board. The
Board of Managers shall be required to obtain and maintain, to
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the extent obtainable, the following insurance: Fire insurance
with extended coverage, water damage, vandalism and malicious
mischief endorsements, insuring the Building including all of the
Units, and the bathrooms and fixtures initially installed therein
by the Sponsor (but not including furniture, furnishings or other
personal property supplied or installed by Unit Owners), together
with all air-conditioning and other service machinery contained
therein, covering the interests of the Condominium, the Board of
Managers and all Unit Owners and their mortgagees, as such
interests may appear, in an amount equal to the full replacement
value of the Buildings. Each of such policies shall contain a
New York standard mortgagee clause in favor of each mortgagee of
a Unit which shall provide that the loss, if any, thereunder
shall be payable to such mortgagee as its interest may appear,
subject, however, to the loss payment provisions in favor of the
Board of Managers and the Insurance Trustee hereinafter set
forth, and such other insurance as the Board of Managers may
determine.

All such policies shall provide that adjustment of loss
shall be made by the Board of Managers (with the approval of the
Insurance Trustee, if any, and that the net proceeds thereof,
$100,000.00 or more, shall be payable to the Insurance Trustee).
The Board of Managers shall also obtain and maintain workmen’s
compensation insurance and disability insurance for any employees
of the Condominium, and other such insurance as the Board of
Managers deems necessary. :

The fire insurance will commence with the closing of
title to the first Unit in an amount as required by the mortgagee
of such Units and such amount will be increased upon the closing
of title to all Units and until the first meeting of the Board of
Managers following the first annual Unit Owners’ meeting, such
amount shall be at least in the sum of $1,000,000.00.

All policies of physical damage insurance shall contain
waivers of subrogation and of any reduction of pro rata liability
of the insurer as a result of any insurance carried by Unit
Oowners or of the invalidity arising from any acts of the insured
or any Unit Owners, and shall provide that such policies may not
be cancelled or substantially modified without at least ten (10)
days’ prior written notice to all of the insureds, including all
mortgagees of Units. Duplicate originals of all policies of
physical damage insurance and of all renewals thereof, together
with proof of payment of premiums, shall be delivered to all
mortgagees of Units at least ten (10) days prior to expiration of
then current policies. :

Prior to obtaining any policy of fire insurance or any
renewal thereof, the Board of Managers shall obtain an appraisal
from a fire insurance company or otherwise of the full
replacement value of the Buildings, including all of the Common
Elements appurtenant thereto for the purpose of determining the
amount of fire insurance to be effected pursuant to this Section.
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The Board of Managers shall also be required to obtain
and maintain, to the extent obtainable, public liability
insurance in such limits as the Board of Managers may from time
to time determine, covering each member of the Board of Managers,
the Managing Agent and each Unit Owner. Such public liability
coverage shall also cover cross liability claims of one insured
against another. Until the first meeting of the Board of
Managers following the first annual Unit Owners’ meeting, such
public liability insurance shall be in a single limit of
$1,000,000 covering all claims for bodily injury or property
damage arising out of one occurrence. Such public liability
insurance shall commence on the closing of title to the first
Unit.

Unit Owners shall not be prohibited from carrying other
insurance for their own benefit provided that such policies
contain waivers of subrogation and further provided that the
liability of the carriers issuing insurance procured by the Board
of Managers shall not be affected or diminished by reason of any
such additional insurance carried by any Unit Owner.

_ Section 7.2 The Insurance Trustee. The Insurance
Trustee shall be a bank or trust company located in the State of
New York, designated by the Board of Managers. All fees and
disbursements of the Insurance Trustee shall be paid by the Board
of Managers and shall constitute a Common Expense of the
Condominium. In the event an Insurance Trustee resigns or fails
to qualify, the Board of Managers shall designate a new Insurance
Trustee which shall likewise be a bank or trust company located
in the State of New York.

Section 7.3 Restoration or Reconstruction After Fire
or Other Casualty. In the event of damage to or destruction of
the Buildings as a result of fire or other casualty (unless 75%
or more of the Unit Owners do not duly and promptly resolve to
proceed with repair or restoration), the Board of Managers shall
arrange for the prompt repair and restoration of the Buildings
(including any damaged Units, and any kitchen or bathroom
fixtures initially installed therein by the Sponsor, but not
including any wall, ceiling, or door decorations or coverings or
other furniture, furnishings, fixtures or equipment installed by
Unit Owners in the Units), and the Board of Managers (or the
Insurance Trustee, as the case may be), shall disburse the
proceeds of all insurance policies to the contractors engaged in
such repair and restoration in appropriate progress payments.
Any cost of such repair and restoration in excess of the
insurance proceeds shall constitute a Common Expense and the
Board of Managers may assess all the Unit Owners for such deficit
as part of the Common Charges.

If seventy-five (75%) percent or more of the Buildings
are destroyed or substantially damaged and seventy-five (75%)
percent or more of the Unit Owners do not duly and promptly
resolve to proceed with repair or restoration, the Property shall
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be subject to an action for partition at the suit of any Unit
owner or lienor, as if owned in common, in which event the net
proceeds of sale, together with the net proceeds of insurance
policies (or if there shall have been a repair or restoration
pursuant to the first paragraph of this Section 7.3, and the
amount of insurance proceeds shall have exceeded the cost of such
repair or restoration, then the excess of such insurance
proceeds) shall be divided by the Board of Managers or the
Insurance Trustee, as the case may be, among all the Unit Owners
in proportion to their respective Common Interests, after first
paying out of the share of each Unit Owner the amount of any
unpaid liens on his Unit, in the order of the priority of such
liens.

ARTICLE VIII
HOUSE RULES

Section 8.1 1In addition to the other provisions of
these By-Laws, the following house rules and regulations together
with such additional rules and requlations ad may hereafter be
adopted by the Board of Managers shall govern the use of the
Units and the conduct of all residents thereof.

Section 8.2 All Units shall be used for single-family
residence purposes (or for such professional purposes as per-
mitted by the rules of the local municipality).

Section 8.3 Owners of Units shall not use or permit
the use of the premises in any manner which would be disturbing
or a nuisance to other said owners, or in such a way as to be
injurious to the reputation of the Condominium.

Section 8.4 The Common Elements shall not be obstruc-
ted, littered, defaced or misused in any manner.

Section 8.5 Every Unit Owner shall be liable for any
and all damage to the Common Elements and the property of the
Condominium which shall be caused by said Unit Owner or such
. other person for whose conduct he is legally responsible.

Section 8.6 (a) Every Unit Owner must perform
promptly all maintenance and repair work to his own Unit, which,
if omitted, would affect the Condominium in its entirety or in a
part belonging to other Unit Owners, he being expressly respon-
sible for the damages and liabilities that his failure to do so
may engender. In the event that a Unit Owner does not effectuate
such repair after thirty (30) days’ written notice by the Board
of Managers, the Board of Managers can cause the repairs to be
performed and assess the Unit Owner for the cost thereof, which
assessment shall become a lien on the Unit and may be foreclosed
in a like manner to Common Charge foreclosures.
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(b) All the repairs to internal installations of the
Unit located in and servicing only that Unit, such as gas, power,
telephones and sanitary installations (except plumbing stoppage
and electrical defects) shall be at the Unit owner’s expense.

Section 8.7 Whenever in the judgment of the Board of
Managers the Common Elements shall require additions, alterations
or improvements costing in excess of $25,000.00, and the making
of such additions, alterations or improvements shall have been
approved by a majority of the Unit Owners and by each holder of
the mortgages constituting first liens on 25 or more Units, the
Board of Managers shall proceed with such additions, alterations
or improvements and shall assess all Unit Owners for the cost
thereof as a Common Charge. Any additions, alterations or
improvements costing $25,000.00 or less may be made by the Board
of Managers without approval of the Unit Owners and the cost
thereof shall constitute part of the Common Expenses.

Section 8.8 No Unit Owner shall make any structural
addition, alteration or improvement in or to his Unit without the
prior written consent thereto of the Board of Managers. The
Board of Managers shall have the obligation to answer any written
request by a Unit Owner for approval of a proposed structural
addition, alteration or improvement in such Unit oOwner’s Unit,
within thirty (30) days after such request. A failure to respond
within thirty (30) days shall be deemed a denial. Any
application to any governmental authority for a permit to make an
addition, alteration or improvement in or to any Unit shall be
executed by the Board of Managers only, without, however,
incurring any liability on the part of the Board of Managers or
any of them to any contractor, subcontractor or materialman on
account of such addition, alteration or improvement, or to any
person having any claim for injury to person or damage to
property arising therefrom. The provisions of this Section 8.8
shall not apply to Units owned by the Sponsor until such Units
shall have been initially sold and paid for.

Section 8.9 (a) No resident of the Condominium shall
post any advertisement or posters of any kind (except a sign no
longer than 1 foot by 2 feet containing the name of a profes-
sional tenant or Unit Owner, the designation of his profession
and the word "office" and located in the Unit or the Common
Elements restricted to the use of the Unit Owner) in or on the
Condominium except as authorized by the Board of Managers.

(b) It is prohibited to hang garments, rugs, etc.,
from the windows or from any of the Buildings or to string
clothes lines and any other outdoor clothes dryers on or over the
Common Elements (including the irrevocable restricted areas, if

any) .

(c) No fence shall be erected in the Condominium
without the prior written consent of the Board of Managers.
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(d) No television antennae shall be erected on the
exterior of Units or the Common Elements without the prior
written consent of the Board of Managers.

(e) No Unit Owner shall move, remove, add or otherwise
change the landscaping in the Condominium.

(f) No Unit Owner shall paint the exterior surfaces of
the windows and doors opening out of his Unit.

(g) No person shall park a vehicle or otherwise
obstruct any resident’s use of or ingress or egress to any
parking space.

(h) No person shall be permitted to use the recrea-
tional facilities except in accordance with the rules and
regulations established by the Board of Managers.

ARTICLE IX
DEFAULT

In the event a Unit Owner does not pay any sums,
charges or assessments required to be paid when due, the Board of
Managers or Manager, acting on behalf of the Board, shall notify
the Unit Owner and the mortgagee, if any, of such Unlt. If such
sum, charge or assessment shall remain unpaid for thirty (30)
days after the giving of such notice, the Board may foreclose the
lien encumberlng the Unit as a result of the non-payment of the
required monies as set forth in the Declaration (subject to the
lien of any first mortgage), in the same manner as the fore-
closure of a mortgage. In the event the owner of a Unit does not
pay the assessment required to be paid by him within thirty (30)
days of its due date, said Unit Owner shall be liable for such
late charge as may be imposed by the Board of Managers from time
to time, the Condominium’s reasonable costs and expenses and
reasonable attorney’s fees incurred by it incidental to the
collection or endorsement of such lien.

Each Unit Owner, for himself, his heirs, successors and
assigns, agrees to the foregoing provisions relating to default,
regardless of the availability of other equally adequate legal
procedures. It is the intent of all Unit Owners to give the
Condominium a method and procedure which will enable it at .all
times to operate on a businesslike basis, to collect those monies
due and owing it from the Unit Owners and to preserve each Unit
owner’s right to enjoy his Unit free from unreasonable restraint.

ARTICLE X

AMENDMENTS

These By-Laws may be altered, amended or added to at
any duly-called Unit Owners’ meeting, provided: (1) that the
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notice of the meeting shall contain a full statement of the
proposed amendment; (2) that the amendment shall be approved by
two-thirds of the Unit Owners in number and Common Interest; and
(3) that said amendment shall be set forth in a duly-recorded
amendment to the Declaration. However, no amendment will affect
or impair the validity or priority of the Unit Owner’s interests
and the interests of holders of a mortgage encumbering a Unit or
Units.

ARTICLE XI

SALES, LEASES, AND MORTGAGES OF UNITS

Section 11.1 Sales and Leases. No Unit Owner other
than the Sponsor may sell or lease his Unit or any interest
therein except by complying with the following provisions:

Any Unit Owner who receives a bona fide offer for the
sale of his Unit together with: (i) the undivided interest of
the Common Elements, general and limited, appurtenant thereto;
(ii) the interest of such Unit Owner in any Units theretofore
acquired by the Board of Managers, or its designee, on behalf of
all Unit Owners, or the proceeds of the sale or lease thereof, if
any; (iii) the membership of such Unit Owner in the Association
and the rights and privileges appurtenant thereto: and (iv) the
interest of such Unit Owner in any other assets of the
Condominium; (hereinafter collectively called the "Appurtenant
Interests"), or a bona fide offer for a lease of his Unit,
(hereinafter called an "Outside Offer"), which he intends to
accept, shall give notice by certified or registered mail to the
Board of Managers of such offer and of such intention, the name
and address of the proposed purchaser or lessee, the terms of the
proposed transaction and such other information as the Board of
Managers may reasonably require, and shall offer to sell such
Unit, together with the Appurtenant Interests, or to lease such
Unit, to the Board of Managers, or its designee, corporate or
otherwise, on behalf of the owners of all other Units, on the
same terms and conditions as contained in such Outside Offer.

The giving of such notice shall constitute a warranty and
representation by the Unit Owner who has received such offer, to
the Board of Managers on behalf of the other Unit Owners, that
such Unit Owner believes the Outside Offer to be bona fide in all
respects. Within twenty (20) days after receipt of such notice,
the Board of Managers may elect, by notice to such Unit Owner, by
cettified or registered mail, to purchase such Unit, together
with the Appurtenant Interests, or to lease such Unit, as the
case may be (or to cause the same to be purchased or leased by
its designee, corporate or otherwise), on behalf of all other
Unit Owners, on the same terms and conditions as contained in the
outside Offer and as stated in the notice from the offering Unit
owner. In the event the Board of Managers shall elect to
purchase such Unit, together with the Appurtenant Interests, or
to lease such Unit, or to cause the same to be purchased or
leased by its designee, corporate or otherwise, title shall close
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or lease executed at the office of the attorneys for the
Condeminium in accordance with the terms of such offer but in no
event less than forty-five (45) days after the giving of notice
by the Board of Managers of its election to accept such offer.
If the selling Unit Owner’s existing mortgage is not satisfied,
the Board of Managers will purchase the Unit and assume or take
subject to said existing mortgage.

The Sponsor may sell or lease any Unit not previously
sold to a bona fide purchaser on such terms and conditions as
Sponsor deems fit.

Section 11.2 Consent of Unit Owners to Purchase or
Lease of Units by Board of Managers. The Board of Managers shall
not exercise any option hereinabove set forth to purchase or
lease any Unit without the prior approval of a majority of the
Unit Owners.

Section 11.3 No Severance of Ownership. No Unit Owner
shall execute any deed, mortgage or other instrument conveying or
mortgaging title to his Unit without including therein the
Appurtenant Interests, it being the intention hereof to prevent
any severance of such combined ownership. Any such deed, mort-
gage, or other instrument purporting to affect one or more of
such interests, without including all such interests, shall be
deemed and taken to include the interest or interests so omitted,
even though the latter shall not be expressly mentioned or
described therein. No part of the Appurtenant Interests of any
Unit may be sold, transferred or otherwise disposed of, except as
part of a sale, transfer or other disposition of the Unit to
which such interest or interests are appurtenant, or as part of a
sale, transfer or other disposition of such part of the Appurte-
nant Interests of all Units.

Section 11.4 Release by Board of Managers of Right of
First Refusal. The right of first refusal contained in Section

11.1 of this Article XI may be released or waived by the Board of
Managers, in which event the Unit, together with the Appurtenant
Interests, may be sold, conveyed or leased, free and clear of the
provisions of such section.

Section 11.5 Certificate of Termination of Right of

First Refusal. A certificate, executed and acknowledged by the
Secretary of the Condominium, stating that the provisions of
Section 11.1 of this Article XI have been met by a Unit Owner, or
have been duly waived by the Board of Managers, and the rights of
the Board of Managers thereunder have terminated, shall be
conclusive upon the Board of Managers and the Unit Owners in
favor of all persons who rely thereon in good faith. Such
certificates shall be furnished to any Unit Owner who has in fact
complied with the provisions of Section 11.1 of this Article XI
or in respect to whom the provisions of such section have been
waived, upon request, at a reasonable fee, not to exceed Ten
($10) Dollars.
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Section 11.6 Financing of Purchase Price of Units by
Board of Managers. Acquisition of Units by the Board of
Managers, or its designee, on behalf of all Unit Owners, may be
made from the working capital and Common Charges in the hands of
the Board of Managers, or if such funds are insufficient, the
Board of Managers may levy an assessment against each Unit Owner
in proportion to his ownership in the Common Elements, as a
Common Charge, which assessment shall be enforceable in the same
manner as provided in Section 6.2 and 6.3 of Article VI, or the
Board of Managers, in its discretion, may borrow money to finance
the acquisition of such Unit, provided, however, that no
financing may be secured by an encumbrance or hypothecation of
any property other than the Unit, together with the Appurtenant
Interests, so to be acquired by the Board of Managers, provided,
however, that no assessment may be levied under this Section 11.6
against any mortgagee who has acquired title to a Unit, whether
by foreclosure or deed in lieu thereof.

Section 11.7 Exceptions. The provisions of Section
11.1 of this Article XI shall not apply with respect to any sale
or conveyance or lease by a Unit Owner of his Unit, together with
the Appurtenant Interests, to his spouse or to any of his
children or to his parent or parents or to his brothers or
sisters, or any one or more of them, or to a Unit owned by the
Sponsor, or to the acquisition or sale of a Unit, together with
the Appurtenant Interests, by a mortgagee herein authorized who
shall acquire title to such Unit by foreclosure or by deed in
lieu of foreclosure. However, the provisions of this section
shall apply with respect to any purchaser of such Unit from such
mortgagee.

Section 11.8 Gifts and Devises, etc. Any Unit Owner
shall be free to convey or transfer his Unit by gift or to devise
his Unit by will, or to pass the same by intestacy, without

restriction.

Section 11.9 Waiver of Right to Partition. 1In the
event that a Unit shall be acquired by the Board of Managers, or

its designee, on behalf of all Unit Owners as tenants in common,
all such Unit Owners shall be deemed to have waived all rights of
partition with respect to such Unit.

Section 11.10 Payment of Assessments. No Unit Owner
shall be permitted to convey, mortgage, pledge, hypothecate, sell
or lease his Unit unless and until he shall have paid in full to
the Board of Managers all unpaid Common Charges theretofore
assessed by the Board of Managers against his Unit and until he
shall have satisfied all unpaid liens against such Unit, except
permitted mortgages. :

Section 11.11 Mortgage of Units. No Unit Owner shall
mortgage his Unit except by a first mortgage made to a bank,
trust company, insurance company, federal savings and loan
association, pension fund or other institutional lender or a
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purchase money mortgage made to the seller of the Unit. Any such
mortgage shall be in such form as may be required in order to
permit the particular institutional lender to make the mortgage
loan, or to the extent permitted by the Board of Managers.

ARTICLE XII
CONDEMNATION

In the event all or part of the Common Elements are
taken in condemnation or eminent domain proceedings, the award
from such proceedings shall be paid to the Insurance Trustee (if
the award is more than $500,000) and to the Board of Managers (if
the award is $500,000 or less), to be distributed in accordance
with the following amounts:

(a) so much of the award as is applicable to unres-
tricted Common Elements, to the Unit Owners pro rata according to
the respective Common Interests appurtenant to the Units owned by
such Unit Owners.

(b) so much of the award as is applicable to
restricted Common Elements to the Unit Owner having general use
of such Common Elements.

In such eminent domain or condemnation proceeding the
Board of Managers shall request that the award shall set forth
the amount allocated to unrestricted Common Elements and to each
irrevocable restricted Common Element. In the event the award
does not set forth such allocation, then the question of
allocation shall be submitted to arbitration in accordance with
the Arbitration Statutes of the State of New York.

ARTICLE XIII
MISCELLANEOU

Section 13.1 Insurance. Under no circumstances shall
a Unit Owner permit or suffer anything to be done or left in his
Unit which will increase the insurance rates on his Unit or any
other Unit or on the Common Elements.

Section 13.2 Severability. Should any of the cove-
nants, terms or provisions herein imposed be void or become
unenforceable at law or in equity, the remaining provisions of
these By-Laws shall, nevertheless, be and remain in full force
and effect.

Section 13.3 Notice to Condominium. A Unit Owner who
mortgages his Unit, shall notify the Condominium through the
management agent, if any, or the President of the Board of Mana-
gers in the event there is no management agent, of the name and
address of his mortgagee; and the Board of Managers shall main-
tain such information in a book entitled "Mortgagees of Units".
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Section 13.4 Notice of Unpaid Assessments. The Board
of Managers shall, at the request of a mortgagee of a Unit,
report any unpaid assessments due from the Unit Owners of such
Unit.

Section 13.5 Examination of Books and Records. Every
Unit Owner or his representative, and mortgage, shall be entitled
to examine the books and records of the Condominium on reasonable
notice to the Board of Managers but not more often than once a
month.

Section 13.6 Construction. Wherever the masculine
singular form of the pronoun is used in these By-Laws, it shall
be construed to mean the masculine, feminine or neuter; singular
or plural; wherever the context so requires.

Section 13.7 Compliance with Article 9-B. These
By-Laws are set forth to comply with the requirements of Article
9-B of the Real Property Laws of the State of New York. In case
any of these By-Laws conflict with the provisions of said Statute
or of the Declaration, the provisions of the Statute or of the
Declaration, whichever the case may be, shall control.
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DOCUMENT NUMBER 5

FORM OF CONDOMINIUM DEED
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FORM OF CONDOMINIUM UNIT DEED

THIS INDENTURE, made the day of , 1987,
petween J & M ASSOCIATES, a New York partnership having an office
at 11 Elm Place, Rye, New York, the "Grantor",
and residing at

, the "Grantee".

That the Grantor, in consideration of TEN ($10) DOLLARS
and other good and valuable consideration paid by the Grantee,
does hereby grant and release unto the Grantee, the heirs or
successors and assigns of the Grantee, forever:

The Condominium Unit known as Unit No. (herein-
after called "The Unit") in the Building situate at 100-110
Theodore Fremd Avenue, in the City of Rye, State of New York,
designated and described as Unit No. in the Declaration
establishing Ryeview Condominium (hereinafter called the
"property"), made by the Grantor under the Condominium Act of the
State of New York (Article 9-B of the Real Property Law of the

State of New York), dated , recorded in the
Office of the Westchester County Clerk, Division of Land Records,
New York, on the day of 198 , in Liber ,
Page , (hereinafter called the npeclaration") and desig-
nated as Sheet Block Lot , County of
Westchester, State of New York, which Unit is also designated on
the Tax Map as Tax Lot No. and on the Floor Plans of the
Building, certified on the day of , 198 , and

filed simultaneously with the Declaration. The land on which the
Building containing the Unit is located is described in Schedule
A, annexed hereto and made a part hereof.

TOGETHER with an undivided percent interest in
the Common Elements of the Property (hereinafter called the
"Common Elements");

TOGETHER with, and subject to, the rights, obligations,
easements, covenants, restrictions and other provisions set forth
in the Declaration and By-Laws of Ryeview Condominium, as same
may be amended from time to time (the "By-Laws"), all of which
will constitute covenants running with the land and will bind any
person having at any time any interest or estate in the Unit, as
though recited and stipulated at length herein;

Subject also to such other liens, agreements, cove-
nants, easements, restrictions, consents and other matters of
record as pertain to the Unit, to the Land and/or Buildings.

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the same unto the Grantee, the
heirs or successors and assigns of the Grantee, forever.
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If any provision of the Declaration or the By-Laws is
invalid under, or would cause the Declaration or the By-Laws to
be insufficient to submit the Property to, the provisions of the
Condominium Act, or if any provision that is necessary to cause
the Declaration and the By-Laws to be sufficient to submit the
Property to the provisions of the Condominium Act is missing from
the Declaration or the By-Laws, or if the Declaration and the
By-Laws are insufficient to submit the Property to the provisions
of the Condominium Act, the applicable provisions of Article 18
of the Declaration w1ll control.

Except as otherwise spec1f1ca11y permitted by the Board
of Managers (as such terms is defined in the Declaratlon) or
provided in the Declaration or in the By-Laws, the Unit is
intended for residential use only or such other home occupation
as permitted by law.

The Grantor covenants that the Grantor has not done or
suffered anything to be done whereby the Unit has been encumbered
in any way whatever, except as set forth in the Declaration and
the By-Laws (and any Rules and Regqulations adopted under the
By-Laws).

The Grantor, in compliance with Section 13 of the Lien
Law of the State of New York, covenants that the Grantor will
receive the consideration for this conveyance and will hold the
right to receive such consideration as a trust fund for the
purpose of paying the cost of the improvement and will apply the
same first to the payment of the cost of the improvement before
using any part of the same for any other purpose.

The Grantee accepts and ratifies the provisions of the
Declaration and the By-Laws and the Rules and Regulations of the
Condominium recorded simultaneously with and as part of the
provisions thereof as the same may be amended from time to time
by recorded instruments.

The term "Grantee" shall be read as "Grantees" whenever
the sense of this deed so requires.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Grantor and the Grantee have
duly executed this Indenture as of the day and year first above
written.

J & M ASSOCIATES

BY:

WITNESS:

GRANTEE
WITNESS:

GRANTEE
RECORDED AT THE REQUEST
OF AND TO BE RETURNED BY
MAIL TO:
SECTION:
BLOCK:
LOT:
STATE OF NEW YORK )

: ss.:
COUNTY OF WESTCHESTER )
Oon the day of , in the year 198 ,

before me personally came

' , to me
known and known to me to be the individual(s) described in, and
who executed the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged to me
that executed the same.

NOTARY PUBLIC
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UNIT OWNERS POWER OF ATTORNEY
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UNIT OWNER’S POWER OF ATTORNEY

Any terms used in this Unit Owner'’s Power of Attorney
which are used (a) in the Declaration establishing a plan for
condominium ownership of the premises known as Ryeview Condo-
minium and by the street number 100-110 Theodore Fremd Avenue,
Rye, New York, Under Article 9-B of the Real Property Law of the
State of New York, dated , 198 , and recorded
in the Westchester Office of the County Clerk, (the "Declara-
tion"), or (b) in the By-Laws of Ryeview Condominium (the
"By-Laws") attached to, and recorded together with, the
Declaration, shall have the same meanings in this Unit Owner’s
Power of Attorney as in the Declaration or the By-Laws.

The undersigned , (having an office)
(residing) * at , the Owner of the
Condominium Unit (the "Undersigned’s Unit") known as Unit No. ___
in Ryeview Condominium (does) (do)* hereby irrevocably nominate,
constitute and appoint the persons who may from time to time
constitute the Board of Managers, true and lawful attorneys-
in-fact for the undersigned, coupled with an interest, with power
of substitution, in their own names, as members of the Board of
Managers, or in the name of their designee (corporate or other-
wise), on behalf of all Unit Owners, in accordance with the Unit
Oowners’ respective Common Interests, subject to the provisions of
the By-Laws then in effect, (1) (a) to acquire or lease any Unit,
together with its Appurtenant Interest, from any Unit Owner so
desiring to sell, convey, transfer, assign or lease, (b) to ac-
quire any Unit, together with its Appurtenant Interest, whose
owner elects to surrender such Unit, (c) to acquire any Unit,
together with its Appurtenant Interest, that becomes the subject
of a foreclosure or other similar sale, on such terms and, with
respect to any transfer pursuant to the terms of subdivision 1l(a)
or 1(b) of this paragraph at such price or at such rental, as the
case may be, as such attorneys-in-fact deem proper, and there-
after to convey, sell, lease, mortgage or otherwise deal with
(but not vote the interest appurtenant to) any such Unit so
acquired by them, on such terms as such attorneys-in-fact may
determine, granting to such attorneys-in-fact the power to do all
things in such premises which the undersigned could do if the
undersigned were personally present and (2) to execute, acknow-
ledge and deliver (a) any declaration or other instrument affect-
ing the Condominium that the Board of Managers deem necessary or
appropriate to comply with any law, ordinance, regulation, zoning
resolution or requirement of any public authority, applicable to
the maintenance, demolition, construction, alteration, repair or
restoration of the Condominium or (b) any consent, covenant,
restriction, easement or declaration, or any amendment thereto,
affecting the Condominium or the Common Elements, that the Board
of Managers deem necessary or appropriate.

*Delete inapplicable parenthetical
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The undersigned (does) (do)* hereby irrevocably nomi-
nate, constitute and appoint Sponsor as attorney-in-fact for the
undersigned, coupled with an interest, with power of substitu-
tion, to amend from time to time such Declaration, By-Laws and
the Rules and Regulations of the Condominium, or any of such
documents, when such amendment (1) will be required to reflect
any changes in Unsold Units and/or the reapportionment of the
Common Interests of the affected Unsold Units resulting therefrom
made by Sponsor or its designee in accordance with Article 12 of
the Declaration or (2) will be required by (a) an institutional
lender designated by Sponsor to make a mortgage loan secured by a
mortgage on any Unit, (b) any governmental agency having regqula-
tory jurisdiction over the Condominium, or (c) any title insu-
rance company selected by Sponsor to insure title to any Unit;
provided, however, that any amendment made pursuant to the terms
of subdivision (1) or (2) of this paragraph will not (i) change
the Common Interest of the Undersigned’s Unit, (il) require a
material, physical modification to the Undersigned’s Unit, or
(iii) adversely affect the priority or validity of the lien of
any purchase money mortgage or any mortgage held by an institu-
tional lender covering the Undersigned’s Unit unless the
undersigned (in the event described in subdivision (i) or (ii) of
this paragraph) will consent thereto by joining in the execution
of such amendment. The terms, covenants and conditions contained
in, and the powers granted pursuant to, this paragraph will
remain in full force and effect until such time as Sponsor or its
designee will cease to own any Unit in Ryeview Condominium.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned (has) (have)*

executed this Unit Owner’s Power of Attorney as of the day
of , 198 .
(SEAL)

*Delete inapplicable parenthetical
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STATE OF NEW YORK )
¢ Ss.:
COUNTY OF WESTCHESTER )

Oon , 198 , before me personally
came , to me known and known to me
to be the individual(s) described in, and who executed the
foregoing instrument, and he acknowledged to me that he
executed the same.

NOTARY PUBLIC
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CERTIFICATION OF SPONSOR AND SPONSOR'S
PRINCIPALS PURSUANT TO SECTION 19.2 (c)
OF THE REGULATIONS ISSUED PURSUANT TO
GENERAL BUSINESS LAW, ARTICLE 23-3,
AS AMENDED.

New York State Department of Law
120 Broadway
New York, New York 10271

Attn: Real Estate Financing Bureau

Re: Ryeview Condominium
100-110 Theodore Fremd Avenue
Rye, New York

We are the sponsor and the principals of sponsor of the
condominium offering plan to convert the above referenced
property.

We understand that we have primary responsibility for
compliance with the provisions of Article 23-A of the General
Business Law, the regulations promulgated by the Department of
Law in Part 19 and such other laws and regulations as may be
applicable.

We have read the entire offering plan. We have
investigated the facts set forth in the offering plan and the
underlying facts. We have exercised due diligence to form a
basis for making this certification. We jointly and severally
certify that the offering plan does, and that all documents
submitted hereafter by us which amend or supplement the offering
plan will:

(1) set forth the detailed terms of the transaction
and be complete, current and accurate;

(2) afford potential investors, purchasers and
participants an adequate basis upon which to found
their judgment;

(3) not omit any material fact;

(4) not contain any untrue statement of a material
fact;

(5) not contain any fraud, deception, concealment,
suppression, false pretense or fictitious or
pretended purchase or sale:; '

(6) not contain any promise or representation as to

the future which is beyond reasonable expectation
or unwarranted by existing circumstances;
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(7) not contain any representation or statement which
is false, where I/we: (i) knew the truth; (ii)
with reasonable effort could have known the truth;
(iii) made no reasonable effort to ascertain the
truth, or (iv) did not have knowledge concerning
the representatlons or statements made.

This certification is made under penalty of perjury for
the benefit of all persons to whom this offer is made. We
understand the violations are subject to the civil and criminal
penalties of the General Business Law and Penal Law.

J & M Associlates

| 7/%/ /

rtner

SPONSO PRINCIPALS

NP A \
/&Esepr{ M. Cassin ]
S, /%M/-

Michael A. Grean

Sworn to before me this
I day of January, 1987.

(Lvo—*c na Q,‘,Q(,A

Notary Public

CAROL M JOSEPH
Public, State of New York
No. 314827435
Qualified in New York Cou
Term Expires Jan 31 e g9
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CERTIFICATION OF SPONSOR'S ENGINEER
OR ARCHITECT PURSUANT TO SECTION 19.2(c)
OF THE REGULATIONS ISSUED PURSUANT
TO GENERAL BUSINESS LAW, ARTICLE 23-A
AS AMENDED

New York State Department of Law
120 Broadway
New York, New York 10271

Attn: Real Estate Financing Bureau

Re: Ryeview Condominium
100-110 Theodore Fremd Avenue
Rye, New York

The sponsor of the offering to convert the captioned
property to condominium ownership retained me to prepare a
report disclosing the condition of the property (the "Report").
I visually inspected the property on 8/23/86 and 1/17/87 and
prepared the Report dated 9/21/86 and 1/17/87, a copy of which
is intended to be incorporated into the offering plan so that
tenants and prospective purchasers may rely on the Report.

I understand that I am responsible for complying with
Article 23-A of the General Business Law, and the regulations
promulgated by the Attorney General, in Part 19, insofar as they
are applicable to this Report.

I have read the entire Report and investigated the
facts set forth in the Report and the facts underlying it and
conducted the visual inspection referred to above with due
diligence in order to form a basis for this certification. I
certify that the Report and all documents prepared by me
disclose all the material facts which were then discernible from
a visual inspection of the property. This Certification is made
for the benefit of all persons to whom this offer is made. I
certify that, the Report and all documents prepared by me based
on my visual inspection:

(1) sets forth in narrative form the physical
condition of the entire property and are current
and accurate as of the date of inspection;

(2) in my professional opinion, affords potential
investors, purchasers and participants an adequate
basis upon which to found their judgment
concerning the physical condition of the property;

(3) does not omit any material.fact;

(4) does not contain any untrue statement of a
material fact;
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(5) does not contain any fraud, deception, concealment
or suppression;

(6) does not contain any promise or representation as
to the future which is beyond reasonable
expectation or unwarranted by existing
circumstances;

(7) not contain any representation or statement which
is false, where I: (i) knew the truth; (ii) with
reasonable effort could have known the truth:;
(iii) made no reasonable effort to ascertain the
truth, or (iv) did not have knowledge concerning
the representations or statement made;

I further certify that I am not owned or controlled by
and have no beneficial interest in the sponsor and that my
compensation for preparing this Report is not contingent on the
conversion of the property to a condominium or on the
profitability or price of the offering. This statement is not
intended as a guarantee or warranty of the physigal condition of
the property.

ito sinopoli, JF., P.E.
Consulting Engineer

Sworn to before me this (] day
of January, 1987. !

(:L¢,L2 M S;hdHJZ
S

Notary Public

CAROL M JOSEPH
Notary Pubilic, State of New York
No. 31-4827436
Qualified in New York County
Term Expires Jan 31 (339
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CERTIFICATION CONCERNING ADEQUACY
OF
SCHEDULE B

Re: Ryeview Condominium
100-110 Theodore Fremd Avenue
Rye, New York

The sponsor of the condominium offering plan for the
captioned property retained our firm to review Schedule B
containing projections of income and expenses for the first
year of condominium operation. Our experience in this field
over the course of the last fifteen years includes management
of fourteen buildings in Westchester County, containing over
fifteen hundred residential units.

We understand that we are responsible for complying
with Article 23-A of the General Business Law and the
regulations promulgated by the Attorney General in Part 19
insofar as they are applicable to Schedule B.

We have reviewed the Schedule and investigated the
facts set forth in the Schedule and the facts underlying it
with due diligence in order form a basis for this certifi-
cation. We have relied on our experience in managing
residential buildings.

We certify that the projections in Schedule B appear
reasonable and adequate under existing circumstances and the
projected income appears to be sufficient to meet the anti-
cipated operating expenses for the projected first year of
condominium operation.

We certify that the Schedule does:

(1) set forth in detail the projected income and
expenses for the first year of condominium
operation;

(ii) afford potential investors, purchasers and

participants an adequate basis upon which to
found their judgment covering the first year
of condominium operation;

(iii) not omit any material fact;

(iv) not contain any untrue statement of a material
fact;

(v) not contain any fraud, deception, concealment,
or suppression;
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(vi) not contain any promise or representation as
to the future which is beyond reasonable
expectation or unwarranted by existing
circumstances;

(vii) not contain any representation or statement
which is false, where we: (a) knew the truth:;
(b) with reasonable effort could have known
the truth; (c¢) made no reasonable effort to
ascertain the truth or (d) did not have
knowledge concerning the representation or
statements made.

We further certify that we are not owned or con-
trolled by and have no beneficial interest in the sponsor and
that our compensation for preparing this certification is not
contingent on the conversion of the property to a condominium
or on the profitability or price of the offering. We are not
a sponsor or a selling agent of this condominium.

We understand that a copy of the certification is
intended to be incorporated into the offering plan so that
prospective purchasers may rely on it. This statement is not
intended as a guarantee or warranty of the income and expenses
of the first year of condominium operation.

This certification is made under penalty of perjury
for the benefit of all persons to whom this offer is made. We
understand that violations are subject to the civil and
criminal penalties of the General Business Law and Penal Law.
Dated: Westchester County, New York

April 3, 1987

W.C. Realty Corp.

R S W

Sworn to before me this
3 day of Apnl , l987.

N .
: "'” o .\*Jt "b(v

Notary Public ~

CAROL M JOSEPH
Notary Public, State of New York
No. 31-48274386
Qualified in New York
Term Expires Jan 31 1929
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RTVISED SECTION 352-eee OF THEZ GEINERAL BUSINESS LAW

Sec. 3152-eee. Ccnversions to cooperative Or condominilum
ownershlp 1n certaln citles, towns and villages located 1n
thne counties of Nassau, Westchester and Rockland. 1. As used
in this section, the following words and terms shall have
the following meanings:

(a) "plan". Every offering statement Or prospectus
submitted to the department of law pursuant to section three
hundred fifty-two-e of this article for the conversion of a
building or group of buildings or development from residen-
rial rental status to cooperative or condominium ownership
or other form of cooperative interest in realty, other than
an offering statement or prospectus for such conversion
pursuant to article two, eight or eleven of the private
nousing finance law. -

(b) "Non-eviction plan". A plan which may not bDbe
declared effective until at least fifteen percent of those
bona fide tenants in occupancy of all dwelling units in the
building or group of buildings or development on the date
the plan is declared effective shall have executed and
delivered written agreements to purchase under the plan. As
to tenants who were in occupancy on the date a letter was
issued by the attorney general accepting the plan for
filing, the purchase agreement shall be executed and de-
livered pursuant to an offering made in good faith without
fraud and discriminatory repurchase agreements Or other
discriminatory inducements. i

(¢) "gEviction plan". A plan which, pursuant to the
srovisions of tnils section, can result in the eviction of a
non-purcnasing tenant B3y reason of the tenant failing =to
purcnase pursuant thereto, and which may not be declared
affectcive until written agreements to purchase under the
plan pursuant to an offering made in good faith without
fraud and with no discriminatory repurchase agreements ot
otner discriminatory inducements shall have been  executed
and delivered by: (i) at least fifty-one percent of the bona
fide tenants 1in occupancy of all dwelling units 1n the
building or group of buildings or development on the date
rhe offering statement or prospectus was accepted for filing
by the attorney general excluding, for the ourposes of
determining the numcer of bona fide tenants in occupancy on
such date, eligible senior citizens and eligible disabled
persons; and (i1) at least thirty-five percent of the bona
fide tenants 1n occupancy of all dwelling units 1in the
building or group of buildings or development on the date
the offering statement Or prosctectus was accepted for filing
by the attcrney general including, for the purpose of
derermining tne numcer of bona fide tenants in occupancy on
sucn date eligizle senior citizens and eligible disablec
persons. ‘
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shares allocated to a dwelling unit or who owns such cw
ling unit itself.

(e) "Non-purchasing tenant". A person who has
purchased under the plan and who is a tenant entit
to possession at the time the plan is declared effective
a person to whom a dwelling unit 1is rented subseguent
the effective date. A person who sublets a dwelling ui
from a purchaser under the plan shall not be deemed
non-purchasing tenant.

(£) "Eligible senior citizens"., Non-purchasing tenar
who are sixty-two years of age or older on the date the pl
is declared effective and the spouses of any such tenants
such date; provided that such tenant shall not be precluc
from subsequently purchasing the dwelling unit on the ter
then offered to tenants in occupancy.

(g) "Eligible disabled persons”. Non-purchasi
tenants who have an impairment which results from anatc
ical, physiological or psychological conditions, oth
than addiction to alcohol, gambling, or any controll
substance, which are demonstrable by medically acceptab
clinical and laboratory diagnostic technigues, and whi
are expected to be permanent and which prevent the tena
from engaging in any substantial gainful employment on t
date the attorney general has accepted the plan for filin
and the spouses of any such tenants on such date, and w
have elected, within sixty days of the date tne attorn
general has accepted the plan for filing, on forms promu.
gated by the attorney general and presented to such tenan:
by the offeror, to bpecome non-purchasing tenants under ¢ti
provisions of this section; provided, however, that
the disability first occurs after acceptance of the pl:
for filing, then such election may be made within six:
days following the onset of such disability unless durir
the period subseguent to sixty days following the acceptanc
of the plan for filing but prior to such election, &tr
offeror accepts a written agreement to purchase the apart
ment from a bona fide purchaser; and provided furtner th:
such election shall not preclude any such tenant frc
Subseguently purchasing the dwelling unit or the share
allocated thereto on the terms then offered to tenanzs i
occupancy.

2. The attorneyv general shall refuse to issue a lette
stating that the offering statement or pDrospectus reguire
in subdivision one of section three hundred fifty-two-e o
this chapter has opeen filed wnenever 1t appears tha:z th
offering statement or DProspectus offers for sale resident:ia

cooperative apartments or condominium units pursuant to
Plan unless:

{a) The plan crovides that it will be deemed 2
doned, void and of no effect if it coes not Deccme efliesc
within twelve montns from the cdate o0f issue cf the !=2
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of the attorney general stating that the cffering
or crospectus nas Ddeen accegred for filing and, in
of such acandcnment, no new plan for the conversior
building or group of buildings or develorment sha
submitted %o the attorney general for at least i
months after such abandonment.

3 v wm
0n w

(b) The plan provides either that it is an eviction
plan or that it is a non-eviction plan.

(c) The plan provides, if it is a non-eviction plan,
as follows:

{i) The plan may not be declared effective until
at least fifteen percent of those bona fide tenants in
occupancy of all dwelling units in the building or
group of buildings or develooment on the date the plan
is declared effective shall have executed and delivered
written agreements to purchase under the plan. As to
tenants who were in occupancy on the date a letter was
issued by the attorney general accepting the plan for
filing, the purchase agreement shall be executed and
delivered pursuant to an offering made without
discriminatory repurchase agreements OrC other
discriminatory inducements.

(ii) No eviction proceedings will be commenced at
any time against non-purchasing tenants for failure to
purchase or any other reason applicable to exciration
of tenancy:; provided that such proceedings may Dbe
commenced for non-payment of rent, illegal use oOr
occupancy of the premises, refusal of reasonable access
to the owner or a similar breach by the non-purchasing
tenant of his obligations to the owner of the dwelling
unit or the shares allocated thereto; and provided
further that an owner of a unit or of the shares
allocated thereto may not commence an action to recover
possession of a dwelling unit from a non-purchasing
tenant on the grounds that he seeks the dwelling uniz
for the use and occupancy of himself or his family.

(iii) Non-purchasing tenants who reside in
dwelling units subject to government regulacion as to
rentals and continued occupancy prior to the conversion
of the building or group of buildings or develocment O
cooperative or condominium ownership shall continue to
be subject thereto.

(1v) The rentals of non-purchasing tenants who
reside in dwelling units not subject to government
regulation as to rentals and continued occupancy and
non-purchasing tenants who reside in dwelling units
with respect to which government regulation 2as to
rentals and continued occupancy is eliminated or
becomes inapplicable after the plan has been acceoted
for filing by the attorney general shall not be subject
ro unconscionable i1ncreases bevend ordinary rentals Ior
comparapble apartments during cthe period of =tnelr
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Y-Sdmailcy. LD determinlng comparability, considerar:
shall be given to such factors as building service
level of maintenance and operating expenses.

(v) The plan may not be amended at any time
provide that it shall be an eviction plan.

(vi) The rights granted under the plan to pu
chasers under the pPlan and to non-purchasing tenan
may not be abrogated or reduced notwithstanding ai
expiration of, or amendment to, this section.

(vii) After the issuance of the letter from tt
attorney general stating that the offering statement ¢
prospectus required in subdivision one of section thre
hundred fifty-two~e of this article has been filed, tr
offeror shall, on the thirtieth, sixtieth, eighty
eighth and ninetieth day after such date and at leas
once every thirty days until the plan is declare
effective or is abandoned, as the case may be, and o
the second day before the expiration of any exclusiv
purchase period provided in a substantial amendment t
the plan, (1) file with the atorney general a writte
Statement, under oath, setting forth the percentage o
bona fide tenants in occupancy of all dwelling units i
the building or group of buildings or development wh
have executed and delivered written agreements t«
purchase under the plan as of the date of such state-
ment, (2) before noon on the day such statement ¢
filed post a copy of such statement 1i1n a prominent
Place accessible to all tenants in each buildinc
covered by the plan. -

(d) The plan provides, if it is an eviction plan, as
follows:

(i) The plan may not be declared effective
unless: (1) at least fifty-one percent of the 5ona
fide tenants in occupancy of all dwelling units in
the building or group of buildings or develooment on
the date the offering statement or Drospectus was
accepted for filing by the attorney general, excluding,
for the purposes of determining tne number of bona fide
tenants in occupancy on such date, eligible senior
citizens and eligible disabled persons: and (2) a-=
least thirty-five percent of the bona fide tenants in
Ooccupancy of all dwelling units in the Suilcéing cr
group of buildings or development on the date of the

offering statement Or prospectus was accepted for
filing by the attorney general including, for the
purposes of determining tne numper of bona fide tsnan:cs
10 occupancy on such date, eligible senior citizens angdg
eligible disabled Persons; shall have executed ang
delivered written agreements to purchase under the pian
pursuant to an offering made 1in good faith withous
fraud and with no discriminatory repurchase agreenents

or other discrlmxnatory inducements.
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(ii) No eviction proceedings will be commenced
against 2 non-purchasind renant for failure to purchase
or any other reason apolicable to expiration of tenancVy
until the later to occur of (1) the date which is the
expiration date provided in such non—purchasing ten-
ant's lease or rental agreement, and (2) the date
which is three vears after the date on which the
plan 1is declared effective. Non—purchasing tenants
who reside in dwelling units subject to government
regulations as to rentals and continued occupancy
prior tO conversion shall continue tO pe subject
thereto during the period of occupancy provided in
this paragraph. Thereafter. if a tenant nas not pur-
chased, he may pe removed bBY the owner of the dwelling
unit or the shares allocated to such dwelling uniz.

(iii) No eviction proceedings will be commenced.,
except as hereinafter provided, at any time against
either eligible senior citizens oOT eligible disabled
persons. The rentals of eligible senior citizens and
eligible disabled persons who reside in dwelling units
not subject to government regulation as to rentals and
continued occupancy and eligible senior citizens and
eligible disabled persons who reside in dwelling units
with respect ro which government regulation as to
rentals and continued occupancy is eliminated ©OT
becomes inapplicable after the plan has peen accepted
for £iling <hall not be subject tO unconscionable
increases peyond ordinary centals for comparable
apartments during the period of their occupancy con-
sidering, 1in determining comparability, such factors
as building services, jevel of maintenance and oper-
ating expenses; provided rhat such proceedings may
be commenced against such renants for non-payment
of rent., illegal use ©OT occupancy of the premises.
refusal of reasonable access to the owner or & similarc
sreach by the renant of his obligations ro the owner of
the dwelling unit or the shares allocaced tneretQ;
and provided gurther that an owner of the dwelling unit
or the shares allocated thereto may not commence an
action toO recover possession of a dwelling unitz from 2
non-purchaseing cenant on the grounds gnat he seeks
rhe dwelling unit for the use and occupancy of himself
or his family.

(iv) Eligible senlor citizens and eligible
disabled persons who reside 1in dwelllng ynits subj)ecT
to governmen: regqulation as to rentals and conzinued
occupancy spnall continue to be subject thereto.

(v) The rights granted under the plan to eligible
senior citizens and eligible disabled persons may not
be aprogated OT reduced notwitnstanding any expiration
of, or amendment tO. this section.

(vi) any offeror wno disputes sne election by a

person tO pe an eligitle senior cicizen OF an =2ligid-2
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e
within thirty days of the receipt of the electicn form
for a determination by the attorney cgeneral of suc:
person's eligibility. The attorney general shall,
within thirty days thereafter, issue his determination
of eligibility. The foregoing shall, in the absence of
fraud, be the sole method for determining a dispute as
to whether a person is an eligible senior citizen or an
eligible disabled person. The determination of the
attorney dgeneral shall be reviewable only through a
proceeding under article seventy-eight of the civil
practice law and rules, which proceeding must be
commenced within thirty days after such determination
by the attorney general becomes final.

(vii) After the issuance of the letter from the
attorney general stating that the offering statement or
prospectus required in subdivision one of section three
hundred fifty-two-e of this article has been accepted
for filing, the offeror shall, on the thirtieth,
sixtieth, eighty-eighth and ninetieth days after such
date and at least once every thirty days until the plan
is declared effective or abandoned, as the case may be,
and on the second day before the expiration of any,
exclusive purchase period provided in a substantial
amendment to the plan, (1) file with the attorney
general a written statement, under oath, setting forth
the percentage of bona fide tenants in occupancy of all
dwelling units in the building or group of buildings or
development on the date the offering statement or
prospectus was accepted for filing by the attorney
general who have executed and delivered written agree-
ments to purchase under the plan as of the date of
such statement, and (2) before noon on the day such
statement 1s filed, post a copy of such statement in a
prominent place accessible to all tenants in each
building covered by the plan.

(viii) If the plan is amended before it is
declared effective to provide that it shall be a non-
eviction plan, any person who has agreed to purchase
under the plan prior to such amendment shall have a
period of thirty days after receiving written notice of
such amendment to revoke his agreement to purchase
under the plan.

(ix) The tenants in occupancy on the date the
attorney general accepts the plan for filing shall have
tne exclusive right to purchase their dwelling units or
the snares allocated thereto for ninety days after the
plan 1s accepted for filing by the attorney general,
during whicn time a tenant's dwelling unit shall not ke
shown to a third party unless ne nas, 1in writing,
walved his right to purchase; subseguent to the
expiration of such ninety day period, a tenant in
occupancy of a dwelling unit who has not purchased
shall be given the exclusive right for an addizicnal
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period of six months from saild expiration date to
purchase said dwelling unit or the shares allocated
thereto on the same terms and conditions as are con-
tained in an executed contract to purchase said dwel-
ling unit or shares entered 1nto by a bona fide pur-
chaser, such exclusive right to be exercisable within
fifteen days from the date of mailing by registered
mail of notice of the execution of a contract of sale
together with a copy of said executed contract to said
tenant.

{e) The attorney general finds that an excessive
number of long-term vacancies did not exist on the date that
the offering statement or prospectus was first submitted to
the department of law. "Long-term vacancies" shall mean
dwelling units not leased or occupied by bona fide tenants
for more than five months prior to the date of such sub-
mission to the department of law. "Excessive" shall mean
a vacancy rate in excess of the greater of (i) ten percent
and (ii) a percentage that is double the normal average
vacancy rate for the building or group of buildings or
~develcopment for two years prior to the January preceding
the date the offering statement or prospectus was first
submitted toc the department of law.

(£) The attornevy general finds that, following the
submission of the offering statement or prospectus to the
department of law, each tenant in the building or group of
buildings or development was provided with a written notice
stating that such offerlng statement or prospectus has been
submitted to the department of law for filing. Such notice
shall be accompanied by a copy of the offering statement or
prospectus and a statement that the statements submitted
pursuant to subparagraph (vii) of paragraph (c¢) or subpara-
graph (vii) of paragraph (d) of this subdivision, whichever
is applicable, will be available for inspection and copyiag
at the office of the department of law where the submission
was made and at the office of the offeror or a selling agent
of the offeror. Such notice shall also be accompanied by a
statement that tenants or their representatives may physic-
ally inspect the premises at any time subsequent to the sub-
mission of the plan to the department of law, during normal
business hours, upon written request made by them to the
offeror, provided such representatives are registered archi-
tects or professional engineers licensed to practice in the
state of New York. Such notice shall be sent to each tenant
in occupancy on the date the plan is first submitted to the
department of law and to the clerk of the municipality
wherein such building or group of buildings is located.

3. All dwelling units occupied by non-purchasing
tenants shall be managed by the same managing agent who
manages all other dwelling units in the building or group of
buildings or develocment. Such managing agent shall provide
to non-purcnhasing tenants all services and facxlxtles
required by law on a non-discriminatory basis. The offeror
shall guarantee tne obligation of the managing agent to
srovide all sucn services and facilities until such time as

- 201 -



tne ofieror surrenders control to the board of directors ot
board of managers.

4. It shall be unlawful for any person to engage ir
any course of conduct, including, but not limited to,
interruption or discontinuance of essential services, which
substantially interferes with or disturbs the comfort,
repose, peace or quiet of any tenant in his use or occupancy
of his dwelling unit or the facilities related thereto. The
attorney general may apply to a court of competent jurisdic-
tion for an order restraining such conduct and, if he deems
it appropriate, an order restraining the owner from selling
the shares allocated to the dwelling unit or the dwelling
unit itself or from proceeding with the plan of conversion:
provided that nothing contained herein shall be deemed to
preclude the tenant from applying on his own behalf for
similar relief.

5. Any local legislative body may adopt local laws and
any agency, officer or public body may prescribe rules and
regulations with respect to the continued occupancy by
tenants of dwelling units which are subject to regulation as
to rentals and continued occupancy pursuant to law, provided
that in the event that any such local law, rule or regula-
tion shall be inconsistent with the provisions of this
section, the provisions of this section shall control.

6. Any provision of a lease or other rental agreement
which purports to waive a tenant's rights under this section
or rules and regulations promulgated pursuant hereto shall

be void as contrary to public policy.

7. The provisions of this section shall only be
applicable in the cities, towns and villages located in the
counties of Nassau, Westchester and Rocklané which by
resolution adopted by the respective local legislative bedy
of such city, town or village, elect that the provisions
hereof shall be applicable therein. A certified copy of such
resolution shall be filed in the office of the attorney
general at Albany and shall become effective on the Gate of

such filing.
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